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PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED

th
 NOTICE is hereby given that the 13  Annual General Meeting of the Members of Punjab State 

th
Transmission Corporation Limited will be held on Monday, 25  September, 2023 at 12.00 Noon at the 
Registered Office of the Company, PSEB Head Office, The Mall, Patiala to transact the following 
Business:

Ordinary Business
st

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements as at 31  March 2023, the reports of the 
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To fix the remuneration of Statutory Auditors appointed by C&AG for FY 2023-24.

Special Business
3. To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2023-24 as approved by the Board 

of Directors of the Corporation and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

 "RESOLVED  THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the appointment made 
by the Board of Directors of M/s Reema Arya & Co., Practising Cost Accountant, #1823, St Bugga 
Badana, Kacha Patiala as Cost Auditor of Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited, for 
conducting the audit of the cost records of the Corporation for the financial year 2023-24, at a 
remuneration of Rs. 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Thousand only) inclusive of  TA & DA but exclusive 
of other statutory levies to be paid extra as applicable from time to time under the provisions of section 
148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as 
amended from time to time notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India as set out 
in the Statement annexed to the notice, be and is hereby ratified.

 FURTHER  RESOLVED  THAT  the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised 
to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution".

By Order of the Board
For & on behalf of 

Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited

              Sd/-
(Sahil Pandey)

Place : Patiala                                                                       Company Secretary
st 

Dated : 31 August, 2023

Notes:
a) A member who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint proxy to attend and vote 

instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company.

N O T I C E
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b) Proxy in order to be effective should be lodged with the Company at least 48 hours before the 
Commencement of the meeting.

c) Copy of Audited Annual Accounts of PSTCL for FY 2022-23 together with Report of Directors' and 
Auditors' thereon.

d) An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of business to 
be transacted is annexed hereto. 

DA/As Above

No.  1086/  1100 /CS/T-45/Vol.-III   Dated: 31.08.2023

To Members:

1. His Excellency, the Governor of Punjab through Principal Secretary, Government of Punjab, 
Department of Power (Energy Branch), Civil Secretariat-II, Chandigarh.

2. Shri Anurag Verma, IAS, Chief Secretary, Government of Punjab, Main Civil Secretariat-I, 
Chandigarh.

3. Shri Ajoy Kumar Sinha, IAS, Principal Secretary, Government of Punjab, Department of Finance, 
Civil Secretariat-I, Chandigarh. 

4. Shri  Tejveer  Singh, IAS, Chairman-cum-Managing Director and Member, PSTCL, Patiala.  

5. Shri Tejveer Singh, IAS, Principal Secretary, Government of Punjab, Department of Power, Civil 
Secretariat-II, Chandigarh.

6. Shri  Varun Roojam, IAS, Excise Commissioner, Government of Punjab, Chandigarh.

7. Shri  Arshdeep Singh Thind, IAS, Taxation Commissioner, Government of  Punjab, Chandigarh.

8. Shri Mohammad Tayyab, IAS, Secretary/Expenditure, Government of Punjab, Department of 
Finance, Civil Secretariat-I, Chandigarh.

9. Shri Bhupinder Singh, IAS, Special Secretary, Department of Power, Government of Punjab, Civil 
Secretariat-II, Chandigarh.

10. Shri  Baldev Singh Sran, Chairman-cum-Managing Director, PSPCL, Patiala.

11. Smt. Sakshi Sawhney, IAS, D.C. Patiala.

12. Shri  Aaditya Uppal, IAS, Municipal Commissioner, Patiala.

13. Shri  Arun Sekhri, IAS, Divisional Commissioner, Patiala. 

14. Shri  Surinder Kumar Beri, Director/Finance, PSPCL, Patiala.

15. Shri  Vinod Kumar Bansal, Director/Finance & Commercial, PSTCL, Patiala.

Endst. No. 1101/1104  /CS/T-45 Vol.-III   Dated: 31.08.2023

To Directors:

1. Er.  Vardeep Singh Mander, Director/Technical, PSTCL, Patiala.

2. Sh.  Nem Chand, Director/Administration, PSTCL, Patiala.

3. Er.  Anil Kaplush, Independent Director, PSTCL, # 225, PUDA Enclave II,  Rajpura Colony, Patiala. 

4. Er.  Suresh Kumar Arora, Independent Director, PSTCL,# 24, Vikas Vihar, Bhupindra Road, Patiala. 
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 Endst. No. 1105/1106 /CS/T-45 Vol.-III   Dated: 31.08.2023

To Auditors:
1. M/s K.S. Dua & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditor, PSTCL, 11, Green View, Rajbaha 

Road, Near Garden Resort, Patiala.
2. M/s Shweta Aggarwal & Associates, Secretarial Auditor, PSTCL, 5/1025, Mohan Meakin Society, 

Vasundhara, Sector-5, Ghaziabad-201012. 

For and on behalf of
For Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited

             Sd/-
             (Sahil Pandey)
Place:  Patiala                                                                                                                Company Secretary

stDated: 31  August, 2023

CC: No. 1107/1108  /CS/T-45 Vol.-III   Dated: 31.08.2023
1. Chief Financial Officer, PSTCL, Patiala.
2. Chief Accounts Officer/Finance & Audit, PSTCL, Patiala.
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Explanatory Statement in respect of the agenda to the business to be transacted at the Annual 

General Meeting of PSTCL.

Ordinary Business 

Item No. 2

Pursuant to section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section 619(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, 

the auditors of the Government Company are to be appointed by or re-appointed by the Comptroller and 

Auditors General of India (C&AG) and their remuneration has to be fixed by the Company in the Annual 

General Meeting or in such manner as the company in general meeting may determine as per Section 142 of 

the Companies Act, 2013.

thPursuant to the decision taken by the Members of the Company in its 12  Annual General Meeting held on 

30.09.2022 approved the remuneration and other terms and conditions including reimbursement of out of 

pocket expenses of M/s K.S. Dua & Co., Chartered Accountants, 11, Green View, Rajbaha Road, Near 

Garden Resort, Patiala and Statutory Auditors appointed by C&AG for FY 2022-23 as under:

M/s K.S. Dua & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditor, PSTCL, 11, Green View, Rajbaha Road, 

Near Garden Resort, Patiala appointed by C&AG as Statutory Auditors of the Corporation for FY 2022-23 

under Section 139 of Companies Act, 2013 shall be paid remuneration amounting Rs. 3,50,000 (Rs. Three 

Lacs Fifty Thousand only) excluding GST which shall be paid extra for conducting audit of accounts of 

PSTCL for the Financial Year 2022-23. 

Statutory Auditors and its staff shall be entitled for reimbursement of TA/DA and hotel charges for 

performing journeys within Punjab and Chandigarh, where the auditors have no head office or branch 

office for conducting the Statutory Audit of the books of accounts of PSTCL, at the rates specified in TA 

Regulations as amended from time to time as per entitlement of the officers/staff of the Corporation along 

with hotel charges outside Punjab and Chandigarh. Reimbursement of the hotel charges shall be subject to 

non-availability of guest houses of PSPCL and PSTCL. For the purpose of TA/DA, Auditors and its staff 

shall be categorised as under:

       Category 

 Partner of the Firm        I

 Qualified CA employee of the Firm        II

 Semi qualified /Article of the Firm      III

C&AG have yet to make the appointment of Statutory Auditors of PSTCL for FY 2023-24. It is proposed 

that Board of Directors may be authorized to fix the remuneration and other terms and conditions including 

reimbursement of out of pocket expenses of Statutory Auditors appointed by C&AG for FY 2023-24 in 

connection with the audit work of PSTCL.

The Board recommends the resolution for your approval as Special Resolution. 

Annexure to Notice

4
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Item No. 3

Pursuant to Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 read with Section 148(3) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of Cost Auditor approved by the Board of Directors on the basis of 

recommendation of Audit Committee shall require to be ratified by the shareholders.

th
Based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of PSTCL in its 78  

meeting held on 24.06.2023 approved the re-appointment of M/s Reema Arya & Co., Practising Cost 

Accountant, #1823, St Bugga Badana, Kacha Patiala as Cost Auditors of Punjab State Transmission 

Corporation Limited, for conducting the audit of the cost records of the Corporation for the financial year 

2023-24, at a lump sum remuneration of Rs. 25,000/- (Rs. Twenty Five Thousand only) inclusive of TA & 

DA but exclusive of other statutory levies to be paid extra as applicable from time to time under the 

provisions of section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 

Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of 

India. The remuneration of the Cost Auditor as approved above was subject to the ratification by the 

Shareholders of the Corporation in General Meeting.

Accordingly, Members are requested to ratify the remuneration payable to Cost Auditors for the Financial 

Year 2023-24 by passing ordinary resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives is directly or indirectly concerned or 

interested in the resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution as ordinary resolution for your approval. 

 For & on Behalf of

 Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited

            Sd/-

Place :  Patiala                                                                                                    (Sahil Pandey)
stDated : 31  August, 2023                                                     Company Secretary

15
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DIRECTORS'  REPORT
To
The Members, 
Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited.

th
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 13  Annual Report on the performance of your Corporation for 

st
the financial year ended 31  March, 2023 along with audited Financial Statements, Auditors' Report and 
Review of Accounts by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the review period. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
stThe financial performance of the Corporation for the year ended 31  March, 2023 with comparative position 

of the previous year is summarized as under: 

Particulars    Rs. in Lakhs
  For the year For the year
  ended ended March

st st   March 31   31 2022
  2023 
Income: 
Revenue from Operations 1,59,442.54 1,47,257.54
Other Income 3,494.82 4,169.57
Total Income 1,62,937.36 1,51,427.12
Expenses:
(a) Employee Benefits Expenses 78,109.68 55,610.04
(b) Finance Costs 34,708.60 37,010.12
(c) Depreciation, amortization expenses & impairment expenses            31,460.08           30,449.07
(d) Other expenses:
  (i) Repair & Maintenance  3,572.87 3,178.61
 (ii) Administration & General Expenses 2,759.71 2,551.85
 (iii) ULDC Charges 1,252.29 888.03
 (iv) Other expenses /debits 738.26 91.46
 (v) CSR Activities 131.15 -
Total Expenses 1,52,732.63 1,29,779.19
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (PBT) 10,204.73 21,647.93
Tax Expense
       -  Current tax - -
Profit /(Loss) for the period 10,204.73 21,647.93
Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss 
     -  Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Gratuity  (115.04)         (137.98)
Other Comprehensive Income (115.04) (137.98)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 10,089.69 21,509.94
Earning per Equity Share
Basic and Diluted  1.68 3.57

7
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During the year under review the total income of Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited (PSTCL) 
was Rs.1,62,937.36 (FY 2022-23) as against Rs.1,51,427.12 (FY 2021-22) during the previous year (Rs. in 
Lacs).

Profit after tax during the year was Rs. 10,204.73 (FY 2022-23) against Profit of Rs. 21647.93 (FY 2021-22) 
during previous year (Rs. in Lacs).

SHARE  CAPITAL
The authorized Equity Share Capital of the Corporation is Rs. 3000 Crore divided into 300 Crore equity 

st
shares of Rs. 10/- each. The issued and paid up equity share capital as on 31  March, 2023 was                            
Rs. 605,88,34,650/- divided in to 605883465 equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up which is entirely held 
by the Government of Punjab and its nominees.

TRANSFER  TO  RESERVES
No amount has been proposed to be transferred to reserves for the year under review.

DIVIDEND
No amount has been proposed to be recommended as dividend for the period under review.

VISION, MISSION AND CORE VALUES 
In order to keep pace with the changing business environment, your Corporation has formulated “Vision, 
Mission and Core Values” which are being pursued to make the Corporation a responsive, vibrant, reliable 
and efficient Institution.

SYSTEM  IMPROVEMENT
During the period under report, your corporation's thrust was to continue the existing transmission system as 
reliable and efficient and to ensure up gradation/ augmentation of the existing transmission system and 
commissioning of new transmission lines and grid substations as per the requirement of PSPCL to serve the 
Punjab Consumers in better way. Corporation is on the track to manage, upgrade and expand operational 
boundary on sound "Economic Principles". During the period under report, your Corporation has been able to 
add 1772.5 MVA capacity and 149.1 circuit kilometers of transmission lines in the state grid system at the 
Voltage level of 400KV/220KV/132KV.

The voltage class wise capacity in terms of MVA in our transmission network is as under:

The voltage class wise transmission lines in terms of circuit kilometers in our transmission network is as 
under:

Sr. 
No. 

Voltage 
Class 

MVA Capacity 

As on 
31.03.2022 

As on 
31.03.2023 

As on 
30.06.2023 

1 400KV  5890.005390.00  6075.00  
2 220KV  26360.0025360.00  26480.00  
3 132KV  5223.175255.67  5223.17  

 Total  37473.1736005.67  37778.17  
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The major up-gradation/augmentation of existing as well as construction of new lines and sub-stations 
completed during the period under report are as follows:

TRANSMISSION  LINES

GRID  SUBSTATIONS
During the period under report, T/F capacity had been added/ augmented/dismantled/ replaced during the 
period under report at 03 No. 400KV Substation, 15 Nos. 220KV Substations and 4 No. 132KV Substations.

1 220kV Passiana Dhablan Line(Railway Deposit Work) energised on 22.04.2022. 

2 Work of augmentation of conductor with HTLS of 220 KV DC line from 400 KV Jalandhar 

(PGCIL) to Kartarpur completed & line energised on 03.08.2022 (Turnkey project). 

3 220KV line from Barnala to Handiaya Rly. S./Stn (Railway Deptt. Deposit work) energised on 

dated 07.09.2022.
nd st4 Augmentation of 2  ckt & 1  Ckt of 220 KV DC line from 400 KV Rajpura to Mandi 

Gobindgarh HTLS completed & energised on 07.01.2023 & 21.03.2023.

5 220KV line from Tibber to Sohal (Railway Deptt. Deposit work) energised on 17.02.2023.

6 220KV Malout-Abohar Line energised on 29.03.2023.

7 220KV Verpal-Dukhniwaran Line (Railway Deptt. Deposit work) energised on 31.03.2023.

8 LILO of one Ckt. of 132KV Jamalpur-Moga line (DC on DC line) at 132KV S/S Swadi Kalan 

will be completed on October 2023.

9 132 KV Ferozpur Mukatsar line LILO at Sadiq energised on 04.04.2022.

10 132 KV Link between 132 KV GT Road-132 KV Sakatri Bagh through 132 through 132KV 

Underground 3.101 Ckms. 132 KV Cable 1x630 Sq mm charged at no load on dated 

30.07.2022. 

11 220KV line from 220KV Bhari sub-station to Daheru (Railway Deptt. Deposit work) line 

energised on 03.06.2023.

12 Line Connecting 220KV Devigarh to 220KV Rajpura energised on 14.06.2023.

13 Termination of 220KV Rajpura-400KV Faggan Majra Circuit at 220 KV Bahadurgarh 

completed on 02.07.2023.

 

Sr. 
No. 

Voltage 
Class 

Circuit Kilometer 

As on 
31.03.2022 

As on 
31.03.2023 

As on 
30.06.2023 

1 400KV  1666.431599.754  1666.43  
2 220KV  7925.2967880.135  7951.458  
3 132KV  3109.143098.039  3109.14  

 Total  12700.86612577.928  12727.028  

9
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O&M OF  TRANSMISSION SYSTEM
During the period, your Corporation has taken the steps to maintain the Transmission System at its best. For 
this purpose preventive maintenance was carried out as per the schedules and instructions and procedure 
Manual in Compliance of Indian Electricity Act, 2003, Indian Grid Code, State Grid Code & CEA. Few of 
works carried out during the period are as under:

• Power availability during FY 2022-23 is 99.8349 %.
• Emergency Restoration system (ERS) were installed on 220KV Chajli-Banga line & 132KV Moga-

Panjgrian line. 
• P&M Organization of PSTCL has adopted the new technology of High Temperature Low Sag 

conductor at 220KV Kartarpur-PGCIL Jalandhar Ckt-1 & 2 and 220 KV Rajpura-Gobindgarh-1 ckt 1 
&2. 

• Live Line/Hotline maintenance of Transmission Lines which was started last year is continuing 
successfully. Huge monetary savings has been made by performing Hotline activities in respect of sale 
of power and wheeling charges. 

• 3.101 KM long 132KV GT Road-Sakatri Bagh underground cable has been layed. 
rd• Timely commissioning of 3  500MVA ICT at 400KV S/S Rajpura led to record increase of ATC/TTC 

limits i.e. now 8500/9000MW. 

PUNJAB  STATE  GRID  OPERATION

PUNJAB  STATE  LOAD  DISPATCH  CENTRE  (PSLDC)

The SLDC organization is the apex body for operation, monitoring and control of power system in the State. 
The essential activities like pre-dispatching activities including scheduling of generation and operational 
planning, real time dispatch etc. are being discharged in accordance with the directions of NRLDC and 
prescribed grid operation procedures to ensure safety and security of the grids. To achieve maximum security 
and efficiency, SLDC closely monitors the control of the frequency, voltage and line flows, economic 
generation, switching operations etc.

By way of transmission system strengthening and efficient/coordinated grid operations, the maximum 
demand met has increased from 13431 MW (during FY 2021-22) and 14295 MW (during 2022-23) to 15293 
MW on 24.06.2022 (as per SCADA data) due to increase in ATC/TTC limit of the State of Punjab. The 
ATC/TTC limits have been enhanced from 6600/7200 MW in Paddy 2020, 7100/7700 MW in Paddy 2021, 
8500/9000 in Paddy 2022 and further to 9000/9500 MW in Paddy 2023 as detailed below:

110
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Sr. 
No.  

Description of Works  2022-23  01/04/23 to 30/06/23
(FY 2023-24)  

1 Replacement of Breakers  57 Nos. 28 Nos. 

2 Replacement of CTs  245 Nos. 87  Nos. 

3 Replacement of PTs  10 Nos. 02 Nos. 

4 Replacement of S/S Batteries  06 Nos. 02  

5 Replacement of LAs  41 Nos. 17 Nos.

Nos.

 

6 Replacement of C&R Panels  21 Nos. 17 Nos. 

7 Replacement of Relays  440 Nos. 80  Nos. 
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Sr. 
No.  

Duration Time 
Period          

(in  hrs.)  

Total 
Transfer 

Capability 
(TTC) of 
Punjab                               
(MW)                                

(a)
 

Reliability 
Margin (MW)                      

(b) 

Available 
Transfer 

Capability 
(ATC) of Punjab 

(MW)                  
(c) = (a) -

 
(b)

 

Remarks 
 

 

 

1
 

April 21 -
 August 21
 

00-24
 

7400
 

600
 

6800
 

Commissioning 
of 4

th

 
500MVA 

ICT at 
Amritsar (PG) 
& Conductor 
augmentation 
of 220 KV 
Ludhiana(PG) -
Lalton Kalan 
D/C to HTLS, etc.

 
2

 

Sep 21 -

    
April 22

 

0000-
0800 
1800 -
0000

 

8000

 

600

 

7400

 

400KV Bus 
Splitting 
arrangement at 
765 KV S/Stn. 
Moga (PGCIL)

 

0800-
1800

 

7700

 

600

 

7100

 3

 

May-22

 

00-24

 

8200

 

500

 

7700

 

Augmentation 
of 315 to 
500MVA ICT 
at Ludhiana

 

4

 

Jun-22

 

00-24

 

8700

 

500

 

8200

 

Commissioning 
of 3

rd

 

500MVA 
ICT at Rajpura

 

 

5

6

 

 

July

June 23-
onwards

-22 -
May 23

 

00-

00-

24

24

 

 

9000

9500

 

 

500

500

 

 

8500

9000

 

 

Conductor 

Augmentation of
315 to 500MVA 
ICT at Ludhiana &

Augmentation of
250 to 500MVA 
ICT at Moga &

Augmentation of
315 to 500MVA 
ICT at Nakodar &

Reorientation 
works of 220KV 
Patiala/
Bahadurgarh-
Rajpura D/C & 
220KV Rajpura-
Devigarh D/C.

augmentation of  
220KV Jalandhar- 
Kartarpur D/C 
from Zebra
to HTLS
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BOUNDARY  METERING  CUM  TRANSMISSION  LEVEL  ENERGY  AUDIT

The energy meters for assessment of PSTCL transmission losses have been installed on all boundary points.

The percentage month wise transmission losses of PSTCL network for year 2021-22 and 2022-2023 are as 

under:-

The transmission losses has decreased from 2.31% (FY 2021-22) to 2.27% (FY 2022-23).

Open Access

• Punjab SLDC is granting online NOC to STOA Customers. 

• Deviation accounting of large IPPs, selling power to PSPCL, (M/s NPL, M/s TSPL & M/s GVK) were 

prepared besides Accounts of Scheduled and Unscheduled Interchange (UI)/Deviation.

• Detailed procedure for Short Term Open Access, Medium Term Open Access/Long Term Access, 

Forecasting, Scheduling, Accounting & Deviation Settlement of Solar & Wind Generators and Energy 

accounting and Deviation Settlement of State Entities has been prepared and issued after with approval 

of Hon’ble PSERC.

• Registration of 33 no. Pooling Stations (with 54 no. Solar Generators) with solar generation capacity of 

5 MW & above has been done before start of their forecasting & scheduling activities as the PSERC 

Regulations.

• 106 no. entities (IPPs, Solar Generators, QCAs, RE Generators, DISCOM, State Generating Units etc.) 

have been successfully registered on SAMAST portal for Scheduling and Energy Accounting activities. 

• Open Access and Energy Accounting data is being regularly updated on SLDC website on weekly basis, 

including Open Access Procedures, Open Access Charges, List of Open Access Customers, List of 

Registered Solar Generators/ Pooling Stations/ QCAs, Weekly Accounts pertaining to Energy 

Scheduled by Open Access Customers on daily, TOD & 15-min basis and Monthly Unscheduled 

Interchange (UI)/ Deviation Settlement accounts (with daily & TOD details) and other operational data.

SCADA & CYBER SECURITY

Real time data of 170 No. Substations/Generating Plants (including IPPs) is being successfully reporting at 

SLDC Ablowal Patiala out of 190 Nos. total 400KV/ 220KV/ 132KV/ Generating substations.  

Further, more than 100 no. RE plants (solar, biomass, Co-Gen.) of different capacities installed in Punjab & 

integrated with SLDC SCADA system and total RE power integrated is more than 1GW.

The present SCADA system was upgraded in the year 2015 and installed in SLDCs including Punjab SLDC 

under ULDC phase-II with the latest features. Now, the upgradation of the SCADA system is due in the 

coming year. PGCIL is entrusted to install the upgraded SCADA system in Punjab SLDC and tender has been 

floated by PGCIL in this regard to install SCADA system under ULDC phase -III in unified manner in all 

Northern region SLDCs for more reliable grid operation & visualization and to enhance cyber security having 

features such as Application whitelisting tool, VAPT tool, SMS & Email gateway, Firewall for RTU 
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Month  FY 2021-2022 FY 2022-2023  

Aggregate Losses for FY   2.31 2.27  



communication, SIEM tool, ADMS (Automatic Demand Management System), AGC tool (Automatic 

Generation Control) and Patch Management software.

The Business Processes and the underlying computer resources were jointly evaluated by SLDC and NCIIPC 

from the point of view of identifying computer resources, the incapacitation or destruction of which may have 

a debilitating impact on National Security, National Economy, Public Health or Public Safety.

SCADA System and URTDSM System installed at SLDC Ablowal has been declared as Critical Information 
thInfrastructure (CII) by NCIIPC, New Delhi vide their letter dated. 10  June 2022. 

Govt. of Punjab, Department of Power (Energy Branch) vide their notification No. 11/29/2022-PE3 dated 

28.7.2022 has also declared Punjab SCADA System as Protected system and subsequently vide GoP gazette 

notification dtd. 23.12.2022.

Information Security Management System (ISMS) is also being implemented by ISO-27001 certification for 

Punjab SLDC, Patiala; 400KV substation Rajpura and 220KV substation Mohali-I. Regular Cyber Audits are 

also being conducted for IT & OT systems installed at SLDC.

Cyber Advisories & alerts received from NCIIPC/CERT-IN/CSK/CSIRT etc. daily are also being addressed 

to protect Critical Infrastructure installed at SLDC. Honeypots are also installed for identifying potential 

cyber threats. All critical systems at SLDC are protected by Next Generation Firewalls installed at SLDC. 

From time-to-time SLDC officers have been nominated for the cyber related trainings/ seminars/meetings 

conducted by various agencies.

Design Cell-

Implementation of Scheduling, Accounting, Metering and Settlement of Transactions (SAMAST) 

framework in Punjab:

SAMAST scheme was recommended by Forum of Regulators (FOR) for implementation by SLDCs/STUs 

under the supervision of respective State Regulatory Commissions. 

This project is currently under Implementation in Punjab. The project involves replacing old metering 

infrastructure at Grid Substations/Generating Substations with Advanced Metering Infrastructure. Punjab 

SLDC has already installed Automated Meter Reading Equipment and receiving metering data remotely from 

all Independent Power Plants/State owned Thermal Power Plants/Solar/Biomass Plants. Installation of 

metering at all 400kV/220 kV/132 kV Grid Substations and State Hydel Stations is expected to complete in 3-

4 months. Manual Meter Reading from all these stations will not be required after completion of the project 

thereby saving lots of man hours and will also improve metering accuracy. Also, the Substation 

Owner/Generator will be able to see metering data online which will enable better Generation and Grid 

Control. 

Under this project a state of the art data center has been established at Punjab State Load Dispatch Center at 

Patiala for remote meter reading and for running various software modules. Through this project all major 
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market operations related work of SLDC like Load Forecasting, Scheduling, Deviation Settlement, Energy 

Accounting, Financial Accounting and Transmission Outage Planning etc. will be done through Software 

Modules. Load Forecasting including Solar Generation Forecasting and Scheduling has already started 

through software modules. 

Providing Real Time Telemetry of Substations :

The availability of infrastructure for real time data through remote telemetry from 400 kV/220 kV/132 

kV/Generating Substations at SLDC Punjab has been improved from 86.71% in 2022 to 88.44% in 2023 

through installation of Remote Terminal Units at Grid Substations.

AWARDS

SLDC has been awarded winner in March, 2022 in Best Performing SLDC Category by IPPAI.

I.T. INITIATIVES

• AMS Software: 

 a) AMS software was enhanced to cater the demands of Accounts section by incorporating 

Centralized Payment System (CPS) by ensuring the transferring of funds directly from HO to 

beneficiary account. 

 b) In compliance to notification of Ministry of Corporate, a feature of recording Audit Trail of AMS 

has been developed and implemented in the Corporation.

 c) Development and successful implementation of Document uploading feature in AMS.

• iHRMS:

 PSTCL is in advanced stage of implementation of iHRMS which includes online Service book, online 

Salary, Increment management, Arrear Management, GPF management, Income tax Module, Leave 

Management, Annual Property Returns (APRs), Annual Confidential Reports (ACRs), Mobile App for 

employee Self Service etc.

• PSTCL Website:

 Provided the facility to upload documents to various uses and translated the various web pages on 

PSTCL website in Punjabi language.

• Successfully deployed Laptop policy in PSTCL and IT Inventory software was amended to cater the 

requirements of Laptop policy.

• Procurement of 300 laser printers: 

 Laser Printers have been procured centrally through e-tendering process for various offices of PSTCL 

all over Punjab. 
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• Upgraded GST application:

 For consuming APIs provided by Govt. of India, for creation of e-Invoice & QR code on single button 

click.

• Cyber Security:

 VAPT Audit of all the applications of PSTCL, Cyber Crisis Management Plan and other activities 

related to cyber security in PSTCL.

• One common service/API for sending SMS & Emails to various application users has been created.

• Different software applications of IT are running successfully in the Cloud environment at Punjab State 

Data (PSDC), O/o DGR, Mohali.

• Enhanced/added new features/ new Reports in the already running IT applications like GST, Store 

Management Software, Fund Management Information System, Content Management System for 

PSTCL. 

• Centralised payment system has been implemented during the FY 2022-23.

Corporate Transport Policy: 
th Amended Corporate Transport Policy has been approved by Board of Directors in its 77  Meeting held 

on 24.03.2023 and PSTCL successfully implemented the Corporate Transport Policy.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 Pursuant to Article 45 of Articles of Association of the Company, Chairman-cum-Managing Director 

and Directors are being appointed by the State Government being controlling Shareholder and their 

position as on the date of this report is as under:

CHANGES IN BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board of Directors has undergone some changes during the FY 2022-23 and 
thereafter. The following Directors have been retired/ ceased to be Directors of the Company from April, 2022 
till the date of this report:-
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Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation  

1 Sh. Tejveer Singh, IAS  Chairman-cum-Managing Director  
2

 
Sh. Ajoy Kumar Sinha, IAS

 
Nominee Director 

 3
 

Sh. Vinod Kumar Bansal
 

Director/Finance & Commercial
 4

 
Sh. Vardeep Singh Mander

 
Director/Technical

 5

 
Sh. Nem Chand

 
Director/Administration

 6

 

Sh. Anil Kaplush

 

Independent Director

 7 Sh. S.K. Arora Independent Director



The Board places on record its deep appreciation for the valuable services rendered by Sh. Venu Prasad, IAS, 
Smt. Raji Pramod Shrivastava, IAS, Smt. Isha, IAS, Sh. KAP Sinha, IAS, Sh. Ajoy Sharma, IAS, Sh. Dilip 
Kumar, IAS, Sh. Yogesh Tandon, Sh. Karanvir Singh Dhillon and Sh. Angad Kumar Aggarwal during their 
association with the Corporation. 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP) 

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 
of the Company as on the date of the report:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PSTCL believes in striving continuously towards higher levels of transparency, responsibility, accountability 
and fairness in all aspects of its operations. The Board of PSTCL believes and supports Corporate Governance 
practices of high standard, ensuring observance of these principles in all its dealings. 

BOARD MEETINGS

Total number of 6 (Six) Board meetings were held during FY 2022-23.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Corporation has the following Committees of the Board:

COMMITTEE OF WHOLE TIME DIRECTORS (WTD)

As on the date of this report, the composition of the Committee of Whole Time Directors is as under:
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Sr. 
No. 

Name of Director  Designation  Tenure  

1  Sh. A. Venu Prasad, IAS  Chairman-cum-Managing 
Director  

21.04.2021 to 31.07.2023

2
 

Smt. Raji Pramod Shrivastava, IAS
 
Woman Director

 
28.05.2018 to 03.11.2022

3
 

Smt. Isha, IAS
 

Woman Director
 

03.11.2022 to 27.07.2023
4

 
Sh. K A P Sinha, IAS

 
Nominee Director 

 
30.06.2020 to 05.07.2022

5
 

Sh. Ajoy Sharma, IAS
 

Nominee Director
 

11.07.2022 to 18.07.2022
6

 
Sh. Dilip Kumar, IAS

 
Nominee Director

 
28.01.2022 to 16.04.2022

7
 

Sh. Yogesh Tandon
 

Director/Technical
 

04.07.2020 to 03.01.2023
8

 
Sh. Karanvir Singh Dhillon

 
Director/Administration

 
02.12.2021 to 04.05.2022

9 Sh. Angad Kumar Aggarwal Independent Director 11.09.2020 to 10.09.2022

Sr. 
No. 

Name  Designation  

1 Sh. Tejveer Singh, IAS  Chairman-cum-Managing Director  
2 Sh. Vinod Kumar Bansal  Director/Finance & Commercial  
3 Sh. Vardeep Singh Mander  Director/Technical  
4 Sh. Nem Chand  Director/Administration  
5 Sh. Sudhir Kumar  Chief Financial Officer  
6 Sh. Sahil Pandey  Company Secretary  



 1. Chairman-cum-Managing Director  Chairman 

 2. Director/Finance & Commercial   Member

 3. Director/Technical  Member

 4. Director/Administration  Member 

The Committee has been assigned to review the operational areas of business and other important matters as 
assigned by the Board of Directors, the Whole Time Directors of the Company hold their meetings from time 
to time.

COMMITTEE OF BOARD (LOANS)

As on the date of this report, the composition of the Committee of Board (Loans) is as under:

 1. Chairman-cum-Managing Director  Chairman 

 2. Director/Finance & Commercial    Member

 3. Director/Technical     Member

During the period under report, the Committee held 6 (Six) meetings. The Board has authorized Committee of 
Board (Loans) to make arrangement with Financial Institutions/Banks for availing financial assistance from 
time to time as per requirement of the Corporation. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The present composition of the Audit Committee constituted pursuant to provisions of Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, up to date of this report was as under:

 1 Sh. Anil Kaplush,    Chairperson

  Independent Director 

 2 Sh. S.K. Arora,   Member

  Independent Director

 3 Director/Technical   Member

During the period under report, the Committee held 3 (Three) meetings.

CSR COMMITTEE 
thPursuant to the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with CSR Rules dated 27  

February, 2014 notified by the Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the present composition 
of CSR Committee of the Board of PSTCL as on the date of the report was as under: 

 1. Director/Administration    Chairman

 2. Sh. Anil Kaplush, Independent Director    Member

 3. Director/Technical     Member

(03) Number of meeting of CSR Committee was held during FY 2022-23. Annual Report on CSR is annexed 
as Annexure (23-26) of the report as per provision of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 
notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under, the Nomination 
and Remuneration committee constituted as on the date of the report was as under:

 Sr. No. Name  Designation

 1 Sh. Ajoy Kumar Sinha, IAS,   Member

  Nominee Director  

 2 Sh. Anil Kaplush,  Member

  Independent Director 

 3 Sh. S.K. Arora,  Member

  Independent Director 

All Directors' of PSTCL are being appointed/nominated by the Government of Punjab and their 
remuneration/terms are being regulated as per the notifications issued by Government of Punjab from time to 
time.  

COMMITTEE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with clause VII (1) of Schedule 
IV of Act, the present composition of Committee of Independent Directors of PSTCL as on the date of the 
report  was as under: 

 1. Sh. Anil Kaplush, Independent Director.

 2. Sh. S.K. Arora, Independent Director 

 

(01) number meeting of Committee of Independent Directors was held during FY 2022-23.    

AUDITORS:

a. STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s K.S. Dua & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditor, PSTCL, 11, Green View, Rajbaha 
Road, Near Garden Resort, Patiala were the Statutory Auditors of the Corporation for FY 2022-23 under 

st
section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 to audit the accounts of the Corporation for the year ended 31  
March, 2023. 

b. COST AUDITORS

M/s Reema Arya & Co., Patiala were the Cost Auditors of the Corporation appointed by the Board under 
section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder to conduct the Cost 
Audit of Cost Records of PSTCL for FY 2022-23. Your Corporation has re-appointed M/s Reema Arya 
& Co., Patiala, as Cost Auditors for FY 2023-24.

c. SECRETARIAL  AUDITOR

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, M/s Shweta Aggarwal 
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& Associates, Practicing Company Secretary, Ghaziabad was appointed Secretarial Auditors of the 
Corporation for FY 2022-23 to conduct Secretarial Audit of Records and Documents.

REPLIES OF THE MANAGEMENT ON THE QUALIFICATIONS IN THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

The replies of the management on the comments of the report of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India 
are given in the Annexure (Page 81-83) to this Report.

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Cost Records of the Company for FY 2022-23 have been maintained as specified under sub section (1) of 
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The report of the Secretarial Auditor is as per Annexure (Page 27-30). No explanations/comments relating to 
the qualifications, reservations or remarks made by the auditors in their report. 

SECRETARIAL  STANDARDS  AND  ITS  COMPLIANCE

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, your company has been complying 
with the provisions of applicable secretarial standards (SS-I and SS-II) with respect to Board meetings and 
General meetings as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

EXTRACT  OF  ANNUAL  RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is given in Annexure (Page 31-40).

PARTICULARS  OF  THE  EMPLOYEES

The Corporation did not employ any such person whose particulars are required to be given under Rule 5(2) 
and (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Management Personnel) Rules 2014.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 22 OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual 
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal 
Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. 
The Company strives to provide a safe and conducive work environment and to redress complaints received 
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under 
this policy.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNING  AND  OUTGO

Information relating to the provisions of section 134(3)(m)of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules there under 
in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo is as under:

19

th13  Annual Report 2022-23 PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED



 A.  Conservation of Energy: 

   PSTCL is a transmission utility however keeping in view the conservation of energy, PSTCL 
organization is going to install solar rooftop plants (approx. 1699 KW) at their 220KV substations 
for their own use. 

 B.  Technology Absorption:

  1. PSTCL has taken various steps to adopt various technologies absorption like OPGW optical 
Ground wire, HYBRID/GIS switchgear technology, ERS technology etc. 

  2. Maintenance/Hot points are being attend in Online Mode by using Hot line techniques without 
taking shutdowns and High Temperature Low Sag conductor at 220 KV Rajpura-Gobindgarh-I ckt 
1 & 2 to increase the reliability of power transmission system. 

  3. Damaged ICT at 400KV Nakodar was replaced with new ICT of 500MVA jointly by P&M and 
Grid Construction organization before the commencement of Paddy season. This helped in 
obtaining increased ATC/TTC limits. 

 C.  Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo

   Total Foreign Exchange earnings  : Nil

   Total Foreign Exchange outgo  : Nil

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Corporation has not accepted any deposits covered under chapter V of the 
Companies Act, 2013, from the public.

RELATED  PARTY  TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, there were no contract or arrangements entered in to by the Company in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, as per Indian 
Accounting Standard 24, "Related Party Disclosures" is given at note 55 of the financial statements.

CHANGE  IN  THE  NATURE  OF  BUSINESS,  IF  ANY

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

VIGIL  MECHANISM  POLICY

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, your company has in place Vigil 
Mechanism Policy for Directors and employees of the Corporation to report their genuine concerns or 
grievances about unethical behavior, actual or suspect fraud or violation of Companies Code of Conduct or 
Ethics Policy. The policy provides adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors 
who express their concerns. The detailed Vigil Mechanism Policy is available on PSTCL website named 
www.pstcl.org

VENDOR  DEVELOPMENT  POLICY

The Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited (hereinafter call ‘the Corporation’ has been facing delay 
in delivery of equipment from most of the suppliers for various reasons which have affected the progress of 
transmission works. Thus, there is a need to widen the supplier base to deal with such problems.  With a view 
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to develop and promote new vendors for getting faster deliveries of equipment/materials at competitive rates, 
it is considered necessary to give opportunity to the manufacturers of the equipment/material by way of 
relaxation criteria of qualifying operating experience. The relaxation of qualifying criteria shall only be 
limited to operating experience of the new vendors without diluting the technical specifications and standards 
which will be applicable to all suppliers. This Vendors Development Policy has been framed by the 
Corporation to encourage new vendors to participate in the tender of the Corporation with due safeguard of 
the interest of the Corporation.

RISK  MANAGEMENT 

There is a continuous process of identifying/ managing risks through a Risk Management Process. The 
measures used in managing the risks are reviewed from time to time. The risks identified by the Company 
broadly fall in the categories of operational risk, regulatory risk and financial & accounting risk. The risk 
management process consists of risk identification, risk assessment, risk monitoring & risk mitigation. 
During the year, measures were taken for minimization of risks and the Board was informed from time to 
time. In the opinion of the Board, none of the said risks which have been identified may threaten the existence 
of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE 
AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

No material changes and commitments have been occurred, which affect the financial position of the 
Company between the end of  FY 2022-23 and to the date of report.  

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY'S 
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no such orders passed by any authority which will impact the going concern status and company's 
operations in future. 

NAMES OF THE COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME / CEASED TO BE SUBSIDIARIES, 
JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR

The Company did not have any subsidiary Company during the year under review. No company has become / 
ceased to be subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company during the year under report.

DIRECTORS'  RESPONSIBILITY  STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation obtained by them, 
yours Directors make the following statements in terms of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013:

(a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
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company at the end of the financial year and of the profit & loss of the Company for that period.

(c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were considered to be adequate and operating effectively.

st
(e) The Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31 , 2023 had been prepared on a going 

concern basis.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Board of Directors acknowledge and  place on record their appreciation for the continuing support and 
co-operation extended by the Government of Punjab, particularly the Department of Power, Finance 
Department, Punjab State Power Corporation Limited, Punjab State Electricity Regulatory Commission, 
Government of India, Central Electricity Authority, Central Electricity Regulatory Commission and other 
agencies at the central and State level without whose active support the achievement by the Corporation 
would not have been possible.

 

The Corporation is also thankful to the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, Statutory Auditors, Cost 
Auditor and Secretarial Auditor for their constructive suggestions and co-operation.
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          For and on behalf of the Board

            Sd/-
Place : Chandigarh        (Tejveer  Singh, IAS)
Date  : 31-08-2023                 Chairman-cum-Managing Director 
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPESONSIBILITY FOR FY 2022-23 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of PSTCL:

 The Policy has been formulated in reference to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014 notified by the 

thGovernment of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated February, 27  2014. As per the 
provision of Companies Act, the CSR Policy of PSTCL was formulated on 27.03.2014.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR 
committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 
board are disclosed on the website of the company.

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects 
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies 

 (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) 
 Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

5. Details of the amount available for set off
  in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 

(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and 
amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

Annexure-A

http://pstcl.org/CSR/CSR Policy PSTCL.pdf

NA

NA

Sl. No.  Financial Year  Amount available for set - off 
from preceding financial years 
(in Rs.) 

Amount required to be set -off for 
the financial year, if any (in Rs.)  

Sl. 
No. 

Name of Director Designation/ Nature of Directorship Number of 
meetings of 
CSR 
Committee 
held during 
the  year 

Number of 
meetings of 
CSR 
Committee 
attended 
during the 
year 

1. 
 

 

Chairman of CSR Committee 
(Director/Administration, PSTCL) 

1 1 Sh. Karanvir Singh 
Dhillon (Period from 
02.12.2021 to 
04.05.2022)

 

Chairman of CSR Committee Sh. Vinod Kumar Bansal
(Director/Administration, PSTCL)

2 2 

2. Er. Yogesh Tandon

Er. Vardeep Singh Mander

 Member of CSR Committee

Member of CSR Committee

 
(Director/Technical, PSTCL)

(Director/Technical, PSTCL) 

3

0

 3

0

 

 

 

3. Er. Anil Kaplush Member of CSR Committee   
(Independent Director, PSTCL) 

3 3 
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6. (a)  (i) Turnover (Rs.) - 2022-23 = 15,94,42,54,094 
      (ii) Net Worth (Rs.) - 2022-23  =  12,87,42,68,503 

    (b)  Net profits for the last three financial years:

7. Average net profit of the company for the last three financial years i.e. 2019-20, 2020-21 & 2021-22, as 
defined in explanation to section 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013 Rs. 65,57,50,626/-(Profit).

8. (a)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) – Rs. 1,31,15,013/-

 (b)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects
       or programmes or activities of the previous financial years. -----NA-----

  (c)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any -----NA-----

  (d)  Total CSR obligation for the financial year (8a+8b+8c). Rs. 1,31,15,013/-

9. (a)  CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

(b)    Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

Financial year ended  31st  March, 2020  31st  March, 2021  31st  March, 2022
Profits/(Loss) before tax 
(Rs.) as per financial 
statement  

32,30,25,943  
(Loss)  

15,40,83,136  
(Profit)  

2,13,61,94,685
(Profit)  

Computation of Net 
profit(Loss) u/s 198 adjusted 
as per rule 2(1)(f) of the 
Companies (CSR Policy) 
Rules, 2014 (Rs.)

 
1,96,72,51,878 (Profit)  

 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
Financial 
Year. (in Rs.)  

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)  
Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 
section 135(6)  

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule  VII as per second proviso to 
section 135(5)  

Amount.  Date of 
transfer.  

Name of the 
Fund  

Amount.  Date of 
transfer.  

1,31,15,013 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

(1)  (2)  (3)  (4)  (5)  (6)  (7)  (8)  (9)  (10)  (11)
Sl. 
No.

 

Name of the 
Project.

 

Item 
from the 
list of 
activities 
in 
Schedule 
VII to 
the Act.

 

Local 
area 
(Yes/No)

 

Location of the 
project.

 

Project 
duration.

 

Amount 
allocated 
for the 
project 
(in Rs.)

 

Amount 
spent in 
the 
current 
financial 
Year (in 
Rs.)

 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
for the 
project as 
per Section 
135(6) (in 
Rs.)

 

Mode of 
Implementation 
–

 

Direct
 (Yes/No)

Mode of 
Implementation-
Through 
Implementing 
Agency

    

State

 

District

      

Name CSR 
Registration 
number

-----------------------NIL------------------------------
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(c)    Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

 (d)     Amount spent in Administrative Overheads -----NA------

 (e)     Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable ------NA-------
                                           
 (f)     Total amount spent for the Financial Year      Rs. 1,31,15,013/-
           (9b+9c+9d+9e)
                                      
 (g)     Excess amount for set off, if any

(1)  (2)  (3)  (4)  (5)  (6)  (7)  (8)  
Sl. 
No.  

Name of the 
Project  

Item 
from the 
list of 
activities 
in 
schedule 
VII to 
the Act.

 

Local 
area 
(Yes/No)  

Location of the 
project  

Amount spent 
for the project 
(in Rs.)  

Mode of 
implementation 
Direct  
(Yes/No)  

Mode of 
implementation-
Through 
implementing 
agency.

State
 

District
 

Name CSR 
registration 
number.

1
 

Provision of 
interactive Flat 
Panels in 
91nos. schools 
of District 
Education 
offices of 
9nos. Districts.

 

Item 
No. (ii) 

 

NO
 
Punjab

 
9nos. 
Districts

 

1,31,00,000/-
 (Transferred 

to respective 
DEOs of the 
district vide 
transaction 
no. 
214491492)

 

Yes
 

 

-----NA-----

 

2

 

Providing 
uniforms to 
poor girl's 
student of 
SDSK Govt. 
School, Patiala 
(60nos. 
dresses)

Item 
No. (ii) 

 

Yes

 

Punjab

 

Patiala

 

15013/-

 

Yes

 

-----NA----

 

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)  

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as 
per section 135(5)  

1,31,15,013  

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year  1,31,15,013  

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]  NIL  

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes 
or activities of the previous financial years, if any  

NIL  

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 
years [(iii)-(iv)  

NIL  

25

th13  Annual Report 2022-23 PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED



  (b)   Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 
 year(s):

11. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or 
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).

12. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5). ----NA-----

10. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. 
No.  

Preceding 
Financial 
Year  

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account 
under section 
135(6) (in 
Rs.)  

Amount 
spent in the 
reporting 
Financial 
Year (in Rs.)  

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as  per 
section 135(6), if any.  

 
 

Amount 
remaining 
to be spent 
in 
succeeding 
financial 
years. (in 
Rs.)

Name of the 
Fund  

Amount (in 
Rs.)  

Date of 
transfer  

------------------------------------------NA-------------------------------------------
 

(1)  (2)  (3)  (4)  (5)  (6)  (7)  (8)  (9)
Sl. 
No.  

Project ID.  Name of the 
Project.  

Financial 
Year in which 
the project 
was 
commenced.  

Project 
duration.  

Total Amount 
allocated for 
the project (in 
Rs.)  

Amount spent 
on the project 
in the reporting 
Financial Year 
(in Rs.)  

Cumulative 
amount spent at 
the end of 
reporting 
Financial Year  (in 
Rs.)  

Status of the 
project

 
Completed/ 
Ongoing

------------------------------------------NA-------------------------------------------  

(a)  Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).   
 
         ---------NA----------  

(b)  Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital 
asset.  

(c)  Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under 
whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.  

(d)  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired 
(including complete address and location of the capital asset).

 

       Sd/-
Chairman CSR Committee PSTCL
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

ST
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31  MARCH, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule

No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited
PSEB, HEAD OFFICE THE MALL, 
PATIALA-147001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited. (hereinafter called the company). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby 

st report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31
March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder except which is mentioned in Annexure A 
and also that the Company has proper Board-process and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter  

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
stPunjab State Transmission Corporation Limited (“The Company”) for the financial year ended on 31  March, 

2023 according to the provisions of following laws as applicable:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;.
(ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under;
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
 extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial borrowings 
(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India  
 Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

 a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable on the Company during the Audit Period)

 b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; (Not 
Applicable on the Company during the Audit Period)

 c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable on the Company during the Audit Period)
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 d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not Applicable on the Company during the Audit Period)

 e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,  2008; 
(Not Applicable on the Company during the Audit Period)

 f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not Applicable on the 
Company during the Audit Period)

 g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and (Not 
Applicable on the Company during the Audit Period)

 h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,1998; (Not 
Applicable on the Company during the Audit Period)

(vi) The other law as may be applicable specifically in case of the Company on the basis of documents/information 
produce before us:

List of Major Applicable Act:-

Tax and Revenue Related
a).  Income Tax Act,  Act1962,
c).  Goods and Service Tax Act,
b).  Indian Stamp Act, 1999

we further report that the above-mentioned Tax and Revenue related law are reviews by Statutory Auditor we have 
rely on his report

Women’s Safety Related
 a) Sexual Harassment of  Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

Factory & Labour Laws Related
 a) Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970.
 b) Factories Act, 1948
 c) Industrial Dispute Act, 1947
 d) Minimum Wages Act, 1948
 e) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
 f) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
 g) Payment of wages Act, 1936
 h) Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
 i) Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 and rules thereunder
 j) Indian Trust Act, 1882 created for PF purposes for its employees

Environmental Related
 a) The Water (Prevention & Control of  Pollution ) Act, 1974
 b)  The Air (Prevention & Control of  Pollution ) Act, 1981
 c)  The Explosive Act & Rules for storing fuel /Petrol and Diesel for Generators.
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 d) The Environmental Protection Act, 1980 read with various rules for Handling Air, Solid, Liquid,  
  Electronic waste

Electricity Related Law
 a) The Electricity Act, 2003

DPE Guidelines (As applicable on Government Company)

We have also examined compliance with applicable clause of the following:
 (i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
 (ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s), if applicable; Not  
  Applicable on the Company during the Audit Period)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except observation as stated below.

We further report that:-

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

Note: This report is to be read with our ANNEXURE-A of even date which are annexed and forms an integral part 
of this 

    
         For Shweta Aggarwal & Associates 

Place: Ghaziabad         Sd/-
Date: 25.07.2023            (Shweta Aggarwal) FCS
          M.No. 10673
           COP No. 14715
         UDIN: F010673E000674908

29

th13  Annual Report 2022-23 PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED



To,
The Members,
Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited
PSEB, HEAD OFFICE THE MALL, 
PATIALA-147001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  

 1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

 2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis 

to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process and practice, 

we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

 3. We presume that the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 

Company has been ascertained by statutory Auditors of the Company.

 4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of event etc.

 5. The Compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules regulations, standard is 

the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification procedures on test 

basis.

 6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the viability of the Company nor of the 

efficacy and effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affair of the Company.

         For  Shweta Aggarwal & Associates

Place : Ghaziabad        Sd/-
Date : 25.07.2023       (Shweta Aggarwal, FCS)
          M. No. 10673
          COP No. 14715
                    UDIN : F010673E000674908

‘ANNEXURE-A’
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Annexure - E

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

st
as on the Financial Year ended on 31  March, 2023

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 
12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.    REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

i CIN U40109PB2010SGC033814 
 

ii Registration Date 16.04.2010 
 

iii Name of the Company
 

PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION 
LIMITED

 
 iv Category / Sub-Category of the 

Company  

 

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES/ PUNJAB 
GOVERNMENT COMPANY

 
 v Address of the Registered office 

and contact details  

 

PSEB, Head Office, The Mall, Patiala

 vi Whether listed company

 

Unlisted

 
 

vii Name, Address and Contact 
details of Registrar and Transfer 
Agent, if any  

Not Applicable

 

SL. 
No. 

Name and Description of main 
products / services  

NIC Code of the 
Product/ service  

% to total turnover of the 
company  

 
1 Transmission of Electric Energy 

 
35107

 
100

 

SL. 
No. 

NAME AND 
ADDRESS OF 
THE COMPANY  

CIN/GLN  HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY/ 
ASSOCIATE  

% of 
shares 
held  

 

Applicable Section  

NOT APPLICABLE 
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

    
i)     Category-wise Share Holding
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(ii)  SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS
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Sr. No. 2 to 25 are/were nominees of Government of Punjab.

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and 
       Holders of GDRs and ADRs):  

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
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Note: *  Sh. Angad Kumar Aggarwal had been appoined as Independent Director on the Board of  
PSTCL by the State Government on 11.09.2020 and his tenure was completed on  
10.09.2022.

 **  State Government has appointed Sh. S.K. Arora as Independent Director on the Board of 
PSTCL on 06.10.2022.

Note: *  Tenure of Sh. Parveen Kumar Singla, CFO was completed on 12.08.2022.
 **  Sh. Sudhir Kumar has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of PSTCL on 

25.08.2022.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members,
Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited
Patiala.

Report on Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION 
CORPORATION LIMITED, PATIALA (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of Cash 
Flow and the statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "Ind AS Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 
133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2023, its financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended 
on that date.

Basis for  Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report but 
does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash 
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true  and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Director’s are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
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sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Emphasis of Matter

1. The stock of material at stores as well as at sites has not been insured to reduce the risk due to fire, theft or 
natural calamities.

2. PSERC through its Tariff order for FY 2023-24 has allowed Revenue Gap of Rs.97.53 crore in the review for 
FY 2022-23 over the earlier allowed Tariff for FY 2022-23. This has been accounted for in FY 2022-23 as per 
accounting policy.

3. Services to/from PSPCL like rent of Offices, rent of colonies etc. is not accounted for in the books of 
accounts up to date. In the absence of information we are unable to ascertain the effect on statement of profit 
& loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) and balance Sheet.

4. Capital Reserve includes an amount of Rs. 16.29 crore, being material cost variance on account of notional 
cost of “stores incidental charges” capitalized to capital Work in progress, which accumulated from 
16.04.2010 onwards and aggregates to Rs.16.29 cr. till 31.03.2015.
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Sr. No. GH Name of
Accounting Unit

LC Name of Parties Amount (In  )

1. 28.810
Grid Construction Circle, 
Ludhiana

 

782 M/s Alcon Wires 77,831.00

2.

 

28.810

 

Grid Construction Circle, 
Ludhiana

 

782

 

M/s Andrew Yule 
Madras

 

25,321.00

 

3.

 

28.868

 

P&M Division Kapurthala

 

604

 

Surjit Singh, LDC

 

31,315.00

 

4.

 

28.868

 

P&M Division Ablowal

 

642

 

Gratuity Court case

 

3,86,178.00

 

5.

 

28.868

 

P&M Division Ropar

 

658

 

Manjeet Singh, SSO

 

98,787.00

 

6.

 

28.868

 

P&M Division 

 

Wadala Granthian

 

663

 

Gurdeep Singh, JE

 

16,499.00

 

7.

 

28.868

 

TLSC Circle, Patiala

 

781

 

Balwant Singh, JE

 

22,73,592.00

 

8.

 

28.919

 

COC Patiala

 

224

 

Prem Kumar Kochar

 

19,287.00

 

 

Total

 

29,28,810.00

 

5. As per Amended Transfer Scheme 2012, PSTCL has to pay 11.36% share of terminal benefits payable to 
employees as per Punjab Power Sector Reforms Transfer (1st Amendment) Scheme 2012. No provision has 
been made in the books of accounts of PSTCL to the extent of PSTCL's share of progressive funding being 
11.36% of actuarial liability on account of terminal liability. PSTCL has accounted for terminal liability on 
the principle of a 'Pay as you go' basis amounting to Rs. 502.54 crore being 11.36% of total amount as 
intimated by PSPCL for FY 2022-23. It includes Rs. 1100.57 lacs difference of share of FY 2021-22 between 
accounted for and the final share intimated by PSPCL after the finalization of accounts of PSPCL. No 
provision has been made on account of PSTCL share for progressive funding as per Punjab Power Reforms 
Transfer (First Amendment) Scheme 2012. The share of PSTCL based on Actuarial Valuation is yet to be 
finalized by PSPCL for the year ended 31.03.2023.

6. As per Para 16 and 18 of the Ind AS-16 read with Para 45 of the Ind AS-37, the Company was required to 
provide the present value of the expenditure expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing the 
property plant & equipment’s (PPE) at the end of its useful life and restoring the site on which it was located. 
However, the Company has neither made any estimates nor disclosed any facts in this regard in the financial 
statements. Resultantly, PPE and non-current liabilities are understated. However, in the absence of 
financial estimates, the financial impact of the same could not be ascertained.

7. As per Para 26 of Ind AS 105, If an entity has classified an asset (or disposal group) as held for sale, but the 
criteria in paragraphs 7–9 are no longer met, the entity shall cease to classify the asset (or disposal group) as 
held for sale. The company has classified the Transformer at Mandi Gobingarh as Held for sale in the 
previous FY 2021-22, but no action has been taken for the sale of the same. As per Ind AS 105, if there is a 
change in the plan to sale then the entity shall cease to classify the asset as held for sale.

8. There is a balance of Trade Receivables amounting to Rs.518.00 Crores, subject to confirmation. So, we 
cannot comment on the existence of such receivables.

9. PSTCL has incurred the expenditure as per Sec 135 of The Companies Act, 2013 amounting to Rs. 131.00 
Lakhs for educational purposes. But due to the non-availability of records, we cannot comment upon the 
justification of the expenditure incurred.

10. As per our opinion the company should write off those entries from the following which are unrecoverable:
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. In terms of sub section 5 of section 143 of the Companies Act 2013, we give in the “Annexure B” a 
statement on the directions issued under the aforesaid section by the Comptroller and auditor general of 
India.

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

 b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

 c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 
statement of Cash Flow and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account.

 d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 as amended;

 e) In view of exemption given vide notification no. G.S.R. 463 (E) dated June 5, 2015 issued by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, provisions of Section 164(2) of the Act regarding disqualification of Directors, 
are not applicable to the company. 

 f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

 g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us;

  i. The Company does not have any pending litigations other than those disclosed in financial 
statements which would impact its Ind AS financial Position.

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the 
question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

  iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the company.

  iv.  (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to 
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or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

    (ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other  than as  
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

   (iii) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement.

  v.  No dividend has been declared and paid by the company during the year.

 h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of Act, As per notification no. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, Section 197 is not applicable to the 
Government Companies.

 For K.S. Dua & Co.
 Chartered Accountants
 Firm Regn.No.017478N

  Sd/-
 [CA.Swarn Singh Dhillon] 
 Partner          
 M.No. 527610         Place: Patiala
 UDIN: 223527610BGVYTT1469      Date : 26.06.2023
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“ANNEXURE-A” TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

(i) 

 (a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including Quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment except for the Property, Plant & Equipment 
transferred on 16.04.2010 pursuant to the transfer scheme notified by the State Government which is 
in process.Further, submitted that the capital loans have been availed by PSTCL from banks/financial 
institutions secured against hypothecation of future assets. Hence capital assets created out of capital 
loans being availed from banks/financial institutions are not free from encumbrances.

  (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

 (b) As per information and explanation given fixed assets have been physically verified by the 
management during the year.According to the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 (c) As informed to us, the title deeds of immovable properties amounting to Rs. 2925 Crore procured 
before 16.04.2010 are not mutated in the name of the company but the ownership of such assets 
accrued to company by operation of law through Transfer scheme notified by Punjab Government on 
24.12.2012. The said title deeds are available with PSPCL (as the Estate office of erstwhile PSEB 
which is now functioning under PSPCL after unbundling and is the custodian of such title deeds). 
Further, title deeds of immovable properties acquired by the company after 16.04.2010 are either in 
the name of the company or on operating lease from different Panchayats, agreements of which are 
available with the company. 

  Based on our examination of the copies of registered sale deeds, transfer deed, conveyance deed 
provided to us, the title deeds of immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements included 
under property plant and equipment are held in the name of the company as at the balance sheet date 
other than as mentioned below: -

 (d) The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during 
the year.

 (e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at 31st  
March 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 
(45 of 1988) and rules made there under.
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(ii) (a)  The inventory in the custody of the company has been physically verified during the year by the 
 management. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable, and procedures and 
 coverage as followed by the management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on 
 verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the  
  aggregate for each class of inventory.

  

  (b)  The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, 
 from Banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the 
 company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

(iii) The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to any companies, firms or other parties 
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, 
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of Section 185 and 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amount deemed to be deposits from the public. Hence 
reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

(vi) As informed to us, the company has maintained Cost records prescribed by the Central Government under 
sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act.

(vii) (a)  According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the  
 books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed 
 statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, 
 Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, GST, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, 
Cess  and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the 
information and  explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in 
arrears as at  March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become 
payable .

 (b)   According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, 
 service tax, GST, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax outstanding on account of any  
 dispute except the disputed Entry Tax of Rs. 38.16 crore and Service Tax liability of Rs. 1.50 crore.  
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 Reference may be made to Note No. 43 to Notes to Accounts.

(viii) 

(ix) (a)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company has not 
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 
lender

         (b)  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority

        (c)  The Company has utilised the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes 
for which they were obtained.

        (d)  On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, funds raised on short term 
basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long term purposes by the company.

        (e)  The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture and accordingly the reporting 
under clause 3 (ix) (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable.

(x) (a)  The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year and hence the reporting under clause 3 (ix) (a) of the Order is not 
applicable.

 (b)   During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) and hence the reporting under 
clause 3(x) (b) of the Order is not applicable

(xi) (a)  Considering the principle of materiality outlined in the standards on auditing, no fraud by the 
Company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

       (b)  No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors 
in Form ADT as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

     (c)  As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the 
company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting under the clause 3 (xii) (a) to (c) of the Order 
is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of 
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the 
applicable Indian accounting standards.

(xiv) In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. However the Internal Audit for the year is still in process so this clause is not commented upon.

(xv) The company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its 
directors and hence the provisions of the section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
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company.

(xvi) (a)  The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934 and accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a)-(b) of the Order is not applicable.

 (b)  The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (c) of the Order is not applicable.

 (c) The Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not 
applicable.

(xvii)  The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year and accordingly 
this clause is not applicable.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that 
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date. We however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts upto the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

For K.S. Dua & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn.No.017478N

         Sd/-

[CA.Swarn Singh Dhillon] 

Partner           

M.No. 527610          Place : Patiala

UDIN: 223527610BGVYTT1469        Date : 26.06.2023
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1. Whether the company has system in place to 

process all the accounting transactions through IT 

system? If yes, the implications of processing of 

accounting transactions outside IT system on the 

integrity of the accounts along with the financial 

implications, if any, may be stated.

2. Whether there are any restructuring of an existing 

loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/ 

loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company 

due to the company’s inability to repay the loan? If 

yes, the financial implication may be stated. 

3. Whether funds received/receivable for specific 

schemes from Central/State agencies were properly 

accounted for/utilized as per its terms and 

conditions? List the cases of deviation.

4. Adequacy of steps to prevent encroachment of idle 

land owned by company may be examined. In case 

land of the company is encroached, under litigation, 

not put to use or declared surplus, details may be 

provided.

The accounting transactions are processed through 

IT system. 

No. There is no case of restructuring of an existing 

loan  or  cases  of  waiver /wr i te -off  of  

debts/loans/interest etc. made by the lenders to 

PSTCL due to company’s inability to repay the 

loan.

Yes, funds (Grants/Subsidy) received/receivable 

for specific schemes from Central/State agencies 

were properly accounted for/utilized as per its 

terms and conditions.

DirectionsSr. No. Reply

“Annexure-B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
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Adequate steps are being taken to prevent the 

encroachment of idle land. The details of the land 

encroached and action taken are as under:

(a) The land of 16 Marlas of 220 KV S/s 

Hoshiarpur under P&M Division, Mahilpur 

was occupied by Gurudwara Dukh Niwaran 

Sahib, Hoshairpur. Case has been decided in 

favour of PSTCL by SDM. Now Case is 

pending in  Hon’ble Punjab & Haryana High 

Court.

(b) Municipal Corporation, Hoshiarpur has  

illegally made 11 feet road by encroaching 

land at 220 KV S/s Hoshiarpur  under P&M 

Division, Mahilpur.  Civil Suit 314/2020 is 

pending with Distt. Court Hoshiarpur.

(c) PSTCL’s Advocate Sh. Sukhwinder Singh 

Sandhu is following the case in court for 

taking the possession of land at 132 KV Shri 

Hargobindpur  from some illegal occupiers 

who have encroached the land of PSTCL.



(d) 220  KV S/s  Katorewala was constructed on 

the land of Gram panchayat that was given  

by  Gram  panchayat by passing the 

resolution on dated 12.10.2009 for 

construction of the Grid Sub-station, But 

now Gram Panchayat is demanding back its 

ownership vide Civil Suit No. 111 of 2021 

(Gram panchayat v/s PSTCL & others) is 

pending with the court.

(e) 132 KV S/s Pathankot - A piece of land 

measuring 2515.5 sq ft under encroachment 

and this issue is under litigation at Punjab & 

Haryana  High  Cour t  Chandigarh .  

Department won this case of possession of 

land at district court Pathankot but 

encroacher naming Bakhtawar Gill case RSA 

No 4653 of 2013 titled Bakhtawar Gil V/S 

PSEB & Others at Punjab & Haryana High 

Court Chandigarh which is under trial and its 

next hearing is fixed on dated 14/09/23.  

(f) 132 KV S/s Verka - The construction has 

been started on khasra no 508, 509, 512 by 

Mr. Arun Khanna S/o of Mr. Jeevan Khanna 

and Mr. Sandeep S/o Mr. Mohan singh due to 

illegal occupation: Against this occupation, 

PSTCL has filed Civil Suit No. 1157/22 

Dated 26/04/22 and next hearing is on 

03/08/23.

(g) 132 KV S/s Verka - The khasra no 559,560 

was claimed by Mr. Raghav Mahajan in the 

court of Sub-Divisional Magistrate. Against 

this, appeal 13/2021 dated 27/10/21 has been 

filed by PSTCL which is pending with D.C 

Amritsar.

(h) 132 KV S/s Bhikhiwind – Suit for permanent 

injunction of approximately 13 marla land of 

S/s Bhikhiwind has been filed by Sh.Sukhpal 

Singh S/o Harbhajan singh falsely claiming 

to be in possession of the above said land. 
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Division Office has submitted reply in 

rebuttal. The Court case no. LAQ/1/2019 at 

the hon’ble court of Civil Judge Junior 

Division, Patti and next date of hearing is on 

05.07.2023.

(i) 220 KV S/s  Naraingarh - Case No. RSA 

3607/14 has been filed in 2014 against 

Sardool singh and his companion. Next date 

of hearing is 23.08.2023 at Punjab and 

Haryana High Court.

(j) 220 KV S/s  Naraingarh - Case No. RSA 

2160/14 has been filed in 2014 against 

Gurmej Singh Village-Gumanpura. Next 

date of hearing is 23.08.2023 at Punjab and 

Haryana High Court.

(k) 220 KV S/s  Naraingarh - Case No. RSA 

2213/16 has been filed in 2016 against 

Gurmej Singh S/o Mohan Singh and Ajit 

Singh S/o Sardool Singh. Next date of 

hearing is 23.08.2023 at Punjab and Haryana 

High Court.

(l) 220 KV S/s  Naraingarh - Case No.   RSA-

216/2017 has been filed in 2017 against 

Amrik Singh S/o Sardul Singh. Next date of 

hearing is 04.10.2023 at Punjab and Haryana 

High Court.

5. Where land acquisition is involved in setting up 

new projects, report whether settlement of dues 

done expeditiously and in a transparent manner in 

all cases. The cases of deviation may please be 

detailed.

6. Whether the company has an effective system for 

recovery of revenue as per contractual terms and 

the revenue is properly accounted for in the books 

of accounts in compliance with the applicable 

Accounting Standards? 

Yes

Yes, the company has an effective system for 

recovery of revenue as per contractual terms and 

the revenue is properly accounted for in the books 

of accounts in compliance with the applicable 

Accounting Standards.

7. How much cost has been incurred on abandoned 

projects and out of this how much cost has been 

written off?

There is no abandoned project during the year 

2022-23.
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8. Is the system of evacuation of power commensurate 

with power available for transmission with the 

generating company? If not, loss, if any, claimed by 

the generating company may be commented.

Yes, the system of evacuation of power 

commensurate with power available for 

transmission with generating company.

9. How much transmission loss in excess of 

prescribed norms has been incurred during the year 

and whether the same been properly accounted for 

in the books of accounts?

The transmission loss from April 2022 to March 
2023 is 2.27%. PSERC had fixed transmission loss 
of 2.44% provisionally for FY 2022-23 in the Tariff 
Order for FY 2023-24. The actual loss/gain will be 
accounted for in the year in which it attains finality.

10. Whether the assets constructed and completed on 

behalf of other agencies and handed over to them 

has been properly accounted for in the financial 

statements.

Yes.
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“ANNEXURE C” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of PUNJAB STATE 
TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED, PATIALA (“the Company”) as on March 31, 2023 in 
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
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assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and 

(3)  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2023 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For  K.S. Dua & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm  Regn. No. 017478N

    Sd/-
[CA. Swarn Singh Dhillon] 
Partner           
M.No. 527610          Place: Patiala
UDIN: 223527610BGVYTT1469        Date : 26.06.2023
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Compliance Certificate

We have conducted the audit of accounts of Punjab State Transmission 

Corporation Limited for the year ended 31st March 2023 in accordance with the 

directions/sub-directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of lndia 

under Section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and certify that we have 

complied with all the  directions/ sub-directions issued to us.

For K.S. Dua & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn.No.017478N

               Sd/-

[CA.Swarn Singh Dhillon] 

Partner                                                                                                               

M.No. 527610                                                                                                     

UDIN: 223527610BGVYTT1469 
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H.O. : 11, Green View, Rajbaha Road, Patiala - 147001
B.O. : SCO-64, 2nd Floor, New Leela Bhawan, Patiala-147001

    
Cell   :  094633 - 41980
Off    :  090412 - 01442

Chartered Accountants
K.S. Dua & Co.

e-mail: ksduaca@gmail.com

Place: Patiala

Date : 26.06.2023
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;koDhnK, fi; ftZu 31 wkou 2023 B{z p?b?A; PhN, T[d'A \sw j'J/ ;kb bJh bkG ns/ jkBh ;koDh (;w/s j'o 

ft;fsqs nkwdB), Bedh gqtkj ;koDh s/ fJe[nNh ftZu spdhbh dh ;koDh ns/ wjZstg{oB b/yk BhshnK s/ j'o 

ftnkfynkswe ;{uBk dk ;koKP (nZr/ fJ;dh EK s/ “fJzv J/Hn?;H ftZsh ;koDhnK” ti'A T[b/y ehsk frnk j?)  

Pkwb j?, dh gVskb eo bJh j?.

 ;kvh okJ/ ns/ ;kvh ;G s'A uzrh ikDekoh nB[;ko ns/ ;kB{z fdZs/ rJ/ ;gPNheoBK nB[;ko, g{ot efEs ftZsh 

;koDhnK ezgBhI n?eN, 2013 (‘‘n?eN’’) dh b'V nB[;ko T[j ;{uBk fdzd/ jB fi; o{g ftZu fJj b'VhAdh j? ns/ 

n?eN dh Xkok 133 nXhB T[fbfys Gkosh b/yk fwnko Bkb gVQ/ ezgBhI (Gkosh b/yk fwnko) o{bI, 2015 ns/ 

Gkos ftZu nkw s"o s/ ;thfeqs b/yk f;XKsK nB[;ko fwsh 31 wkou 2023 B{z ezgBh d/ eko^ftjko dh ;fEsh, T[; 

fwsh B{z \sw j'J/ ;kb bJh fJ;dk ftZsh gqdoPB ;w/s j'o ft;fsqs nkwdB, fJ;d/ Bedh gqtkj ns/ fJe[nNh 

ftZu spdhbh dk tk;sfte ns/ tkIp fdqP fdzd/ jB.

Pos ;fjs okJ/ bJh nkXko

 n;hA nkgDh gVskb dk ;zukbB ezgBhI n?eN 2013 dh Xkok 143(10) nXhB gVskb T[~s/ fBPfus fwnkoK 

(n?;HJ/I) d/ nB[;ko ehsk j?. T[jBK fwnkoK nXhB ;kvhnK I[zw/tkohnK dh j'o ftnkfynk ;kvh fog'oN d/ ft~sh 

;koDhnK dh gVskb bJh gVskbeko dhnK I[zw/tkohnK Gkr ft~u ehsh rJh j?. fJz;NhfuT{N nkc ukoNov 

nekT{AN?AN; nkc fJzvhnk (nkJhH;hHJ/HnkJhH) d[nkok ikoh B?fsesk d/ fB:wK ;w/s ezgBhI n?eN, 2013 ns/ 

T[; nXhB o{bI d/ T[gpzXK nXhB B?fse b'VK fijVhnK fe ft~sh ;koDhnK dh ;kvh gVskb bJh Y~[ethnK jB, 

nB[;ko n;hA ezgBh s'A ;[szso jK ns/ n;hA nkgDhnK j'o B?fse I[zw/tkohnK dh fJjBK Io{osK ns/ 

nkJhH;hHJ/HnkJhH d/ B?fsesk fB:wK w[skpe gkbDk ehsh j?. n;hA ftPtk; eod/ jK fe n;hA i' gVskb gqwkD 

gqkgs ehs/ jB T[j ;kvh okJ/ d/D bJh pj[s jB ns/ T[fus nkXko gqdkB eod/ jB.

ft~sh ;koDhnK s'A fJbktk j'o ;{uBk ns/ T[; T[Zgo gVskbeko dh fog'oN

ezgBh d/ p'ov nkc vkfJo?eNoI j'o ;{uBk fsnko eoB bJh I[zw/tko jB. j'o ;{uBk ft~u p'ov dh fog'oN ;w/s p'ov 
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dh fog'oN d/ ;fjb~r ft~u doi ehsh rJh ;{uBk Pkwb j? go ft~sh ;koDhnK ns/ T[BQK T[Zgo ;kvh gVskbeko dh 

fog'oN Pkwb BjhA j?.

ft~sh ;koDhnK T[Zgo ;kvh okJ/ j'o ;{uBk ƒ Pkwb BjhA eodh ns/ n;hA T[; T[Zgo fe;/ fe;w dk Go';k, Bshik 

nfGftnes BjhA eod/.

ft~sh ;koDhnK dh ;kvh gVskb d/ ;zpzX ft~u, ;kvh I[zw/tkoh j'o ;{uBk gVB dh j? ns/ fJ; soQK eod/ ;w/A fJj ftukoB 

dh j? fe eh j'o ;{uBk wj~stg{oB o{g ft~u ft~sh ;koDhnK iK ;kvh gVskb dh gqfefonk d"okB gqkgs ehsh ikDekoh d/ 

ftgohs j? iK wj~stg{oB o{g ft~u }bs fpnkB ehsh j'Jh ikgdh j?.

i/eo ;kv/ ehs/ j'J/ ezw d/ nkXko s/ n;hA f;~Nk e~Yd/ jK fe fJ; j'o ;{uBk dh T[ZE/ wj~stg{oB }bs fpnkBh j? sK ;kƒ 

T[; s~E dh fog'oN eoB dh b'V j?. fJ; pko/ ;kv/ e'b fog'oN eoB bJh e[M BjhA j?.  

ftZsh ;koDhnK bJh w?B/iw?AN dh I[zw/tkoh

ezgBhI n?eN 2013 (“n?eN”) dh Xkok 134(5) ftZu fJjBK ftZsh ;koDhnK, Bz{ fsnko eoB ns/ ;kfynkseoB bJh, 

i' fe ezgBh dh ftZsh ;fEsh, ftZsh gqdoPB ;w/s j'o ft;fsqs nkwdB, Bedh gqtkj ns/ fJe[nNh ftZu spdhbh, 

fijV/ fe Gkos ftZu nkw s"o s// ;thfeqs b/yk f;XKsK, ;w/s n?eN dh Xkok 133 nXhB T[fbys b/yk fwnko (“fJzv 

J/Hn?;H@) i' ezgBhI (nekT{AN;) o{bI, 2014 d/ fB:w 7 ns/ ezgBhI (Gkosh b/yk fwnko) o{bI, 2015 fit/A 

;zP'fXnk, Bkb gVQ/ ikD/ jB, nB[;ko tk;sfte ns/ tkIp fdqP fdzdhnK j'D, Bkb ;zpzXs do;kJ/ wZ[fdnk bJh ezgBh d/ 

p'ov nkc vkfJo?eNoI I[zw/tko jB.

fJ; I[zw/tkoh ftZu ezgBh dhnK ;zgshnK dh ;[oZfynk bJh ns/ }pB ns/ j'o nfB:fwssktK B{z o'eD ns/ bZGD bJh 

n?eN d/ T[gpzXK w[skpe T[fus b/yk foekov oZyDkl b/yk BhshnK dh u'D ns/ T[fus nwb dI vrqoN ns/ d/yGkb 

eoBhl T[j |?;b/ ns/ nB[wkB eoBk fijV/ w[Bk;p ns/ d{odoPh j'Dl ns/ T[fus nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB dh o{g o/yk 

fsnko eoBk s/ T[;B{z nwb ftZu fbnkT[Dk ns/ T[;dh d/yGkb eoBh fijV/ fe fJzv J/Hn?;H ftZsh ;koDhnK, i' fe 

tk;sfte ns/ tkIp fdqP fdzdhnK j'D ns/ wjZstg{oB }bs fpnkBh, Gkt/A egN iK }bsh ekoB, s'A w[es j'D, dh 

fsnkoh ns/ g/Pekoh eoB, b/yk^foekov dh P[ZXsk ns/ ;zg{oBsk :ehBh pDkT[D bJh gqGktPkbh Yzr Bkb nwb ftZu 

nk oj/ j'D.

ft~sh ;koDhnK fsnko eod/ ;w/A, w?B/iw?AN ezgBh d/ ukb{ fJekJh d/ s"o s/ ekfJw ofjD dh :'rsk dk w[bKeD eoB, 

ukb{ fJekJh Bkb ;zpzXs w;b/ fit/A bkr{ j'D, ikjo eoB ns/ b/yKeB dk ukb{ fJekJh dk nkXko tosD bJh I[zw/tko j? 

fizBh d/o s~e iK sK w?B/iw?AN dk ezgBh ƒ pzd eoB dk iK ezw pzd eoB dk fJokdk Bk j't/ iK fJ; soQK eoB s'A fpBK e'Jh 

tk;sfte pdb Bk j't/.

p'ov nkc vkfJo?eNoI ezgBh dh ft~sh fog'ofNzr gqfefonk dh fBrokBh eoB bJh I[zw/tko jB.

gVskbeko dh I[zw/tkoh

;kv/ T[d/P fJj w[Bk;p Go';k gqkgs eoB bJh jB fe ;w[Zu/ o{g ftZu ftZsh ;koDhnK wjZstg{oB }bs fpnkBh s'A 

w[es jB, Gkt/A T[j }pB iK rbsh ekoB j't/, ns/ fJ~e gVskbeko dh fog'oN fi; ft~u ;kvh okJ/ Pkwb j?, ikoh eoB 

bJh jB. w[Bk;p Go';k fJ~e T[Zu g~Xo dk Go';k j?, go rozNh BjhA j? fe n?;HJ/I d/ nB[;ko ehsh rJh fJ~e gVskb 

jw/Pk fJ~e wj~stg{oB }bs^fpnkBh b~G bt/rh, id'A fJj j't/rh. }bs^fpnkBhnK }pB iK }bsh s'A T[sgzB j' 

;edhnK jB ns/ wj~stg{oB wzBhnK iKdhnK jB i/eo, fJe~b/ iK ;zefbs o{g ft~u, T[BQK d[nkok tos'AekoK t~b'A fJjBK 

ft~sh ;koDhnK d/ nkXko T[Zgo bJ/ rJ/ nkofEe |?;fbnK ƒ w[Bk;p s"o s/ gqGkfts eoB dh nk; j't/.
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n?;HJ/I nB[;ko gVskb d/ fj~;/ ti'A n;hA ;koh gVskb d"okB n;hA g/Pkto ;{M dk gq:'r ehsk j? ns/ g/Pkto Pzektkd 

ekfJw o~fynk j?. n;hA Bkb jhL

• ft~sh ;koDhnK dh wj~stg{oB }bs^fpnkBh d/ \sfonK dh gSkD ns/ w[bKeD eoBk, Gkt/A }pB iK }bsh ekoB 

j'D, T[jBK \sfonK gqsh T[Zso d/D tkbhnK gVskb gqfefonktK dh ftT[As ns/ gkbDk eoBh,ns/ gVskb ;p{s 

gqkgs eoB/ i' fe ;kvh okJ/ bJh T[fus ns/ Y[~etK nkXko gqdkB eoB. }pB s'A T[sgzB j'Jh wj~stg{oB }bs 

fpnkBh ƒ Bk b~GD dk \sok }bsh s'A fJ~e T[sgzB j'Jh s'A t~X j?, feT[A i' }pB ft~u r~m^i'V, ikbQ;kIh, ikD^p[~M 

e/ ehshnK G[~bK, }bs^fpnkBhnK, iK nzdo{Bh fB:zsoB dk T[bzxD Pkwb j' ;edk j?.

• jkbksK nB[;ko T[fus gVskb gqfefonk dh ftT[As eoB bJh gVskb Bkb ;zpzXs nzdo{Bh fB:zsoB dh ;wM gqkgs 

eod/ jK. ezgBhI n?eN, 2013 dh Xkok 143(3)(i) nXhB, n;hA fJ; T[Zgo nkgDh okJ// gqrN eoB bJh th 

I[zw/tko jK fe, eh ezgBh ftZu T[fus nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB gqDkbh j? ns/ nfij/ fB:zsoB nwbh ekoro jB.

• w?B/iw?AN tb'A toshnK rJhnK b/yk BhshnK d/ T[fus j'D ns/ ehs/ rJ/ b/yk nB[wkBK ns/ ;zpzXs gqrNknK d/ tkIp 

j'D dk w[bKeD eod/ jK.

• w?B/iw?AN d[nkok b/fynK bJh ukb{ fJekJh nkXko dh tos'A dh T[fussk ns/, gqkgs ehs/ gVskb ;p{s d/ nkXko s/, 

eh xNBktK ns/ jkbsK Bkb ;zpzXs fJ~e wj~stg{oB nfBPfussk w"i{d j? i' fe ezgBh dh fJ~e ukb{ fJekJh d/ s"o 

s/ ikoh ofjD s/ ftP/P ;zd/j gk ;edh j?, dk f;~Nk e~Yd/ jK. i/eo n;hA fJj f;~Nk e~Yd/ jK fe fJ~e wj~stg{oB 

nfBPfussk w"i{d j?, ;kƒ ;kvh gVskbeko dh fog'oN ft~u ft~sh ;koDhnK ft~u ;zpzXs gqrNknK s/ fXnkB 

fdtkT[Dk g?Adk j?, iK i/eo nfij/ gqrNkn Bk ekch j'D sK ;kvh okJ/ ;'XDh g?Adh j?. ;kv/ Bshi/ ;kvh gVskbeko 

dh fog'oN dh fwsh s~e gqkgs ehs/ gVskb ;p{sK T[Zgo nkXkfos jB. n?go, Gft~yh xNBktK ns/ jkbsK ezgBh d/ 

ukb{ fJekJh d/ s"o s/ ikoh ofjD ƒ \sw eoB dk ekoB j' ;ed/ jB.

• ft~sh ;koDhnK d/ ;w[~u/ ;kfynkseoB, pDktN ns/ ;wroh ;w/s gqrNknK, ns/ eh ft~sh ;koDhnK p[fBnkdh b?D^ 

d/DK ns/ xNBktK ƒ fJ; sohe/ Bkb g/P eodhnK jB fi; Bkb T[fus ;kfynkseoB dh gqkgsh j[zdh j?, dk w[bKeD 

eod/ jK.

n;hA, go;go j'o wkwb/, gVskb d/ wzst ns/ ;w/A pko/ ns/ wjZstg{oB gVskb bZGsK pko/ ;w/s nzdo{Bh fB:zsoB 

ftZu e'Jh wjZstg{oB ewhnK, fizBQK dh n;hA nkgDh gVskb d"okB PBkys eod/ jK, pko/ T[BQK B{z ;{fus eod/ jK fijV/ 

fe gqpzX bJh I[zw/tko jB.

n;hA T[BQK B{z fijV/ fe gqpzX bJh I[zw/tko jB fJZe fpnkB th T[gbpX eotkT[Ad/ jK fe n;hA ;[szsosk Bkb ;zpzXs 

B?fse Io{osK dh gkbDk ehsh j?, ns/ T[BQK B{z, ;ko/ ;zpzXK ns/ j'o w;fbnK fijV/ fe w[Bk;p s"o s/ ;kvh ;[szsosk 

T[Zgo gqGkt gkT[D ns/ fiZE/ bkr{ j'D:'r, ;zpzXs pukn pko/ T[jBK B{z ;{fus eod/ jK.

I'o d/D tkb/ ftP/

1H r[dkwK ns/ Bkb jh ;kJhNK s/ wkb d/ ;Nke dk nZr, u'oh iK e[dosh nkcsK ekoB \so/ B{z xNkT[D bJh phwk BjhA 

eotkfJnk frnk j?.

2H ghHn?;HJhHnkoH;hH B/ ftZsh ;kb 2023^24 bJh nkgD/ N?foc nkovo okjhA ftZsh ;kb 2022^23 bJh gfjbK 

wBI{oP[dk N?foc d/ w[ekpb/ ftZsh ;kb 2022^23 dh ;whfynk ftZu 97H53 eo'V o[gJ/ d/ wkbhJ/ nzso B{z wBI{oh 

fdZsh j?. fJ; dk b/yk, b/yk Bhsh d/ nB[;ko ftZsh ;kb 2022^23 ftZu ehsk frnk j?.

3H ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH B{z$s'A ;/tktK fit/A fe d|soK dk feokfJnk, eb'BhnK dk feokfJnk nkfd dk fwsh sZe 
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b/yk^feskpK ftZu b/yk BjhA ehsk frnk j?. ;{uBk dh nDj'Ad ftZu n;hA fJ;dk gqGkt bkG ns/ jkBh ;koDh (;w/s 

j'o ft;fsqs nkwdB) ns/ p?b?A; PhN s/ fBoXkos eoB s'A n;woZE jK.

4H g{zih okyt/A ftZu 16H29 eo'V o[gJ/ dh fJZe oew Pkwb j?, fijVh fe gqrsh nXhB g{zihrs ekoiK B{z g{zihfeqs ehs/ 

‘‘;N'o nuBu/s \ou/’’ dh ebfgs bkrs ekoB wkb bkrs nzso dh j?, fijVh fe 16H04H2010 s'A nZr/ sZe 

;zfus j'Jh ns/ 31H03H2015 sZe 16H29 eo'V o[gJ/ j' rJh.

5H ;'Xh NoK;co ;ehw 2012 nB[;ko, ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH B/ gzikp T{oik y/so ;[Xko NoK;co (gfjbh ;'X) ;ehw 

2012 w[skpe, eowukohnK B{z d/D:'r nzsw bkGK d/ 11H36# fjZ;/ dh ndkfJrh eoBh j?. ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH 

dhnK b/yk^g[;seK ftZu nzsw d/Ddkoh bJh gqrshtkdh czfvzr tk;s/ n?eu[ohnb d/Ddkoh w[skpe 

ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH d/ 11H36# fjZ;/ dk T[gpzX BjhA ehsk frnk j?. ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH tZb'A ‘;w/A nB[;ko ndk 

eo'’ d/ nkXko s/ ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH tZb'A ftZsh ;kb 2022^23 bJh e[Zb ;{fus ehsh oew d/ 11H36# fjZ;/ dh 

pDdh oew 502H54 ਕਰੋੜ o[gJ/ dh nzsw d/Ddkoh tk;s/ b/fys ehsk j?. fJ; ftZu Pkwb 1100H57 bZy o[gJ/ d/ 

fjZ;/ dk nzso ftZsh ;kb 2021^22 ftZu b/fys ehsk frnk j? ns/ nzfsw fjZ;k ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH d[nkok ;{fus 

ehs/ nB[;ko ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH d/ ykfsnK B{z nzfsw o{g d/D s'A pknd fbnk frnk j?. gzikp T{oik ;[Xko 

NoK;co (gfjbh ;'X) ;ehw 2012 d/ nB[;ko gqrshtkdh czfvzr bJh ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH d/ fjZ;/ d/ yks/ s/ e'Jh 

T[gpzX BjhA ehsk frnk j?. 31H03H2023 B{z \sw j'J/ ;kb bJh ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH d[nkok n?eu[ohnb w[bKeD s/ 

nkXkfos ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH d/ fjZ;/ B{z nzfsw o{g fdZsk ikDk pkeh j?.

6H fJzv J/Hn?;^37 d/ g?ok 45 d/ Bkb gVQ/ rJ/ fJzv J/Hn?;^16 d/ g?ok 16 ns/ 18 d/ nB[;ko, ezgBh B{z ikfJdkd, 

wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;kwkB (ghghJh) B{z ysw eoB ns/ jNkT[D bJh ehs/ ikD tkb/ you/ dk w"i{dk w[Zb gqdkB eoB 

dh b'V ;h, fJ;d/ T[g:'rh ihtB d/ nzs ftZu ns/ T[; ;kJhN B{z pjkb eoBk fi; s/ fJj ;fEs ;h. jkbKfe, ezgBh 

B/ ftZsh ;koDhnK ftZu fJ; ;pzX ftZu Bk sK e'Jh nB[wkB brkfJnk j? ns/ Bk jh fe;/ sZE dk y[bk;k ehsk j?. 

Bshi/ ti'A, ghghJh ns/ r?o^w"i{dk d/DdkohnK B{z xZN dZf;nk frnk j?. jkbKfe, ftZsh nB[wkBK dh nDj'Ad ftZu, 

fJ;d/ ftZsh gqGkt dk gsk BjhA brkfJnk ik ;fenk j?.

7H fJzv J/Hn?;^105 d/ g?ok 26 d/ nB[;ko, i/eo fe;/ fJekJh B/ fteoh bJh oZyh rJh ;zgsh (iK fBgNko/ ;w{j) B{z 

torhfeqs ehsk j?, go g?ok 7^9 d/ wkgdzv j[D g{o/ BjhA j[zd/ jB, sK fJekJh ;zgsh (iK fBgNko/) dk torheoB 

eoBk pzd eo d/t/rh i' fe fteoh bJh oZyh rJh j?. ezgBh B/ wzvh r'fpzdrVQ fty/ NoK;ckowo B{z fgSb/ ftZsh ;kb 

2021^22 ftZu fteoh bJh oZy/ ti'A Pq/DhpZX ehsk j?, go T[; dh fteoh bJh e'Jh ekotkJh BjhA ehsh rJh j??.        

fJzv J/Hn?;^105 d/ nB[;ko, i/eo fteoh dh :'iBk ftZu e'Jh spdhbh j[zdh j? sK fJekJh fteoh bJh oZyh rJh 

;zgsh B{z torheoB eoBk pzd eo d/t/rh.

8H tgkoe gqkgshnK dk pekfJnk 518H00 eo'V o[gJ/ g[PNh d/ nXhB j?. fJ; bJh, n;hA nfijhnK gqkgshnK dh 

w"i{drh s/ fNZgDh BjhA eo ;ed/.

9H ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH B/ ezgBhI n?eN, 2013 dh Xkok 135 d/ nB[;ko 131 bZy o[gJ/ dh oew ftfdne T[d/PK bJh 

you ehsh j?. go foekov dh nDT[gbpXsk ekoB, n;hA ehs/ rJ/ you/ d/ ikfJI j'D s/ fNZgDh BjhA eo ;ed/.

10H ;kvh okJ/ nB[;ko ezgBh B{z T[jBK fJzdokIK B{z tZN/ yks/ gk d/Dk ukjhdk j? i' w[V gqkgs BjhA ehshnK ik ;edhnK 

jBL
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j'o eB{zBh ns/ fB:we Io{osK T[Zgo fog'oN

1H n?eN dh Xkok 143 dh T[Zg Xkok (11) dhnK PosK nB[;ko Gkos dh e/Adoh ;oeko tZb'A ikoh ezgBhI (nkfvNoI 

fog'oN) nkovo 2020 (“nkovo”) tZb'A b'VhAd/ nB[;ko, n;hA nkovo d/ g?o/Q 3 ns/ 4 ftZu do;kJ/ w[ZfdnK T[Zs/ 

“nB[bZr J/@ ftZu fJZe fpnkB fdzd/ jK.

2H ezgBhI n?eN 2013 dh Xkok 143 dh T[Zg Xkok 5 d/ ;zpzX ftZu, Gkos d/ ezgNo'bo ns/ wjK b/yk^gVskbeko tZb'A 

T[es Xkok 143 nXhB ikoh ehs/ rJ/ fBod/PK T[Zgo n;hA  ftZu fJZe fpnkB fdzd/ jK.“nB[bZr ph@

3H n?eN dh Xkok 143(3) dh Io{os w[skpe, n;hA fog'oN eod/ jK feL

 (T) n;hA T[j ;koh ;{uBk ns/ ;gPNheoB wzr/ ns/ gqkgs eo bJ/ jB i' fe ;kvh ;G s'A uzrh ikDekoh ns/ 

ftPtk; nB[;ko ;kvh gVskb d/ wzst bJh Io{oh ;B.

 (n) ;kvh okJ/ nB[;ko ezgBh B/ eB{zB w[skpe T[fus b/yk^pjhnK B{z oZfynk j'fJnk j? fiZE'A sZe fe ;kB{z T[jBK 

pjhnK dh iKu s'A ikgdk j?.

 (J) fJ; fog'oN Bkb ;zpzXs p?b?A; PhN, bkG ns/ jkBh ;koDh (;w/s j'o ft;fsqs nkwdB), Bedh gqtkj ;koDh 

ns/ fJe[nNh ftZu spdhbh dh ;koDh, b/yk^pjhnK dh nB[;kosk ftZu jB.

 (;) ;kvh okJ/ ftZu T[es efEs fJzv J/Hn?;H ftZsh ;koDhnK, n?eN dh Xkok 133, Bkb gVQ/ ezgBhI (Gkosh b/yk 

fwnkoK) fB:wK 2015 fit/A ;zP'fXs, ftZu fBPfus b/yk fwnkoK dh gkbDk eodhnK jB. 

 (j) Gkos ;oeko d/ ekog'o/N wkwfbnK d/ wzsokb/ tZb'A gqekfPs B'Nhfce/PB BzH ihHn?;HnkoH 463(Jh) fwsh i{B 

5, 2015 okjhA fdZsh rJh S'N Bz{ fXnkB ftZu oZyd/ j'J/, n?eN dh Xkok 164(2) pkps vkfJo?eNoI dhnK 

n:'rsktK dhnK PosK, ezgBh s/ bkr{ BjhA jB.

 (e) ezgBh dh ftZsh fog'oN T[Zs/ nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB dh ;koEesk ns/ fJjBK fB:zsoBK dh ;zukbB 

gqGktPhbsk d/ ;zpzX ftZu  ftZu ;kvh tZyoh fog''oN t/y'.“nB[bZr ;h”

 (y) ezgBhI (nkfvN ns/ nkfvNoI) fB:w 2014, d/ fB:w 11 nB[;ko gVskbeko dh fog'oN ftZu doI j'D :'r 

j'o wkwfbnK d/ ;zpzX ftZu, ;kvh ;G s'A uzrh ikDekoh ns/ ;kB{z fdZs/ rJ/ ;gPNheoBK nB[;ko ;kvh okJ/ 

w[skpel

  (1) ftZsh ;koDhnK ftZu ftnes s'A fpBK ezgBh dh e'Jh bzfps w[eZdw/pkih BjhA j? i' fe fJ; dh fJzv J/Hn?;H 

ftZsh ;fEsh B{z gqGkfts eo/rh.
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eqw BzL  ihHn?uH b/yk :{fBN dk Bkw n?bH;hH gkoNhnK d/ Bkw  oew (o[[gJ/) 

 1H 28H810 rfoZv T[;koh jbek, b[[fXnkDk 782 w?;oI n?beB tkfJo 77,831H00

 2H 28H810 rfoZv T[;koh jbek, b[[fXnkDk 782 w;? oI nA?vfoT { :b{  wdok;       25,321H00

 3H 28H868 gh s/ n?w wzvb, eg{oEbk 604 ;[[oihs f;zx, n?bHvhH;h 31,315H00

 4H 28H868 gh s/ n?w wzvb, npb'tkb 642 rq?u[[Nh e'oN e/;  3,86,178H00

 5H 28H868 gh s/ n?w wzvb, o'gV 658 wBihs f;zx, n?;Hn?;HU 98,787H00

 6H 28H868 gh s/ n?w wzvb, tvkbk rqzEhnK 663 r[[odhg f;zx, i/HJh 16,499H00

 7H 28H868 NhHnb? Hn;? H;hH jbek, gfNnkbk    781  pbtzs f;zx, i/HJh            22,73,592H00

 8H 28H919 ;hHUH;hH gfNnkbk 224 gq/w e[[wko e'uo  19,287H00

    e~[b   29,28,810H00
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  (2) ezgBh d/ e'Jh bzwh fwnkd d/ fJeokoBkw/ ;w/s ftT[sgzB fJeokoBkw/ BjhA jBl fJ; bJh T[BQK eoe/ fe;/ 

wjZstg{oB d{odofPs B[e;kB pko/ fNZgDh eoB dk ;tkb g?dk BjhA j[zdk.

  (3) T[ZE/ nfijh e'Jh oew BjhA ;h fi;Bz{ ezgBh d[nkok fBt/Pe f;Zfynk ns/ oZfynk czv ftZu spdhb eoBk 

Io{oh ;h.

  (4)  (i)  w?B/iw?AN B/ gq;s[s ehsk j? fe, nkgD/ ;G s'A T[Zsw frnkB ns/ ftPtk; nB[;ko, b/fynK d/ B'N; 

ftZu ehs/ gqrNkn s'A fJbktk, ezgBh tZb'A e'Jh th czv (iK sK T[Xko bJ/ czvk iK P/no gqhwhnw iK 

fe;/ j'o ;o'sK iK j'o czvk dhnK fe;wK ftZu'A), fe;/ j'o ftnesh(nK) iK fJekJh(nK) ;w/s ftd/Ph 

fJekJhnK (“ftu'fbnK@) B{z, Gkt/A fbysh s"o s/ iK j'o soQK, dh ;wM Bkb fe ftu'bk Gkt/A f;ZX/ iK 

nf;ZX/ s"o s/ eoIk iK fBt/P ezgBh d[nkok iK ezgBh dh so|'A (“nzsw bkGgksohnK@) fe;/ th 

sohe/ Bkb PBkys ehs/ Bz{ f;ZX/ iK nf;ZX/ s"o s/ eoIk iK fBt/P iK e'Jh rkozNh dk gqpzX eo/rk iK 

IwkBs iK nzsw bkGgksohnK dh so|'A fJ;/ tork, g/Prh iK eoI/ iK fBt/P BjhA ehs/ rJ/ jB.

   

   (ii) w?B/iw?AN B/ gq;s[s ehsk j? fe, nkgD/ ;G s'A T[Zsw frnkB ns/ ftPtk; nB[;ko, b/fynK d/ B'N; 

ftZu ehs/ gqrNkn s'A fJbktk, ezgBh tZb'A e'Jh th czv, fe;/ j'o ftnesh(nK) iK fJekJh(nK) ;w/s 

ftd/Ph fJekJhnK (“czv d/D tkb/ r[ZN@) s'A, Gkt/A fbysh s"o s/ iK j'o soQK, dh ;wM Bkb fe ezgBh 

Gkt/A f;ZX/ iK nf;ZX/ s"o s/ czv d/D tkb/ r[ZN (“nzsw bkGgksohnK@) d[nkok iK T[jBK dh so|'A 

fe;/ th sohe/ Bkb PBkys ehs/ Bz{ eoIk iK fBt/P iK e'Jh rkozNh dk gqpzX, IwkBs iK nzsw 

bkGgksohnK dh so|'A fJ;/ tork, gqkgs BjhA ehs/ rJ/ jBl ns/

   (iii)  gVskb gqfefonktK, fijBK Bz{ jkbksK w[skpe n;hA T[fus ns/ tkIp ;wfMnk j?, d/ nkXko s/ 

nfijk e[M th T[jBK d/ fXnkB ftZu BjhA nkfJnk j? fe i' fJj ftPtk; fdtkt/ fe T[g^Xkok(i) ns/ 

(ii) ftZu ehs/ gq;s[sheoB ftZu e'Jh wjZstg{oD rbs fpnkBh j?.

  (5)  ;kb d/ d"okB ezgBh d[[nkok e'Jh bkGnzP x'fPs ns/ G[rskB BjhA ehsk frnk j?.

 (r)  n?eN dh Xkok 197(16) dhnK Io{osK d/ nB[[;ko gVskbeko dh fog'oN ftZu Pkwb ehs/ ikD tkb/ j'o 

wkwfbnK d/ ;pzX ftZu, ekog'o/N wkwfbnK d/ wzsokb/, Gkos ;oeko d[[nkok ikoh B'Nhfce/PB BzH 

ihHn?;HnkoH 463 (Jh) fwsh 5 i{B 2015 nB[;ko Xkok 197, ;oekoh ezgBhnK s/ bkr{ BjhA j?.

tkL e/Hn?;H d[nk n?Av ezgBh

ukoNov nekT{AN?AN; 

cow ofi;No/PB BzL 017478 n?B

     ;jh$^

(;hHJ/H ;toB f;zx fYZb'A)

gkoNBo          

n?wHBzL 527610         ;EkB L gfNnkbk

:{HvhHnkJhHn?BHL 223527610phihthtkJhNhNh1469    fwsh L 26H06H2023
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gVskbeko dh fog'oN dk “nB[bZr J/”

1H

 (T) (1) ezgBh tZb'A ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;kwkB d/ wksokswe t/ot/ ns/ ;fEsh ;w/s g{o/ t/ot/ do;kT[Adk 

j'fJnk T[fus foekov fsnko ehsk ik fojk j? f;tkJ/ oki ;oeko d[[nkok ;{fus ehsh rJh NokA;co ;ehw, i' 

fe gqfefonk nXhB j?, nB[[;ko fwsh 16H04H2010 Bz{ spdhb j'Jh ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;kwkB d/.fJ; 

s'A fJbktk, fJj th dZf;nk iKdk j? fe ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH tb'A p?AekA $ ftZsh ;z;EktK s'A gz{ihrs eoI/ nkrkwh 

;zgshnK dh froth fto~[X ;[[oZfyns eoe/ gqkgs ehs/ rJ/ jB.fJ; bJh p?ekA$ftZsh ;z;EktK s'A gqkgs ehs/ 

gz{ihrs eofInK ftZu'A pDkJhnK rJhnK gz{ihrs ;zgshnK Gko s'A w[[es BjhA jB.

  (2) ezgBh B/ n;E{b ;zgshnkA d/ g{o/ t/oftnkA Bz{ do;kT[Ad/ j'J/ T[fus foekov oZfynk j'fJnk j?. 

   

 (n) ;kB{z fdZsh ;{uBk ns/ ;gPNheoBK nB[;ko w?B/iw?AN d[nkok ;kb d"okB nuZb ;zgshnK dh G'fse gVskb ehsh 

rJh. ;kB{z fdZsh ;{uBk ns/ ;gPNheoBK nB[;ko nfijh gVskb d"okB e'Jh nfjw |oe BjhA gkfJnk frnk.

 (J) fit/A fe ;kB{z ;{fus ehsk frnk, 16H04H2010 s''A gfjbK jk;b ehshnK 2925 eo'V o[gJ/ dhnK nuZb ikfJdkdK 

d/ jZe^wkbeh d;skt/I ezgBh d/ Bkw spdhb BjhA jB gozs{ gzikp ;oeko d[nkok 24H12H2012 B{z x'fPs ehsh 

rJh NoK;co ;ehw d/ okjhA nwb ftZu nkJ/ ftXkB nB[;ko nfijhnK ;zgshnK dh wbehns ezgBh tZb iwQK 

j'Jh j?. T[es jZe^wkbeh d;skt/I ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH e'b T[gbpX jB (feT[Afe g{opb/ gzHokHfpHp'H dk 

ikfJdkd d|so j[D ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH nXhB ezw eo fojk j? ns/ T[j nfij/ jZe^wkbeh d;skt/IK dk 

fBrokB j?).

  fJ; s'A nZr/, 16H04H2010 s'A pknd ezgBh tb'A jk;b ehshnK nuZb ikfJdkdK d/ jZe^wkbeh d;skt/I ezgBh 

d/ Bkw iK tZy^2 gzukfJsK s'A Ugo/fNzr gN/ T[Zs/ jB, fiBQK d/ fJeokoBkw/ ezgBh e'b T[gbpX jB.

  ;kBz{ T[gbpX eotkJhnK rJhnK ofi;Nov ftZeoh d;skt/IK, spdhbh d;skt/IK, fJzsekb gZsoK dhnK 

ekghnK dh iKu d/ nkXko s/, ftZsh ;koDhnK ftZu ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;kwkB nXhB doPkJhnK 

rJhnK nZub ;zgshnK d/ jZe^wkbeh d;skt/I j/mK tofDs d/ f;tkJ/ p?b/A; PhN dh fwsh Bz{ ezgBh d/ Bkw jB.

 

(;) ezgBh B/ ;kb d"okB nkgDh fe;/ th ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;kwkB ns/ n;E{b ;zgshnK dk w[bKeD BjhA 

ehsk j?.
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ikfJdkd dk t/otk

IwhB

e[Zb nZr/ fbnKd/

w[Zb

2925 eo'V

fi; d/ Bkw s/

oZyh rJh

ghHn?;HJhHphH

eh T[j gq'w'No,

fBod/Pe iK T[BQK

d/ foPs/dko iK

eowukoh jB

BjhA

fiBQK ;wK oZyh^

d"o do;kU, 

fiZE/ T[fus j't/

16H04H2010

ezgBh d/ Bkw s/ Bk

oZy/ j'D dk ekoB

gfjbK jh T[Zgo

;gPN ehsk frnk 

j?
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 (j) p/Bkwh b?D^d/D (toiD) n?eN, 1988 (45 nkc 1988) ns/ T[; nXhB pDkJ/ fB:wK nXhB e'Jh th p/Bkwh 

ikfJdkd oZyD bJh ;kb d"okB ezgBh fto[ZX e'Jh ekotkJh P[o{ BjhA ehsh rJh ns/ Bk jh 31 wkou 2023 B{z e'Jh 

bzfps j?.

2H 

 (T) ezgBh dh ;g[odrh ftZu t;s{ ;{uh dh gqpzXB d[nkok ;kb d/ d"okB G"fse s"o *s/ s;dhe ehsh rJh j?. ;kvh 

okJ/ ftZu, nfijh s;dhe dh pkozpkosk tkip j?, ns/ gqpzXB d[nkok ngDkJhnK rJhnK gqfefonktK ns/ y/so 

T[fus ;B. G"fse ;Nke ns/ fbysh foekovK d/ ftueko s;dhe eoB s/ e'Jh nzso BjhA d/fynk frnk ;h i' fe 

t;s{ ;{uh dh jo/e Pq/Dh bJh e[Zb 10# iK tZX ;B.

 (n) ezgBh B{z ukb{ ;zgshnK dh ;[oZfynk d/ nkXko *s/ p?AeK s'A e[Zb fwbk e/ gzi eo'V o[gJ/ s'A tZX dh ekoiPhb g{zih 

;hwk wBI{o ehsh rJh j?. ezgBh d[nkok nfij/ p?AeK B{z dkfJo ehsh rJhnK fswkjh foNoBK iK ;koDhnK ezgBh 

dhnK b/yk feskpK Bkb w/b yKdhnK jB.

3H ezgBh B/, ezgBhI n?eN 2013 dh Xkok 189 nXhB fsnko ehs/ rJ/ ofi;No ftZu Pkwb j[zdhnK ezgBhnK, cowK 

iK j'o gkoNhnK B{z e'Jh th ;[oZfyns iK r?o^;[oZfyns eoIk BjhA fdZsk j?. fJ; bJh ezgBh s/ nkovo dh d|k 

3(iii) (J/) s'A (n?c) dhnK XkoktK bkr{ BjhA jB.

4H ;kvh okJ/ ns/ ;kB{z fdZsh ;{uBk ns/ ;gPNheoBK nB[;ko T[ZE/ e''Jh eoIk, fBt/P, rozNh ns/ IwkBs BjhA fdZsh 

j?, fijBK d/ ;zpzX ftZu ezgBhI n?eN 2013 dh XkoktK 185 ns/ 186 bkr{ j[zdhnK j''D ns/ fJ; bJh fJ; s/ fNZgDh 

BjhA ehsh j?.

5H ezgBh B/ iBsk s'A gqkgs fe;/ th iwQK iK iwQK wzBh rJh oew B{z ;theko BjhA ehsk j?. fJ; bJh nkovo dh Xkok 3 

(V) nXhB fog'ofNzr bkr{ BjhA j?.

6H fit/A fe ;kB{z ;{fus ehsk frnk, ezgBh B/ n?eN dh Xkok 148 dh T[g Xkok (1) nXhB e/Ado ;oeko d[nkok 

fBofdPN bkrs^foekov fsnko ehs/ jB. 

7H 

 (T) ;kBz{ fdZsh rJh ;{uBk ns/ ;gPNheoBK ns/ b/yk feskpK, foekov d/ fBohyD w[skpe ezgBh nkws"o s/ 

r?o^fttkfds t?XkfBe pekJ/ ;w/s wkb ns/ ;/tk eo, gq'thv?AN czv, eowukoh oki phwk, nkwdB^eo, ftZeoh 

eo, ;/tk eo, wkb ns/ ;/tk eo, nk:ks eo, T[sgkdB eo, w[Zb tkXk eo, T[g^eo ns/ j'o d{i/ t?XkfBe pekJ/ 

;zpzXs nfXekohnK e'b iwQK eotkT[D ftZu fB:we j?. ;kBz{ fdZsh rJh ;{uBk ns/ ;gPNheoBK w[skpe,  

T[go'es ;zpzXh wkou 31, 2023 B{z e'Jh r?o^fttkfds ndk:'r oew T[jBK d/ ndk:'r pDB s'A pknd S/ 

wjhfBnK d/ ;w/A s'A tZX bJh pekfJnk BjhA jB.
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   (n) ;kBz{ fdZsh rJh ;[{uBk ns/ ;gPNheoBK w[skpe T[ZE/ nkwdB eo, ftZeoh eo, ;/tk eo, ihHn?;HNhH, nk:ks 

eo, T[sgkdB eo, w[Zb tkXk eo fe;/ th fttkd ekoB pekfJnk BjhA jB f;tkJ/ fttkfds n?ANoh N?e; 38H16 

eo'V o[gJ/ ns/ 1H50 eo'V o[gJ/ dh ;oft; N?e; dh d/Ddkoh d/. b/fynK d/ B'N d/ B'N BzL 43 Bz{ d/fynk ik ;edk 

j?.

8H  nkwdB eo n?eN, 1961 (43 nkc 1961) d/ nXhB eo^fBoXkoD ftZu ;kb d/ d"okB ;wogD iK nkwdB d/ o{g 

ftZu gqrN ehsh rJh fgSbh r?o^foekov nkwdB Bkb ;zpzXs e'Jh b?D^d/D BjhA ;h.

9H

 (T) ;kvh okJ/ ftZu ns/ ;kBz{ fdZsh rJh ;{uBk ns/ ;gZPNheoBK d/ nB[[;ko ezgBh B/ fe;/ th foDdksk B{z eofInK 

iK j'o T[XkoK dh w[[V ndkfJrh ftZu iK T[; T[Zs/ ftnki dh ndkfJrh ftZu e[skjh BjhA ehsh j?.

 (n) ezgBh Bz{ fe;/ p?Ae iK ftZsh ;z;Ek iK ;oeko iK fe;/ ;oekoh nEkoNh d[[nkok fJokdsB }pBeko x'fPs BjhA 

ehsk frnk j?.

 (J) ezgBh B/ ;kb d"okB fwnkdh eofInK okjhA gqkgs ehs/ XB dh tos'A T[BQK T[d/PK bJh ehsh j? fiBQK bJh T[j gqkgs 

ehsk ;h.

 (;)  ezgBh dh ftZsh ;koDhnK dh ;w~[uh iKu s/, gfjbh BIo ftZu, E'VQh fwnkd d/ nkXko s/ fJeZm/ ehs/ czvK dh, 

ezgBh d[[nkok bzwh fwnkd d/ T[d/PK bJh ;kb d"okB tos'A BjhA ehsh rJh j?.

 (j)  ezgBh e'b e'Jh ;jkfJe, ;fj:'rh, iK ;z:[[es T[Zdw BjhA j? ns/ fJ;d/ nB[[;ko nkovo dh Xkok 3 (ix) (Jh) 

ns/ (n?c) d/ nXhB fog'ofNzr bkr{ BjhA j?.

10H

 (T) ezgBh B/ ;kb d/ d"okB P[o{nksh iBse g/;ae;a ikA nrb/oh iBse g/;ae;a (foD d;skt/IK) d[[nkok XB fJeZmk 

BjhA ehsk j? ns/ fJ; bJh nkovo dh Xkok 3(ix) (J/) d/ nXhB fog'ofNzr bkr{ BjhA j?.

 (n) ;kb d/ d"okB, ezgBh B/ P/noK iK gfotosBPhb foD gZsoK (g{oh soQK, nzPe ikA ftebfge s"o s/ 

gfotosB:'r) dh e'Jh soIhjh nbkNw?AN iK b[ethA ;EkgBk BjhA ehsh j? ns/ fJ; bJh nkovo dh Xkok 3 (x)  

(ph) d/ nXhB fog'ofNzr bkr{ BjhA j?.

 
bVh

BzL	
d/D:'r dh fe;w  

ndk Bk ehs/ rJ/

(o[gJ/)

;wK fi; Bkb

oew ;zpzXs j?

c'ow fiZE/ fttkd

ftuko nXhB j?
  	 	

1. n?ANoh N?e;	 38,16,93,333
 2011^13	 jkJh e'oN	

2. ;oft; N?e;	 1,50,00,000
 

2016^17 ns/ 

2017^18	
vkfJo?eN'o/N iBob 

nkc ihHn?;HNhH, fJzN?bhi?A;
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11H 

 (T) gVskb d/ wkgdzvK ftZu do;kJ/ rJ/ gdkoEesk d/ f;XKs Bz{ fXnkB ftZu oZyd/ j'J/, ;kb d/ d"okB ezgBh d[[nkok 

iK ezgBh ‘s/ e'Jh X'ykXVh dh ;{uBk iK fog'oN BjhA ehsh rJh j?.

 (n) ezgBhI n?eN dh Xkok 143 dh T[g^Xkok (12) nXhB e'Jh fog'oN e/Ado ;oeko e'b ezgBhI (gVskb ns/ 

gVskbeko) fB:w, 2014 d/ fB:w 13 d/ sfjs fBoXkos ckow J/vhNh ftZu ;kb d/ d"okB ns/ fJ; fog'oN dh 

fwsh sZe, gVskbeko d[[nkok dkfJo BjhA ehsh rJh j?.

 (J) fit/A fe gqpzXB d[[nkok ;kBz{ gq;s[s ehsk frnk j?, ezgBh d[[nkok ;kb d"okB e'Jh th ft;b^pb'no ਿ;aekfJs 

gqkgs BjhA ehsh rJh j?.

12H ezgBh fJe fBZXh ezgBh BjhA j?.fJ; ekoB nkovo dh d|k 3(xii) (J/) s'A (;h) nXhB fog'ofNzr ezgBh s/ bkr{ BjhA 

j[zdh.

13H ;kvh okJ/ nB[;ko, ;zpzXs gkoNhnK Bkb b?D^d/D ezgBhI n?eN, 2013 dh Xkok 177 ns/ 188 dh nkfrnk nB[;ko 

jB ns/ bkr{ Gkosh b/yk fwnkoK dh b'V nB[;ko ftZsh ;koBhnK ftZu t/ot/ do;kJ/ rJ/ jB.

14H ;kvh okJ/ ftZu, ezgBh e'b fJZe nzdo{Bh gVskb gqDkbh j? i' fJ; d/ eko'pko d/ nkeko ns/ gqfeosh d/ nB[[;ko j?. 

jkbKfe fJ; ;kb bJh nzdo{Bh gVskb ni/ th gqfefonk ftZu j? fJ;bJh fJ; Xkok s/ fNZgDh BjhA ehsh rJh j?.

15H ezgBh B/ nkgD/ vkfJo?eNoK iK vkfJo?eNoK Bkb i[[V/ ftneshnK Bkb e'Jh r?o^Bedh b?D^d/D BjhA ehsk j? ns/ 

fJ; bJh ezgBh n?eN, 2013 dh Xkok 192 d/ T[gpzX ezgBh s/ bkr{ BjhA jB.

16H   

   (T)  ezgBh B{z Gkosh foIot p?Ae n?eN, 1934 dh Xkok 45 nkJh J/ nXhB ofi;Nov j'D dh Io{os BjhA  j? ns/  fJ; 

bJh nkovo dh Xkok 3 (xvi) (J/)^(ph) d/ nXhB fog'ofNzr bkr{ BjhA j?.

 (n) ezgBh Gkosh foIot p?Ae d[[nkok pDkJ/ fB:wkA ftZu gfoGkfPs ehs/ nB[[;ko e'o fJBt?;Nw?AN ezgBh (;h nkJh 

;h) BjhA j?. fJ; bJh, nkovo dh Xkok 3 (xvi) (;h) d/ nXhB fog'ofNzr bkr{ BjhA j?.

 (J) ro~[g e'b e'Jh ;h nkJh ;h BjhA j?.fJ; bJh, nkovo dh Xkok 3 (xvi) (vh) d/ nXhB fog'ofNzr bkr{ BjhA j?.

17H  ezgBh B/ w"i{dk ns/ s[[ozs fgSb/ ftZsh ;kb ftZu e'Jh Bedh B[[e;kB BjhA ehsk j?.

18H  ;kb d"okB ezgBh d/ ;zftXkfBe gVskbekokA dk e'Jh n;shck BjhA nkfJnk j? ns/ fJ; nB[[;ko fJj Xkok bkr{ 

BjhA j?.
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19H ftZsh nB[[gksK d/ nkXko s/, ftZsh ;zgshnK dh gqkgsh ns/ d/DdkohnkA d/ G[[rskB dh ;zGkfts fwsh ns/ T[wo, 

ftZsh ;koDhnK d/ Bkb j'o ikDekoh, p'ov nkca vkfJo?eNoI ns/ gqpzXB :'iBktK pko/ ;kvk frnkB ns/ XkoBktK 

Bkb ;zpzXs ;p{sK dh ;kvh iKu d/ nkXko ;fwbZs, ;kv/ fXnkB ftZu e[[M th BjhA nkfJnk, fi; ekoB ;kvk fJj 

ftPtk; eoB dk ekoB pD/ fe gVskb fog'oN dh fwsh s/ e'Jh th gdkoEe nfBPfussk w"i{d j? fe ezgBh p?b/A; 

PhN dh fwsh s/ w"i{d ns/ p?b/A; PhN dh fwsh s'A fJZe ;kb dh fwnkd d/ nzdo nkgDhnK d/DdkohnK Bz{ g{ok eoB d/ 

;woZE BjhA j?. jkbkAfe, n;hA dZ;d/ jK fe fJj ezgBh dh GftZy dh fttjkoesk dk Go';k BjhA j?.n;hA nZr/ 

dZ;d/ jkA fe ;kvh fog'ofNzr gVskb fog'oN dh fwsh sZe d/ sZEK s/ nkXkos j? ns/ n;hA Bk sK e'Jh rkozNh fdzd/ 

jK ns/ Bk jh e'Jh Go';k fdzd/ jkA fe p?b/A; PhN s'A fJZe ;kb dh fwnkd d/ nzdo d/D:'r j'D tkbhnK ;kohnK 

d/DdkohnK Bz{ ezgBh d[[nkok id'A th T[j d/D:'r j'DrhnK G[rskB ehsk ikt/rk.

tkL e/Hn?;H d[nk n?Av ezgBh
ukoNov nekT{AN?AN; 
cow ofi;No/PB BzL 017478 n?B

     ;jh$^
(;hHJ/H ;toB f;zx fYZb'A)
gkoNBo
n?wHBzL 527610         ;EkB L gfNnkbk
:{HvhHnkJhHn?BHL 223527610phihthtkJhNhNh1469    fwsh  L 26H06H2023
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fBod/PbVh BzL itkp

b/yk b?D^d/DK B{z nkJhHNhH szso okjhA nwb ftZu fbnKdk 

iKdk j?.

BjhA. tosskB eoI/ d/ g[BormB iK d/DdkohnK$ 

eofInK$ftnki nkfd dh w[nkch$tZN/ yks/ ftZu gkT[D dk 

e'Jh wkwbk BjhA j? i' eh eoIk tkg; eoB ftZu ezgBh dh 

n;woZEk d/ ekoB ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?b B{z foDdksk d[nkok 

ehsk frnk j't/.

jK, e/Adoh$oki J/iz;hnK s'A ftP/P ;ehwK bJh gqkgs$ 

gqkgs:'r czvI (rqKNK$;pf;vh) fJjBK dhnK ;hwktK ns/ 

PosK nB[;ko mhe soQK b/fys$T[g:'r ehs/ rJ/ jB.

ftjbh gJh IwhB d/ BkikfJI epI/ B{z o'eD bJh Y[Zet/A 

edw u[Ze/ ik oj/ jB. BkikfJI epI/ tkbh IwhB ns/ 

ehsh rJh ekotkJh d/ t/ot/ j/m nB[;ko jBL

(T) gh ns/ n?w wzvb, wkfjbg[[o nXhB 220 e/HthH ;$; 

j[fPnkog[o dh 16 wob/ IwhB T[Zs/ r[[od[nkok d~[y 

fBtkoB ;kfjp, j[[fPnkog[[o tZb'A epIk ehsk frnk 

;h. n?;HvhHn?wH tZb'A e/; dk c?;bk 

ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH d/ jZe ftZu ehsk frnk j?. j[D 

e/; wkB:'r gzikp ns/ jfonkDk jkJh e'oN ftZu 

ftuko nXhB j?.

(n) Bro fBrw, j[fPnkog[o B/ gh ns/ n?w wzvb, 

wkfjbg[o nXhB 220 e/HthH ;$; j[fPnkg[o dh 

IwhB s/ epik eoe/ 11 c[ZN ;Ve BikfJI s"o s/ 

pDkJh j?. f;tb ;{N 314$2020 fibQk ndkbs 

j[fPnkog[o e'b bzfps j?.

(J) ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH tZb'A fB:[es n?vt'e/N ;H 

;[yftzdo f;zx ;zX{ 132 e/HthH Pqh jor'fpzdg[o dh 

IwhB *s/ e[M BkikfJI epIk XkohnK s'A epIk 

   1H eh ezgBh ftZu ;ko/ b/yk b?D^d/DK B{z nkJhHNhH 

szso okjhA eoB dh ftt;Ek ;Ekfgs j?< i/eo jK, 

sK nkJhHNhH szso s'A pkjo nwb ehs/ b/yk 

b?D^d/DK dk b/fynK dh g{oBsk T[Zgo gqGkt, ;w/s 

ftZsh n;o d/, i/eo e'Jh j't/ sK, ;{fus ehsk 

ikt/.

   2H eh fe;/ toswkB eoI/ dk g[BormB j'fJnk j? iK 

fe;/ foDdksk d[nkok ezgBh dh eoI/ dh 

w[V^ndkfJrh eoB ftZu n;woZEsk d/ ekoB 

d/DdkohnK$eofInK$ftnkI nkfd dh S'N$tZN/ 

yks/ ftZu gkT[D d/ wkwb/ jB, i/eo jB sK ftZsh 

gqGkt ;{fus ehsk ikt/.

   3H eh e/Ado$oki J/iz;hnK s'A ftP/P ;ehwK bJh 

gqkgs$gqkgs j'D tkb/ czvI T[BQK dhnK ;hwktK ns/ 

PosK nB[;ko mhe soQK b/fys$T[g:'r ehs/ rJ/ 

;B< ftubD d/ e/;K B{z ;{uhpZX eo'.

  4H ezgBh dh wbehns tkbh ftjbh gJh IwhB T[Zgo 

BkikfJI epI/ s'A pukT[D bJh u[Ze/ edwK dh 

tkIpsk dh iKu ehsh ikt/. i/eo ezgBh dh IwhB 

s/ BkikfJI epIk ehsk frnk j?, w[eZdw/pkIh 

nXhB j?, tos'A ftZu BjhA fbnKdh rJh iK tkX{ 

n?bkBh rJh j?, t/ot/ fdZs/ ikD.

;[szso gVskbeko dh fog'oN dk ‘‘nB[bZr ph’’
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fBod/PbVh BzL

tkfg; b?D fjZs e'oN ftZu w[edwk bV oj/ jB.

(;)  220 e/HthH ;$; eN'o/tkbk rqkw gzukfJs dh IwhB s/ 

T[;kohnk frnk ;h, i' fe rqkw gzukfJs tb'A fwsh 

12H10H2009 B{z wsk gk; eoe/ rfoZv ;$; pDkT[D 

bJh fdZsh rJh ;h, go j[D rqkw gzukfJs tb'A f;tb 

;{N BzH 110 nk| 2021 okjhA IwhB dh wbehns 

tkfg; wzrh ik ojh j? (rqkw gzukfJs s/ 

ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH ns/ j'o) i' fe e'oN ftZy/ 

ftuko nXhB j?.

(j)  132 e/HthH ;$; gmkBe'N^2515H5 tor c[ZN IwhB 

dk fJZe N[eVk$fjZ;k epI/ j/m j? ns/ fJj w[Zdk 

gzikp ns/ jfonkDk jkJh e'oN, uzvhrVQ fty/ 

w[Zedw/ nXhB j?. ftGkr B/ fibQk ndkbs gmkBe'N 

fty/ IwhB d/ epI/ dk fJj e/; fiZs fbnk j? go 

pyskto frZb Bkwh epIkeko d/ e/; nko n?; J/ 

Bzpo 4653 nk| 2013 f;ob/y pyskto frZb pBkw 

ghHn?;HJhHphH ns/ j'o gzikp d/ jfonkDk jkJh 

e'oN uzvhrVQ fty/ dkfyb ehsk j?, i' fe ;[DtkJh 

nXhB j? ns/ ;[DtkJh dh nrbh skohy 

14$09$2023 j?.

(e)  132 e/HthH ;$; t/oek^Pqh no[D yzBk g[Zso Pqh 

ihtB yzBk ns/ Pqh wzdhg g[[Zso Pqh w'jB f;zx tZb'A 

\;ok Bzpo 508, 509, 512 s/ r?o^ekB{zBh T[;koh 

P[o{ ehsh rJh j?. fJ; epI/ d/ fybkc 

ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH tZb'A f;tb ;{N Bzpo 1157$22 

fwsh 26$04$2022 dkfJo ehsk j? ns/ nrbh 

skohy 03$08$2023 j?.

(y)  132 e/HthH ;$; t/oek ̂  Pqh okxt wjkiB tb'A T[Zg 

wzvb wfi;Nq/N dh ndkbs ftZu y;ok Bzpo 559, 

560 s/ dkntk ehsk ;h. fJ; d/ fto[ZX 

ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH tb'A nghb dkfJo ehsh rJh j? 

i' fe vhH;hH nzfwqs;o e'b ftuko nXhB j?.

(r) 132 e/HthH ;$; fGZyhftzv^Pqh ;[ygkb f;zx g[Zso Pqh 

joGiB f;zx tZb'A ;$; fGZyhftzv dh brGr 13 

wob/ IwhB s/ epik j'D dk M{mk dkntk eod/ j'J/, 

IwhB d/ gZe/ s"o s/ nkd/P bJh w[eZdwk dkfJo 

ehsk frnk j?. wzvb d|so tZb'A e/; fto[ZX nkgDk 

itkp
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itkpfBod/PbVh BzL

jK.  5H fiZE/ Bt/A gq'i?eN brkT[D bJh IwhB dh gqkgsh 

Pkwb j?, fog'oN eo' fe eh ;ko/ e/;K ftZu 

pekfJnK dk fBgNkok S/sh ns/ gkodoPh Yzr 

Bkb ehsk frnk j?. feogk eoe/ fizBQK e/;K ftZu 

fEVeD ehsh rJh j? d/ t/ot/ ft;Eko/ ikD.

jK ih, ezgBh e'b fJeokoBkfwnK dhnK PosK w[skpe 

wkbhJ/ dh t;{bh bJh gqGktPkbh gqDkbh j? ns/ bkr{ b/yk 

fwnkoK dh gkbDk ftZu b/yk^feskpK ftZu wkbhJ/ dk 

T[fus b/yKeD ehsk ik fojk j?.

  6H eh ezgBh e'b fJeokoBkfwnK dhnK PosK w[skpe 

wkbhJ/ dh t;{bh bJh gqGktPkbh gqDkbh j? ns/ 

bkr{ b/yk fwnkoK dh gkbDk eod/ j'J/ 

b/yk^feskpK ftZu wkbhJ/ dk T[fus b/yKeD ehsk 

ik fojk j?<

itkp e'oN ftZu g/P eo fdZsk ;h. e'oN e/; Bzpo 

n?b J/ e:[$1$2019 f;tb iZi, i{Bhno vthiB, 

gZNh dh wkB:'r ndkbs ftZu j? ns/ ;[DtkJh dh 

nrbh skohy 05H07H2023 j?.

(x) 220 e/HthH ;$; BokfJDrVQ^;od{b f;zx ns/ T[; 

d/ ;kEh fto[ZX e/; Bzpo nko n?; J/ 3607$14 i' fe 

2014 ftZu dkfJo ehsk frnk ;h. nrbh ;[DtkJh 

23H08H2023 B{z gzikp s/ jfonkDk jkJh e'oN ftZy/ 

j?.

(C) 220 e/HthH ;$; BokfJDrVQ^r[ow/i f;zx 

fgzv^r[wBg[ok fto[ZX e/; Bzpo nko n?; J/ 

2160$14 i' fe 2014 ftZu dkfJo ehsk frnk ;h. 

nrbh ;[DtkJh 23H08H2023 Bz{ gzikp s/ jfonkDk 

jkJh e'oN ftZy/ j?.

(u) 220 e/HthH ;$; BokfJDrVQ ^ r[ow/i f;zx g[Zso 

w'jB f;zx ns/ nihs f;zx g[Zso ;od{b f;zx fto[ZX 

e/; Bzpo nko n?; J/^2213$16 i' fe 2016 ftZu 

dkfJo ehsk frnk ;h. nrbh ;[DtkJh 

23H08H2023 B{z gzikp s/ jfonkDk jkJh e'oN fty/ 

j?.

(S) 220 e/HthH ;$; BokfJDrVQ^nwohe f;zx g[Zso 

;od{b f;zx fto[ZX e/; Bzpo nko n?; J/^216$17 i' 

fe 2017 ftZu dkfJo ehsk frnk ;h. nrbh 

;[DtkJh 04H10H2023 B{z gzikp s/ jfonkDk jkJh 

e'oN fty/ j?.
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itkpfBod/PbVh BzL

ngq?b 2022 s'A wkou 2023 sZe ;zukoB B[[e;kB 2H27# 

j?. ghHn?;HJhHnkoH;hH B/ ftZsh ;kb 2022^23 d/ N?foc 

nkovo ftZu ftZsh ;kb 2022^23 bJh n;EkJh s"o s/ 

2H44# dk ;zukoB B[[e;kB s?n ehsk ;h. n;b 

B[[e;kB$bkG T[; ;kb ftZu frfDnk ikt/rk fi; ftZu fJj 

g{oBsk gqkgs eodk j?.

  9H ;kb d"okB ;zukoB B[e;kB fBoXkos wkg s'A fezBk 

tZX j'fJnk j? ns/ eh T[;dk b/yk^feskpK ftZu 

T[fus Yzr Bkb b/yk ehsk frnk j?<

jK ih.  10H eh d{ihnK J/iz;hnK bJh ;zgshnK dk fBowkD 

ns/ ;zg{oB ehshnK jB ns/ T[jBK B{z ;'AgD dk 

ftZsh ;koDhnK ftZu Tf[ us Yrz  Bkb by/ k ehsk j<?

;kb 2022^23 d"okB e'Jh th gq'i?eN BjhA SZfvnk frnk.  7H SZv/ j'J/ gq'i?eNK s/ fezBk \ou ehsk frnk j? ns/ 

fJ; ftZu'A fezBk \ou tZN/ yks/ gkfJnk frnk j?<

jK, T[sgkde ezgBh e'b ;zuko bJh T[gbpX fpibh d/ 

nB[o{g fpibh dh fBek;h bJh gqDkbh j?.

  8H eh T[sgkde ezgBh e'b ;zuko bJh T[gbpX 

fpibh d/ nB[o{g fpibh dh fBek;h bJh gqDkbh 

j?< i/eo BjhA sK T[sgkde ezgBh tZb'A B[e;kB 

bJh ehsh wzr, i/eo e'Jh j?, gq;s[s$fNZgDh 

ehsh ikt/.

tkL e/Hn?;H d[nk n?Av ezgBh
ukoNov nekT{AN?AN; 
cow ofi;No/PB BzL 017478 n?B

     ;jh$^
(;hHJ/H ;toB f;zx fYZb'A)
gkoNBo
n?wHBzL 527610         ;EkB L gfNnkbk
:{HvhHnkJhHn?BHL 223527610phihthtkJhNhNh1469    fwsh  L 26H06H2023
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;[szso gVskbeko dh fog'oN dk “nB[bZr ;h”

ezgBhI n?eN 2013 (“n?eN”) dh Xkok 143 dh T[gXkok 3 d|k (i) d/ nXhB nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK s/ 

fog'oN.

gzikp ;N/N NoK;fwPB ekog'o/PB fbfwfNv, gfNnkbk (“ezgBh”) dh 31 wkou, 2023 dh ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[Zgo 

nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK dh ;kv/ tb'A gVskb T[;/ fwsh B{z \sw j'J/ ;kb dhnK fJzv J/Hn?;H ftZsh ;koDhnK dh ;kvh 

gVskb Bkb ;zi'r eod/ j'J/ ehsk frnk j?. 

nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB bJh w?B/iw?AN dh I[zw/tkoh

fJz;NhfuT{N nkc ukoNov nekT{AN?AN; nkc fJzvhnk d[nkok ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[Zgo nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB dh 

gVskb bJh gqekfPs ehs/ nrtkJh B'N ftZu do;kJ/ rJ/ nzdo{Bh fB:zsoB d/ Io{oh GkrK B{z fXnkB ftZu oZyd/ j'J/ 

ezgBh d[nkok ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[Zgo nzdo{Bh fB:zsoB bJh ;Ekgs ehs/ rJ// wkgdzvK d/ nkXko s/ ezgBh dh w?B/iw?AN 

nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB B{z ;Ekgs eoB ns/ T[;B{z ;zGkbh oZyD bJh I[zw/tko j?. fJjBK I[zw/tkohnK ftZu w[Bk;p 

nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK dh ftT[As eoBh, gkbDk eoBh ns/ d/y^Gkb eoBh Pkwb j? fijV/ fe eqwpZX ns/ gqGktPkbh 

Yzr Bkb fJ;d/ tgko dk ;zukbB eoB ;w/s ezgBh dhnK BhshnK gqsh fBPmk, fJ; dhnK ;zgshnK dh ;[oZfynk, cao/p 

ns/ so[ZNhnK dh y'i ns/ o'eEkw eoBk, b/yk foekov dh P[ZXsk ns/ ;zg{oBsk ns/ ezgBhI n?eN, 2013 nXhB 

b'VhAdhnK ftPtk;^:'r ftZsh ;{uBktK B{z ;w/A f;o fsnko eoB ftZu, nwbh ekoro jB.

gVskbeko dh I[zw/tkoh 

;kvh I[zw/tkoh ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[FZgo ezgBh d/ nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK dh ;kvh gVskb d/ nkXko s/ fJZe okJ/ Ikjo 

eoBk j?. n;hA nkgDh gVskb, ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[Zgo nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK dh gVskb bJh nrtkJh B'N 

(“nrtkJh B'N”) ns/ nkJhH;hHJ/HnkJhH d[nkok ikoh ehs/ rJ/ gVskb T[FZgo fwnko ns/ ezgBhI n?eN 2013 dh Xkok 

143(10) nXhB fBPfus wzB/ iKd/ jB, fiE'A sZe nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK d/ fJZe gVskb bJh bkr{ j[zd/ jB, nB[;ko 

ehsh j?. d'B'A nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK dh fJZe gVskb bJh bkr{ j[zd/ jB ns/ d'B'A fJz;NhfuT{N nkc ukoNov 

nekT{AN?AN; d[nkok ikoh ehs/ rJ/ jB. T[j fwnko ns/ nrtkJh B'N wzr eod/ jB fe n;hA B?fse Io{osK dh gkbDk 

eohJ/ ns/ gVskb dh :'iBk ns/ gkbDk tkIp ftPtk; gqkgs eoB bJh eohJ/ fe ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[Zgo w[Bk;p 

nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB ;Ekfgs j' rJ/ jB ns/ pDkJ/ oZy/ rJ/ jB ns/ i/eo nfij/ fB:zsoB ;ko/ Io{oh gq;zrK ftZu 

gqGktPkbh Yzr Bkb nwb ftZu jB.

;kvh gVskb ftZu T[BQQK gqfefonktK dh gkbDk eoBk Pkfwb j? fi; Bkb ftZsh fog'ofNzr s/ nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB 

gqDkbh dh ;woZEk ns/ T[; d/ gqGktPkbh ;zukbB d/ ;zpzX ftZu gVskb gqwkD gqkgs ehs/ ik ;eD. ;kvh ftZsh 

fog'ofNzr T[Zgo nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK dh gVskb ftZu ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[FZgo nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK pko/ ;wM 

gqkgs eoBk, I'yw dk nB[wkB fe fJZe wjZstgo{ B ewIo' h wI" d{  j ? ns / nBw[ kfBs Iy' w d / nkXko s / ndz oB{ h fB:sz oB dh 

gohfynk, ftTA[s d / wb[ KeD ns / ;uz kbB gGq ktPhbsk Pkwb j.?  uD[ hnK rJhnK gfq enq ktK gVskbeko dh ;M{  ;ws/  fJvz  

JH/ n;? H ftZsh ;koDhnK dh wjZstgo{ B }bs fpnkBh d / Iy' w d / nBw[ kB GktA/ Tj[  coa p/  iK }bsh ekoB jD' , TF[ Zgo fBoGo 

eodhnK jB.

;kB{z :ehB j? fe n;hA i' gVskb gqwkD gqkgs ehs/ jB T[j ezgBh dh ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[FZs/ nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB 

gqDkbh bJh, ;kvh gVskb okJ/ d/D bJh T[fus ns/ Y[ZetK nkXko gqdkB eod/ jB.
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ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[Zgo nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK dk noE

fJZe ezgBh dk ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[FZgo nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB fJZe gqfeqnk j?, fi; dh ftT[As ftZsh fog'ofNzr dh Go';/ 

:'rsk pko/ tkIp ftPtk; gqkgs eoB bJh ns/ nkw eoe/ gqtkfBs b/yk f;XKsK nB[;ko pkjoh wzstK bJh fJzv J/Hn?;H  

ftZsh ;koDhnK fsnko eoBk j?. fJZe ezgBh d/ ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[FZgo nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB ftZu T[j BhshnK ns/ 

gqfeqnktK Pkwb jB i' fe L

(1) foekov B{z fsnko eoB Bkb ;zpzXs jB i' fe ezgBh d/ b?Dd/DK B{z ns/ ;zgshnK d/ gqpzX pko/ w[Bk;p t/ot/, P[ZX 

ns/ T[fus do;kT[Ad/ jBl

(2) tkIp ftPtk; fdzd/ jB fe b?Dd/DK dk foekov fJzv J/Hn?;H ftZsh ;koDhnK B{z nkw eoe/ gqtkfBs b/yk f;XKsK 

nB[;ko fsnko eoB bJh Io{oh ;wM e/ ehsk frnk j? ns/ ezgBh dhnK gqkgshnK ns/ \ofunK B{z ezgBh dh 

w?B/iw?AN ns/ fBod/PeK d/ n\fsnkoK w[skpe ehsk frnk j?l ns/

(3) ezgBh dhnK ;zgshnK dh nDnfXekos gqkgsh, tos'A iK gqpzX fi; Bkb fJzv J/Hn?;H ftZsh ;koDhnK s/ 

wjZstg{oB gqGkt g? ;edk j't/, B{z o'eDk iK ;w/A f;o gsk brkT[D pko/ tkIp ftPtk; fdzd/ jB.

ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[Zgo nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK dhnK ;[Gkfte ;hwktK

ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[FZgo nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK dhnK ;[Gkfte ;hwktK ;w/s rKYk^;KYk dh ;zGktBk iK fB:zsoBK dh 

bzxDk eod/ nDT[fus gqpzX d/ ekoB nktPe }bs^fpnkBh }bsh iK cao/p ekoB T[sgzB j' ;edh j? ns/ gsk BjhA 

brdh. Bkb jh, ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[FZgo nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK d/ GftZyh ;w/A bJh fe;/ w[bKeD dh :'iBktK ftZu, i' 

fe jkbsK ftZu spdhbh eoe/ ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[FZgo nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK d/ n;woZE j'D ekoB iK BhshnK ns/ 

gqfeqnktK dh gkbDk dh fvroh ftZu ftrkV d/ ekoB, \sok j' ;edk j?.

okJ/

fJz;NhfuT{N nkc ukoNov nekT{AN?AN; nkc fJzvhnk tb'A ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[FZgo nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoBK dh gVskb 

bJh gqekfPs ehs/ rJ/ nrtkJh B'NK ftZu nzdo{Bh fB:zsoB bJh do;kJ/ rJ/ nktPe GkrK B{z fXnkB ftZu oZyd/ j'J/ 

ezgBh tb'A ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[FZgo, nzdo{Bh fB:zsoB bJh ;Ekgs ehs/ rJ/ wkgdzvK d/ nkXko s/ ;kvh okJ/ ftZu, ezgBh 

e'b ;ko/ nktPe gq;zrK ftZu, ftZsh fog'ofNzr T[FZgo fJe w[Bk;p nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB gqDkbh j? ns/ ftZsh 

fB:zsoBK T[Zgo nfij/ nzdo{Bh ftZsh fB:zsoB wkou 31, 2023 B{z gqGktPkbh ekoro ;B. 

74

tkL e/Hn?;H d[nk n?Av ezgBh
ukoNov nekT{AN?AN; 
cow ofi;No/PB BzL 017478 n?B

     ;jh$^
(;hHJ/H ;toB f;zx fYZb'A)
gkoNBo
n?wHBzL 527610         ;EkB L gfNnkbk
:{HvhHnkJhHn?BHL 223527610phihthtkJhNhNh1469    fwsh  L 26H06H2023
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gkbDk ;oNhf|e/N 

ezgBhI n?eN 2013 dh Xkok 143(5) nXhB Gkos d/ ezgNo'bo ns/ wjK b/yk^gVskbeko d[nkok 

ikoh fBod/PB$T[g^fBod/PB nB[;ko, ;kv/ tZb'A gzikp ;N/N NoK;fwPB ekog'o/PB fbfwfNv d/  

31 wkou, 2023 B{z \sw j'J/ ;kb d/ b/fynK dh gVskb ehsh rJh j? ns/ s;dhe eod/ jK fe ;kB{z 

ikoh ehs/ rJ/ ;ko/ fBod/PB$T[g^fBod/PB dh gkbDk ;kv/ tZb'A ehsh rJh j?.
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tkL e/Hn?;H d[nk n?Av ezgBh
ukoNov nekT{AN?AN; 
cow ofi;No/PB BzL 017478 n?B

     ;jh$^
(;hHJ/H ;toB f;zx fYZb'A)
gkoNBo
n?wHBzL 527610         ;EkB L gfNnkbk
:{HvhHnkJhHn?BHL 223527610phihthtkJhNhNh1469    fwsh  L 26H06H2023

j?v nkfc; L 11 rqhB ftT{, okipkjk o'v, gfNnkbk^147001
pqKu nkfc; L n?;H;hHU^64, d{ih wzfib, fBT{ bhbk GtB, gfNnkbk^147001

;?b    L 094633^41980
d|so L 090412^01442

Jh^w/b L ksduaca@gmail.comukoNov nekT{AN?AN;

e/Hn?;H d[nk n?Av ezgBh

th13  Annual Report 2022-23 PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED



76

th13  Annual Report 2022-23PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED



77

th13  Annual Report 2022-23 PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED



78

th13  Annual Report 2022-23PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED



 ezgBhI n?eN, 2013 nXhB fBPfus ehs/ ftZsh fog'ofNzr YKu/ w[skpe, 31 wkou 2023 B{z ;wkgs j'J/ ;kb 

bJh gzikp ;N/N NoK;fwPB ekog'o/PB fbfwfNv dhnK ftZsh ;koDhnK Bz{ fsnko eoB dh I[zw/tkoh ezgBh w?B/iw?AN 

dh j?. n?eN dh Xkok 139(5) nXhB Gkos d/ ezgNo'bo ns/ wjK b/yk^gVskbeko tb'A fB:[es ehs/ ;zftXkBe 

gVskbeko, n?eN dh Xkok 143(10) nXhB gVskb bJh fBPus ehs/ fwnkoK w[skpe nkgDh ;[szso gVskb d/ 

nkXko s/ n?eN dh Xkok 143 nXhB ftZsh ;koDhnK T[Zs/ nkgDh okJ/ ;gZPN eoB bJh Iz[w/tko jB. T[jBK tb'A 

nkgDh gVskb fog'oN fwsh 26 i{B 2023 okjhA fJj eo u[Ze/ j'D pko/ dZf;nk frnk j?.

 w?A, Gkos d/ ezgNo'bo ns/ wjK b/yk^gVskbeko dh so|'A, 31 wkou 2023 B{z ;wkgs j'J/ ;kb bJh n?eN dh 

Xkok 143 (6) (J/) nXhB gzikp ;N/N NoK;fwPB ekog'o/PB fbfwfNv dhnK ftZsh ;koDhnK dh fJZe nB[g{oe 

gVskb ehsh j?. fJj nB[g{oe gVskb, ;zftXkfBe gVskbekoK d/ ekoirs ekrIK dh gjz[u s'A fpBK ;[szsosk Bkb 

ehsh j? ns/ w[Zy s"o s/ ;zftXkfBe gVskbeko ns/ ezgBh d/ eowukoh tor dh g[ZS^gVskb sZe ns/ e[M e[ b/yk 

foekov d/ u'Dt/A fBohyD sZe ;hfws ojh j?. 

 w/oh nB[g{oe gVskb d/ nkXko s/, w?A n?eN dh Xkok 143 (6) (ph)  nXhB j/m fdZs/ Io{oh wkwfbnK Bz{ 

T[ikro eoBk ukjKrk i' w/o/ fXnkB ftZu nkJ/ jB ns/ i' fe w/o/ ftuko Bkb ftZsh ;koDhnK ns/ ;zpzXs gVskb 

fog'oN dh fpjso ;wM bJh :'r pDkT[D tk;s/ Io{oh jB. 

J/H  bkGdkfJesk T[Zs/ fNZgDh 

J/H1  r?o^ukb{ ;zgshnkA^ ftZsh ;zgshnkA^ j'o (B'N 8) ̂ 1H58 eo'V o[[gJ/

 T[go'es d/ ftZu oki;EkB gkto :{fNfbNh s'A 1991^2004 dh fwnkd d"okB dh 86H46 bZy o[[gJ/ dh t;{bh:'r 

oew Pkwb j?, i' fe 66 e/HthH w[[es;o^rzrkBro bkfJB d/ U ns/ n?w d/ you/ ti'A p~[e ehsh rJh j?. feT[Afe 

66 e/HthH NokA;fwPB bkJhBkA ezgBh d/ nfXeko y/so ftZu BjhA jB. fi; d/ Bshi/ ti' r?o^ukb{ ;zgshnkA ns/ 

bkG dh 86H46 bZy o[[gJ/ Bkb tZX fpnkBh j'Jh j?.

phH  ftZsh ;fEsh T[Zs/ fNZgDh 

phH1  r?o^ukb{ ;zgshnkA^ gqrsh nXhB gz{ihrs ekoi (B'N^ 6 ns/ 7) ̂  556H51 eo'V o[[gJ/

 T[go'es ftZu nZm gz{ihrs ekoikA s/ j'J/ 34H62 eo'V o[[gJ/ d/ you/ Pkwb jB, i' fe ;kb d"okB g{o/ ehs/ rJ/ 

jB, go gz{ihrs BjhA ehs/ rJ/ jB, fi;d/ Bshi/ ti'A gqrsh nXhB gz{ihrs ekoikA dh 34H62 eo'V Bkb tZX 

fpnkBh ns/ ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;ki' ;wkB dh xZN fpnkBh j'Jh j?.

phH2  fJe[nNh ns/ d/DdkohnK ̂  fJe[nNh P/no g{zih (B'N^17) L 605H88 eo'V o[gJ/

  gzikp T{oik y/so ;[Xko ns/ spdhbh ;ehw 2010 B{z nwb ftu fbnkT[D eoe/ ezgBh dh fJe[nNh ftZu 

ygsekoK d/ nzPdkB, roKNK ns/ ;pf;vhnK dh oew 338H97 eo'V o[gJ/ B{z oki ;oeko dh g{zih ftZu }bs 

gzikp ;N/N NoK;fwPB ekog'o/PB fbfwfNv d/ 31 wkou 2023 B{z ;wkgs j'J/ ;kb 

dhnK ftZsh ;koDhnK T[Zs/ ezgBhI n?eN 2013 dh Xkok 143(6)(ph) d/ nzsors 

Gkos d/ ezgNo'bo ns/ wjK b/yk^gVskbeko dhnK fNZgDhnK.
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spdhb ehsk frnk j?. fJ; Bkb fJe[nNh P/no g{zih dh tZX^fpnkBh ns/ j'o fJe[nNh^iBob okyt/A dh 

338H97 eo'V o[gJ/ xZN^fpnkBh j'Jh j?.

;hH y[[bk;/ s/ fNZgDhnkA

;hH1 eowukoh bkG dk youk (B'N – 34)

 ezgBh B/ fJj y[[bk;k BjhA ehsk j? fe T[;B/ gzikp T{oik y/so ;[Xko spdhbh (gfjbh ;'X) d/ sfjs 

ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH s'A ;?fezvw?AN$ v?g{N/;aB s/ eowukohnkA d/ ;pzX ftZu  b'VhAd/ g?B;aB, rq?u[[Nh, bht 

fJBe?;aw?AN, n?e;^rq/;ahnk, w?vheb nkfd tor/ NowhBb bkGkA bJh nkgD/ fjZ;/ dh (11H36 gqsh;as) d/Ddkoh 

gqdkB BjhA ehsh j?. ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH d[[nkok 31 wkou, 2022 sZe dh fwnkd bJh 46,960H67 eo'V o[gJ/ 

d/ o{g ftZu n?u[[ohnb w~[bkAeD d[[nkok, ;ko/ eowukohnkA bJh ;zus NowhBb bkG d/Ddkoh (nr;s 2022) 

fBoXkos eotkJh rJh ;h.

;hH2 bx{, S'N/ ns/ dofwnkB/ T[d:'rK d/ pekJ/ (B'N ̂  60)

 bx{, S'N/ ns/ dofwnkB/ T[d:'r ftek; n?eN, 2006 (n?eN) dh Xkok 22 dh gkbDk ftZu B'N 60 ftZu ehs/ 

y[[bk;/ bJh fJZe jtkbk wzfrnk ikAdk j? fi; ftZu fBoXkos fdB s'A pknd d/ G[[rskBkA bJh n?wHn?;Hn?wHJhH 

cowkA Bz{ G[[rskB$ G[[rskB:'r oewkA Bz{ fBb ti'A do;kfJnk frnk j?. ikAu gVskb d"okB, 29 n?wHn?;Hn?wHJhH 

cowkA Bz{ 4H02 eo'V o[gJ/ dh oew dk G[[rskB, 56 fdBkA sZe, fBoXkos fwshnkA s'A pknd nkT[N;N?Afvzr 

gkfJnk frnk. fJ; soQkA ezgBh Bz{ n?eN d/ sfjs dzv d/ ftnki bJh itkpd/j pDkfJnk ikAdk j?. y[[bk;k T[; 

jZd sZe xkN j?.

Gkos d/ ezgNo'bo ns/ 

wjKb/yk^gVskbeko dh so|'A ns/ bJh

            ^;jh^

                (BkIbh i/HPkfJB)

fwsh L 24H08H2023               w[Zy wjK b/ykeko (gVskb) gzikp,

;EkBL uzvhrVQ                                                                       uzvhrVQ. 
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The above includes an amount of ₹ 86.46 lakh 

recoverable from power utility of Rajasthan for the 
period 1991-2004, which has been booked as 
O&M charges of 66 KV Muktsar - Ganganagar 
line. Since, 66 KV transmission lines are not under 
the jurisdiction of Company, the same has resulted 
in overstatement of ‘Non-Current Assets’ and 

profit by ₹ 86.46 lakh.

The above includes expenditure of ₹ 34.62 crore 

incurred on eight capital works which have been 
completed during the year but have not been 
capitalized resulting in overstatement of ‘Capital 
Work in Progress’ and understatement of ‘Property, 

Plant and Equipments’ by ₹ 34.62 crore.

Pursuant to the implementation of Punjab Power 
Sector Reforms Transfer Scheme 2010, 

consumer’s contribution, grants and subsidies of ₹ 

338.97 crore were wrongly converted into capital 
of the State Government in equity of the Company. 
This has resulted in overstatement of ‘Equity Share 

The amount of Rs.86.46 lakhs pertain to the period 
prior to 16-04-2010 (1991-2004) for O&M charges 
of 66 KV Mukatsar – Sri Ganganagar line 
constructed by Rajasthan Electricity Board.
R.S.E.B. now R.V.P.N. has principally accepted the 
claims of O&M charges but has linked it to 
recovery of dues from PSPCL. As soon as the 
matter is resolved with PSPCL the amount will be 
recovered.
Thus, there is no overstatement of ‘Non-Current 

Assets’ and profit by ₹ 86.46 lakh.

In this regard it is submitted that out of the 8 no.  
works 5 no. works were completed but some of the 
works were pending on those works and could not 
have been utilized as an asset till 31-03-2023 and 
regarding 3 no. works major expenditure has 
already been capitalized. However, employee 
cost/interest capitalization made in march 2023 has 
now been capitalized in FY 2023-24.
Thus, there is no overstatement of ‘Capital Work in 
Progress’ and understatement of ‘Property, Plant 

and Equipments’ by ₹ 34.62 crore.

In this regard, it is submitted that pursuant to the 
Punjab Power Sector Reforms Transfer Scheme 
2010 as amended by Punjab Power Sector Reforms 
Transfer (First amendment) Scheme 2012, the 
Government of Punjab took over all the assets, 
liabilities, interest etc. of the PSEB and the same 

Observations raised by C&AG

COMMENTS ON PROFITABILITY

Equity and Liabilities - Equity Share Capital (Note 17) – ₹ 605.88 crore

Sr. No. Reply by Management

Reply on Final Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of 

India u/s 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of 

PSTCL for the year ended 31st March 2023

A.

B.2

A.1 Non Current Assets – Financial Assets – Other (Note 8) – ₹ 1.58 crore

COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL POSITIONB.

B.1 Non Current Assets – Capital Work in Progress (Note 6&7) - ₹ 556.51 crore

81

th13  Annual Report 2022-23 PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED



Capital’ and understatement of ‘Other Equity – 

General Reserve' by ₹ 338.97 crore.

The Company has not disclosed that it has not 
provided for its share (11.36 per cent) of liability 
for terminal benefits such as pension, gratuity, 
leave encashment, ex-gratia, medical etc. as 
required under Punjab Power Sector Reforms 
Transfer (First Amendment) Scheme, 2012, in 
respect of employees on secondment/deputation 
from PSPCL. PSPCL has got determined (August 
2022) through actuarial valuation, the cumulative 
terminal benefit liability for all employees, for the 

period up to 31 March 2022 as ₹46,960.67 crore.

were vested in the State Govt. at the book value. 
The entire shareholding of State Govt. in PSEB 
including consumer contribution, grants and 
subsidies etc. stood cancelled and thereafter PSEB 
ceased to operate w.e.f. 16.04.2010. The 
transmission undertakings as classified under the 
Transfer Scheme 2010 were vested in PSTCL at a 
value with the stipulation that as a consideration for 
such transfer and vesting, the shares shall stand 
issued as may be notified by the State Govt. PSTCL 
was vested with the transmission undertaking at a 
total value of Rs.4114.28 crores as on 16.04.2010 
as mentioned in the State Government Notification 
No. 1/4/04-EB(PR)/632  dated 24th December 
2012 and in consideration of such vesting State 
Government was entitled to fully paid up equity 
shares of Rs.605.83 crores in share capital of 
PSTCL as per the said notification dated 
24.12.2012. As such, there is no overstatement of 
Equity Share capital and understatement of Other 
Equity – General Reserve by Rs. 338.97 crores.
These facts have also been reported on the 
comments of C&AG in previous years.

Complete disclosure about this para has already 
been given in the note no. 34.6 & 34.7 “Employee 
benefits expense – Terminal benefits” of notes to 
accounts of annual accounts of FY 2022-23.
PSTCL is making provisions as per actuary’s 
valuation report on the basis of Ind AS-19 in 
respect of employees recruited by PSTCL, 
however no provision is made for employees 
working in PSTCL on deputation/secondment 
from PSPCL as Ind AS-19 is not applicable on 
these employees in PSTCL and has to be accounted 
for by PSPCL being the parent department.
Therefore, no provision @ 11.36% of actuarial 
liability on account of total terminal liability as per 
actuary’s valuation report of PSPCL, has been 
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Observations raised by C&AGSr. No. Reply by Management

C.2 Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (Note 60)

made for progressive funding. Moreover, 
progressive funding is not being allowed by 
PSERC as per Punjab Power Sector Reforms 
Transfer (First Amendment) Scheme 2012.

A reference is invited to disclosures made at Note 
60 in compliance with section 22 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006 (Act) wherein the amounts paid/payable to 
MSME firms for payment beyond the appointed 
day have been shown as NIL. During test check, 

payments amount to ₹ 4.02 crore to 29 MSME 

firms were observed to be lying outstanding, for 
periods upto 56 days beyond appointed dates, 
thereby making the company liable to penal 
interest under the Act. The disclosure is deficient to 
that extent.

In this regard it is submitted that almost in all cases 
the delay is due to non-receipt of timely grant from 
Govt. of India. Had PSTCL made the payment from 
its own funds, the grant would have gone. The list 
of the firms provided by the audit has been 
thoroughly checked and it is submitted that 
information contained in the disclosure is true as no 
penal interest has been claimed/paid by the 
firms/PSTCL during FY 2022-23. As and when the 
firms will claim the penal interest and paid by 
PSTCL after proper scrutiny and reasoning it will 
be shown in the disclosure. 
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w?B/iw?AN dk itkpbVh BzH

J/H

J/H1

phH

phH1

T[go'es d/ ftZu oki;EkB gkto :{fNfbNh s'A 

1991^2004 dh fwnkd d"okB dh 86H46 bZy o[[gJ/ 

dh t;{bh:'r oew Pkwb j?. i' fe 66 e/HthH 

w[[es;o^rzrkBro bkfJB d/ U ns/ n?w d/ you/ ti'A 

p~[e ehsh rJh j?. feT[Afe 66 e/HthH NokA;fwPB 

bkJhBkA ezgBh d/ nfXeko y/so ftZu BjhA jB. fi; 

d/ Bshi/ ti' r?o^ukb{ ;zgshnkA ns/ bkG dh 86H46 

bZy o[[gJ/ Bkb tZX fpnkBh j'Jh j?.

T[go'es ftZu nZm gz{ihrs ekoikA s/ j'J/ 34H62 

eo'V o[[gJ/ d/ you/ Pkwb jB, i' fe ;kb d"okB g{o/ 

ehs/ rJ/ jB, go  gz{ihrs BjhA ehs/ rJ/ jB, fi;d/ 

Bshi/ ti'A gqrsh nXhB gz{ihrs ekoikA dh 34H62 

eo'V Bkb tZX fpnkBh ns/ ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ 

;ki' ;wkB dh xZN fpnkBh j'Jh j?.

86H46 bZy o[[gJ/ dh oew oki;EkB fpibh p'ov 

d[[nkok pDkJh rJh 66 e/th w[[es;o ^ ;qh rzrkBro 

bkJhB d/ U ns/ n?w ukoi bJh 16^04^2010 

(1991^2004) s'A gfjbkA dh fwnkd Bkb ;pzXs j?.

nkoHn?;HJhHphH j[[D nkoHthHghHn?BH B/ w~[y s"o s/ U 

ns/ n?wH yofunkA d/ dknftnkA Bz{ ;theko eo fbnk j? 

go fJ;Bz{ ghHn?;HghH;hHn?b s'A pekfJnk dh t;{bh 

Bkb i'fVnk j?. fit/A jh ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH Bkb wkwbk 

;[[bMk fbnk ikt/rk skA oew t;{bh ikt/rh.

fJ; soQkA, r?o^w"i{dk ;zgshnkA ns/ ₹ 86H46 bZy d/ 

bkG dh e'Jh tXheh BjhA j?.

fJ; ;pzXh doi j? fe 8 BzH ezwK ftZu'A 5 BzH ezw g{o/ eo 

bJ/ rJ/ ;B go T[BQkA ezwkA s/ e[[M ezw pekfJnk gJ/ ;B 

ns/ 31^03^2023 sZe ;zgsh ti'A BjhA tos/ ik ;ed/ 

;B ns/ 3 BzH ezw d/ tZv/ yofunkA dk gfjbkA jh 

gz{iheoD ehsk ik u~[ek j?. jkbkAfe, wkou 2023 ftZu 

ehs/ rJ/ eowukoh bkrs$ftnki dk gz{iheoD j[[D 

ftZsh ;kb 2023^24 ftZu eo fdZsk frnk j?.

fJ; soQkA, gqrsh nXhB gz{ihrs ekoIkA ns/ ikfJdkd, 

wPhBoh ns/ ;ki' ;wkB dh ₹ 34H62 eo'V Bkb tZX 

fpnkBh BjhA j'Jh j?.

31 wkou, 2023 B{z \sw j'J/ ;kb bJh gzikp ;N/N NoK;fwPB ekog'o/PB 

fbfwfNv dhnK ftZsh ;koDhnK s/, ezgBhI n?eN, 2013 dh Xkok 143(6)(ph) 

nXhB Gkos d/ ezgNo'bo ns/ wjK b/yk^gVskbeko dhnK fNZgDhnK dk itkp

;hH n?Av J/HihH tZb'A brkJ/ rJ/ gq/yD 

bkGdkfJesk T[Zs/ fNZgDh
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r?o^ukb{ ;zgshnK^ftZsh ;zgshnK ^j'o (B'N 8)^1H58 eo'V o[gJ/

ftZsh ;fEsh T[Zs/ fNZgDh

r?o^ukb{ ;zgshnK^gqrsh nXhB g{zihrs ekoi (B'N^6 ns/ 7)^551H51 eo'V o[gJ/

phH2

gzikp T{oik y/so ;[Xko ns/ spdhbh ;ehw 2010 B{z 

nwb ftu fbnkT[D eoe/ ezgBh dh fJe[nNh ftZu 

ygsekoK d/ nzPdkB, roKNK ns/ ;pf;vhnK dh 

oew 338H97 eo'V ਰੁਪਏ  B{z oki ;oeko dh g{zih 

fJ; ;zpzX ftZu, fJj dZf;nk iKdk j? fe gzikp T{oik 

y/so ;[Xko spdhbh ;ehw 2010, gzikp T{oik y/so 

;[Xko spdhbh (gfjbh ;'X) ;ehw 2012 Bkb ;'X/ 

nB[;ko gzikp ;oeko B/ ghHn?;HJhHphH dhnK ;kohnK 

fJe[fJNh ns/ d/DdkohnK^fJe[nNh P/no g{zih (B'N 17) ^ 605H88 eo'V o[gJ/
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;hH

;hH1

ezgBh B/ fJj y[[bk;k BjhA ehsk j? fe T[;B/ gzikp 

T{oik y/so ;[Xko spdhbh (gfjbh ;'X) d/ sfjs 

ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH s'A ;?fezvw?AN$ v?g{N/;aB s/ 

eowukohnkA d/ ;pzX ftZu  b'VhAd/ g?B;aB, rq?u[[Nh, 

bht fJBe?;aw?AN, n?e;^rq/;ahnk, w?vheb nkfd 

tor/ NowhBb bkGkA bJh nkgD/ fjZ;/ dh (11H36 

gqsh;as) d/Ddkoh gqdkB BjhA ehsh j?. 

ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH d[[nkok 31 wkou, 2022 sZe dh 

fwnkd bJh 46,960H67 eo'V o[gJ/ d/ o{g ftZu 

n?u[[ohnb w~[bkAeD d[[nkok, ;ko/ eowukohnkA bJh 

;zus NowhBb bkG d/Ddkoh (nr;s 2022) 

fBoXkos eotkJh rJh ;h.

ftZu }bs spdhb ehsk frnk j?. fJ; Bkb 

fJe[nNh P/no g{zih dh tZX^fpnkBh ns/ j'o 

fJe[nNh iBob okyt/A dh ਰਕਮ 338H97 eo'V ਰੁਪਏ  

xZN^fpnkBh j'Jh j?.

fJ; g?ok pko/ g{ok y[[bk;k gfjbkA jh B'N Bzpo 34H6 ns/ 

34H7 ‘eowukoh bkG you/ ^ NowhBb bkG’ ftZu 

ftZsh ;kb 2022^23 d/ ;bkBk ykfsnkA d/ B'N; ftZu 

fdZsk ik u~[ek j?.

ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?b d[[nkok Gosh ehs/ eowukohnkA d/ 

;pzX ftZu fJzv J/Hn?;^19 d/ nXko s/ n?eu[[oh dh 

w[[bkAeD fog'oN d/ nB[[;ko ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH  gqpzX 

eo fojk j?, jkbkAfe ghHn?;HghH;hHn?b s'A 

v?g{N/;aB$;?ezvw?AN s/ ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH ftZu ezw eo 

oj/ eowukohnkA bJh e'Jh ftt;Ek BjhA ehsh rJh j? 

feT[Afe fJzv J/Hn?;^19 ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?b ftZu fJjBkA 

eowukohnkA s/ bkr{ BjhA j?. fJj ftt;Ek  

;zgshnK, d/DdkohnK, jZe nkfd b? bJ/ ns/ fJj oki 

;oeko B/ feskph ehws s/ oZy bJhnK. oki ;oeko 

dh ghHn?;HJhHphH ftZu ;w[Zuh fjZ;/dkoh ;w/s 

ygseko nzPdkB, roKNK s/ ;pf;vhnK nkfd oZd j' 

rJ/ ns/ T[; s'A pknd ghHn?;HJhHphH B/ 16H04H2010 s'A 

ezw eoBk pzd eo fdZsk. spdhbh ;ehw 2010 nXhB 

torhfeqs NoK;fwPB eko'pko ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH 

ftZu fJZe ehws s/ fJ; Pos Bkb oZy/ rJ/ fe fJ; 

spdhbh ns/ ;"AgD dh ehws ti'A oki ;oeko d/ 

B'NhckJh eoB w[skpe P/no ikoh ehs/ ikDr/. 

ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH B{z NoK;fwPB eko'pko oki ;oeko 

d/ B'Nhfce/PB BzH 1$4$04^Jhph (ghnko)$632 fwsh 24 

d;zpo 2012 ftZu do;kJ/ w[skfpe 4114H28 eo'V 

ਰੁਪਏ dh e[Zb ehws s/ fdZs/ rJ/ ns/ fJ; dh ehws ti'A 

fwsh 24H12H2012 d/ T[es B'Nhfce/PB nB[;ko oki 

;oeko B{z ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH dh P/no g{zih ftZu        

605H83 eo'V ਰੁਪਏ d/ g{oB ndk ehs/ fJe[nNh P/no 

fwbD:'r ;B. fJ; soQK, T[ZE/ 338H97 eo'V ਰੁਪਏ Bkb 

fJe[nNh P/no g{zih dh tZX^fpnkBh ns/ j'o 

fJe[nNh^iBob okyt/A dh xZN^fpnkBh BjhA j'Jh j?.

;hH n?Av J/HihH dhnK fgZSb/ ;kbK dhnK fNZgDhnK 

T[Zgo fJj sZE fog'oN ehs/ ik uZ[e/ jB.

y[bk;/ s/ fNZgDhnK

eowukoh bkG dk youk (B'N^34)

w?B/iw?AN dk itkpbVh BzH ;hH n?Av J/HihH tZb'A brkJ/ rJ/ gq/yD 
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w?B/iw?AN dk itkpbVh BzH ;hH n?Av J/HihH tZb'A brkJ/ rJ/ gq/yD 

ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH tZb'A eoBh pDdh j? feT[Afe T[j 

g/o?AN ftGkr j?. 

fJ; bJh, ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH dh n?eu[[oh dh w[[bkAeD 

fog'oN d/ nB[[;ko e~[b NowhBb d/Ddkoh d/ fj;kp Bkb 

11H36# n?u[[ohnb d/Ddkoh dk gqrsh;ahb czfvzr bJh 

gqpzX BjhA ehsk frnk j?. fJ; s'A fJbktk, gzikp T{oik 

y/so ;[Xko spdhbh (gfjbh ;'X) ;ehw 2012 d/ 

nB[[;ko ghHn?;HJhHnkoH;hH d[[nkok gqrsh;ahb czfvzr 

dh nkfrnk BjhA fdZsh ik ojh j?.

;hH2

;{yw, bx{ ns/ dofwnkB/ T[d:'r ftek; n?eN, 

2006 (n?eN) dh Xkok 22 dh gkbDk ftZu B'N 60 

ftZu ehs/ y[[bk;/ bJh fJZe jtkbk wzfrnk ikAdk j? 

fi; ftZu fBoXkos fdB s'A pknd d/ G[[rskBkA bJh 

n?wHn?;Hn?wHJhH cowkA Bz{ G[[rskB $ G[[rskB:'r 

oewkA Bz{ fBb ti'A do;kfJnk frnk j?. ikAu gVskb 

d"okB, 29 n?wHn?;Hn?wHJhH cowkA Bz{ 4H02 eo'V 

o[gJ/ dh oew dk G[[rskB, 56 fdBkA sZe, fBoXkos 

fwshnkA s'A pknd nkT[N;N?Afvzr gkfJnk frnk. 

fJ; soQkA ezgBh Bz{ n?eN d/ sfjs dzv d/ ftnki bJh 

itkpd/j pDkfJnk ikAdk j?. y[[bk;k T[; jZd sZe 

xkN j?.

fJ; ;pzX ftZu dZf;nk ikAdk j? fe brGr ;ko/ 

wkwfbnkA ftZu d/oh Gkos ;oeko tZb'A ;w/A f;o rqkAN 

Bk fwbD ekoB jz[dh j?. i/eo ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH B/ 

nkgD/ czvkA s'A G[[rskB ehsk jz[dk, skA rqkAN ubh ikDh 

;h. nkfvN d[[nkok gqdkB ehshnkA rJhnkA cowkA dh 

;{uh dh uzrh soQkA ikAu ehsh rJh j? ns/ fJj g/;a ehsk 

frnk j? fe y[[bk;/ ftZu ;akwb ikDekoh ;Zu j? feT[Afe 

cowkA$ghn?;Nh;hn?b d[[nkok ftZsh ;kb 2022^23 

d"okB e'Jh i[[owkBk ftnki dk dkntk$G[[rskB BjhA 

ehsk frnk j?. fit/A ns/ id'A cowkA i[[owkBk ftnki dk 

dkntk eoBrhnkA ns/ ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH d[[nkok 

T[fus ikAu ns/ soe d/ pknd G[[rskB ehsk ikt/rk, 

fJj y[[bk;/ ftZu fdykfJnk ikt/rk.

wkJheo', bx{ ns/ dofwnkB/ T[d:'rK d/ pekJ/ (B'N^60)
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(Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 
No. ਵੇਰਵੇ

 Note 

No. 

 Figures as at March 31, 

2023 

 Figures as at March 31, 

2022 

I ASSETS ;zgshnK

1.  Non current assets 1 r?o^ukb{ ;zgshnK

(a) (T) ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB ਅਤੇ ਸੰਪਤੀਆਂ

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment (i) ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB 3 7,05,528.09 7,12,198.24
(ii) Intangible Assets (ii) ਸੰਪਤੀਆਂ 4 14.97 7.82

(b) Assets held for sale (n) vycx leI r~KIAW sMpqIAW 5 468.48 732.05
(c) Capital work in progress (J) gqrsh nXhB g{zihrs ekoi 6 & 7 55,651.44 35,694.06
(d) Financial Assets (;)  ftZsh ;zgshnK

(i) Others (i)  j'o 8 158.07 303.38
(e) Other non current assets (h) j'o r?o^ukb{ ;zgshnK 9 135.41 150.26

Total (3+4+ 5+6&7+8+9)                                                    A ku~l (3+4+5+6 Aqy 7+8+9)                                  a 7,61,956.47 7,49,085.82
2.  Current assets 2 ukb{ ;zgshnK

(a) Inventories (T) wkb^;{uh (fJBt?BNoh) 10 1,564.08 1,311.04
(b) Financial assets (n) ftZsh ;zgshnK

(i) Trade receivables (i) tgkoe b?D:''r 11 51,800.86 39,304.13
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents (ii) Bedh ns/ Bedh ;wkB 12 474.28 1,835.87
(iii) Bank balance other than (ii) above (iii) bYNk bkwieAw auprokq (ii) qoN ibnW 13 82.68 84.26
(iv) Others (iv) j'o 14 183.29 235.35

(c) Current tax assets (Net) (J) ukb{ eo ;zgshnK (fBo'b) 15 391.78 4,044.68
(d) Other current assets (;) j'o ukb{ ;zgshnK 16 706.58 428.95

Total (10+11+12+13+14+15+16)                                        B ku~l (10+11+12+13+14+15+16)                             A 55,203.54 47,244.28
Grand Total                                                                  (A+B) ku~l joV                                                    (a+A) 8,17,160.01 7,96,330.09

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES fJe[nNh ns/ d/DdkohnK

EQUITY fJe[nNh

(a) Equity share capital (T) fJe[nNh P/no g{zih 17 60,588.35 60,588.35
(b) Other equity (n) j'o fJe[nNh 18 2,54,565.17 2,44,475.48

Total (17+18)                                                                       A ku~l (17+18)                                                   a 3,15,153.52 3,05,063.83
LIABILITIES d/DdkohnK

1.  Non current liabilities 1 r?o^ukb{ d/DdkohnK

(a) Financial liabilities (T) ftZsh d/DdkohnK

(i) Borrowings (i) eoI/ 19 3,05,728.56 3,24,446.66
(ii) Lease Liabilities (ii) ptw dyxdwrIAW 20 720.93 715.34
(iii) Trade Payables (iii) 21

(A)  Total outstanding dues of Small Enterprises 

and Micro enterprises 

(T) - -

(B)  Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than 

small enterprises and micro enterprises 

(n) - -

(b) Provisions (n) T[gpzX 22 5,361.41 4,097.44
(c) Other non current liabilities (J) j'o r?o^ukb{ d/DdkohnK 23 18,193.01 12,083.81

Total (19+20+21+22+23)                                                    B ku~l (19+20+21+22+23)                                     A 3,30,003.91 3,41,343.25
2.  Current liabilities 2 ukb{ d/DdkohnK

(a) Financial liabilities (T) ftZsh d/DdkohnK

(i) Borrowings (i) eoI/ 24&25 107,835.89 112,622.36
(ii) Lease Liabilities (ii) ptw dyxdwrIAW 26 76.42 76.42
(iii) Trade Payables (iii) 27

(A)  Total outstanding dues of Small Enterprises 

and Micro enterprises 

(T) - -

(B)  Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than 

small enterprises and micro enterprises 

(n) - -

(iv)  Other nancial liabilities (other than those 

specied in item (c) below) 

(iv)  j'o ftZsh d/DdkohnK (f;tkJ/ T[BQK d/ i' ਹੇਠ� (J) ftZu 

T[fbZys jB)
28 34,823.66 12,438.30

(b) Other current liabilities (n) j'o ukb{ d/DdkohnK 29 917.42 820.84

(c) Provisions (J) T[gpzX 30 146.85 100.70
Total (24&25+26+27+28+29+30)                                      C ku~l (24 Aqy 25+26+27+28+29+30)                        e 1,43,800.25 1,26,058.63

sQigq mwlIAw                               31 28,202.33 23,864.39
ku~l                                                              s 28,202.33 23,864.39

Grand Total                                                      (A+B+C+D) ku~l joV                                             (a+A+e+s) 8,17,160.01 7,96,330.09
Signicant accounting policies wjZstg{oB b/yk BhshnK 2

The accompanied Notes 1 to 71 form an integral part of these nancial statements

BZEh B'N 1 s'A 71 fJjBK ftZsh ;koDhnK dk nfBZyVtK Gkr jB

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For K. S.  Dua & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN 017478N Sd/- Sd/-

(Vinod Kumar Bansal) (A. Venu Prasad)

Sd/- Director/F&C Chairman-cum-Managing

(CA Swarn Singh Dhillon) Director

Partner

M.No. 527610 Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Patiala (Sudhir Kumar) (Sahil Panday)

Date: 26.06.2023 Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary

 Particulars 

 3.  Deferred revenue 

 Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets 

Total                                                                                    D

n;E{b

n;E{b

tgkoe d/D:'r

bx{ T[d:'rK ns/ ;{yw T[d:'rK d/ e[Zb pekfJnk

bx{ T[d:'rK ns/ ;{yw T[d:'rK s' fJbktk b?Ddko d/ e[Zb

pekfJnk

tgkoe d/D:'r

bx{ T[d:'rK ns/ ;{yw T[d:'rK d/ e[Zb pekfJnk

bx{ T[d:'rK ns/ ;{yw T[d:'rK s' fJbktk b?Ddko d/ e[Zb

pekfJnk

3
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* Provision for Tax expense- Current Tax has not been made due to NIL Taxable Income as per provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961.

* ਆਮਦਨ ਕਰ ਐਕਟ, 1961 ਦੇ ਉਪਬੰਧਾ ਅਨੁਸਾਰ fBZb ਕਰਯੋਗ ਆਮਦਨ ਦੇ ਕਾਰਨ ਕਰ ਖਰਚੇ ਸੰਬੰਧੀ ਉਪਬੰਧ-ਚਾਲੂ ਕਰ ਨਹੀਂ ਕੀਤਾ ਿਗਆ ਹੈ।

Sr. 

No.
ਵੇਰਵੇ

Note 

No.

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022

I Income nkwdB

(a) Revenue from operations (T) ;zukbBK s'A wkbhnk 32 1,59,442.54 1,47,257.54

(b) Other Income (n) j''o nkwdB 33 3,494.82 4,169.57

Total Income A e[Zb nkwdB                                            ੳ 1,62,937.36 1,51,427.12

II Expenses \ou/

(a) Employee benefits expense (T) eowukoh bkG \ou/ 34 78,109.68 55,610.04

(b) Finance costs (n) ftZsh bkrsK 35 34,708.60 37,010.12

(c) Depreciation, amortization  & impairment expenses (J) w[Zb^xkNk, okyt/AeoB ns/ ftrkV \ou/ 36 31,460.08 30,449.07

(d) Other expenses (;)  j'o \ou/

(i) Repairs & maintenance (i) w[ozws s/ ;KG ;zGkb 37 3,572.87 3,178.61

(ii) Administration & General expenses (ii) gqPk;eh ns/ ;XkoB \ou/ 38 2,759.71 2,551.85

(iii) ULDC charges (iii) :{Hn?bHvhH;hH \ou/ 39 1,252.29 888.03

(iv) Others expenses/debits (iv) j''o \ou/$v?fpN; 40 738.26 91.46

(v) CSR activities (v) ਸੀHਐਸHਆਰH ਗਤੀਿਵਧੀਆਂ 41 131.15 -

Total expenses B e[Zb \ou/                                              A 1,52,732.63 1,29,779.19

III Profit/(Loss) before tax (A-B) C bkG$(jkBh) eo s'A gfjbK (a-A)                            e 10,204.73 21,647.93

Tax expense eo \ouk

- Current tax * - ukb{ eo * - -

Total Tax Expense D e[Zb eo \ouk                                                s - -

IV Profit/(Loss) for the period (C-D) E bkG$(jkBh) ntXh dk   (e-s)                              h 10,204.73 21,647.93

V Other Comprehensive Income j'o ft;fsqs nkwdB

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (T) wZdK fijVhnK bkG iK jkBh Bz{ torhfeqs BjhA ehshnK ikDrhnK

-Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Gratuity ^  rq?u[Nh T[Zs/ n?eu[ohnb bkG$(jkBh) 42 (115.04) (137.98)

Other Comprehensive Income F j'o ft;fsqs nkwdB                                          k (115.04) (137.98)

VI Total Comprehensive Income for the period (E + F) ntXh dh e[Zb ft;fsqs nkwdB (h+k) 10,089.69 21,509.94

Earnings per equity share gqsh P/no nkwdB 

Basic & Diluted  (  ) p//f;e ns/ sob (  ) 56 1.68 3.57

Particulars

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For K. S.  Dua & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN 017478N Sd/- Sd/-

(Vinod Kumar Bansal) (A. Venu Prasad)

Sd/- Director/F&C Chairman-cum-Managing

(CA Swarn Singh Dhillon) Director

Partner

M.No. 527610 Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Patiala (Sudhir Kumar) (Sahil Panday)

Date: 26.06.2023 Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary
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Sr. 

No.
PARTICULARS

(A) Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit/(Loss) before tax 10,204.73

       

21,647.93

           

Adjustment for:-

i Income/Loss from sale of fixed assets (533.90)

          

(1,603.38)

       

ii Interest on Bank deposits (4.33)

              

(3.69)

              

iii Provision withdrawn on unserviceable/obsolete items - O&M (3.93)

              

-

           

iv Provision withdrawn/utilised for losses under investigation (78.24)

            

-

           

v Provision for obsolete items - Capital 296.37

            

0.72

                

vi Provision withdrawn for doubtful due from consumers (1.39)

              

(0.40)

              

vii Provision withdrawn for obsolete items - Capital -

           

(0.06)

              

viii Provision for losses under investigation/doubtful recoveries from 

employees/suppliers
318.96

            

15.93

              

ix Provision for obsolete items - O&M -

           

3.82

                

x Finance cost 34,708.60

       

37,010.12

       

xi Depreciation, Amortization & Impairment Expenses 31,460.08

       

30,449.07

       

xii Reversal of excess provision of impairment loss -

           

66,162.22

       

(174.40)

          

65,697.74

           

Operating Profit/(Loss) before working capital changes 76,366.95

       

87,345.67

           

Adjustment for working capital changes:

(Increase)/Decrease in :-

i Trade receivables (12,495.34)

     

(10,528.81)

     

ii Inventories (249.11)

          

228.63

            

iii Other non current financial assets (excluding provision) 184.52

            

(76.19)

            

iv Other non current assets (125.50)

          

(128.80)

          

v Bank balance other than cash & cash equivalent 1.58

                

(1.19)

              

vi Other current financial assets (87.52)

            

534.22

            

vii Other current assets (277.64)

          

337.04

            

Increase/(Decrease) in 

viii Non current provisions (including OCI) 1,148.93 957.90
ix Current provisions 46.15 33.60
x Other non current liabilities 6,109.20 (13,353.58)

xi Other current financial liabilities (excluding interest accrued & borrowings) 22,245.25 (133.36)
xii Other current liabilities 96.58 215.14

Net working capital change 16,597.12 (21,915.40)
Cash generated from operations 92,964.07 65,430.28
Income tax (paid)/TDS/Refund (Net) 3,652.90 764.86
Net Cash from operating activities 96,616.97 66,195.14

(B) Cash Flow from investing activities

i (Increase)/Decrease in :-

a PPE (Net carrying amount + Depreciation excluding capitalized) (26,115.96) (38,858.58)
b Intangible assets (Net carrying amount + Amortization) (9.87) (0.27)
c Assets held for sale (Net carrying amount + Impairment - reversal) 263.57 (293.47)
d Capital work in progress including capital stores(excluding provisions) (20,253.75) 501.37

ii Income/Loss from sale of fixed assets 533.90 1,603.38
iii Interest on Bank deposits 4.33 3.69
iv Consumer contribution for creating fixed assets 3,181.54 14,970.88
v Government grants received towards cost of capital assets - yet to be utilized 2,165.22 615.59
vi Government grants received towards cost of capital assets - utilized 319.94 690.41

Net Cash used in investing activities (39,911.09) (20,766.99)
(C) Cash Flow from financing activities

i Finance cost paid after adjustment of interest accrued on loans and lease 

liabilities
(34,568.49) (39,048.05)

ii Proceeds from long term borrowings (including current maturities) 63,138.66 35,453.87
iii Repayments of long term borrowings (including current maturities) (87,552.53) (63,979.37)
iv Proceeds from short term borrowings 10,909.29 32,159.35
v Repayments of short term borrowings (10,000.00) (9,999.81)

vi Proceeds from Lease liabilities 27.41 27.01
vii Repayments of lease liabilities (21.82) (15.43)

Net Cash from financing activities (58,067.47) (45,402.44)
(D) Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1,361.59) 25.70
(E) Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,835.87 1,810.17
(F) Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note No.12) 474.28 1,835.87

For the year ended March 31, 

2023

For the year ended March 31, 

2022

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For K. S.  Dua & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN 017478N Sd/- Sd/-

(Vinod Kumar Bansal) (A. Venu Prasad)

Sd/- Director/F&C Chairman-cum-Managing

(CA Swarn Singh Dhillon) Director

Partner

M.No. 527610 Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Patiala (Sudhir Kumar) (Sahil Panday)

Date: 26.06.2023 Chief Financial Ofcer Company Secretary



Bedh gqtkj ;koDh 31 wkou, 2023 B{z \sw j'J/ ;kb bJh
gzikp ;N/N NoK;fwPB ekog'o/PB fbfwNv

(o[gJ/ bZyK ftZu)
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(T) ;zukbB rshftXhnK s'A Bedh gqtkj  

fBo'b bkG$(jkBh) eo s'A gfjbK 10,204.73 21,647.93
bJh ;wk:'iBL

i nuZb ;zgshnK dh fteoh s'A nkwdB/hwnI (533.90) (1,603.38)
ii bYNk jmHW qy ivAwj (4.33) (3.69)

iii Bk^w[ozws:'r/ngqufbs^ ;zukbB s/ ;KG ;zGkb, ;zpzXh T[gpzX tkg; fbnk (3.93) -
iv jWc ADIn hwnI leI aupbMD vwps ilAw/ਵਰਿਤਆ ਿਗਆ (78.24) -
v ngqufbs t;s{nK^g{zihrs, ;zpzXh T[gpzX 296.37 0.72

vi KpqkwrW koloN S~kI lYxXog sMbMDI aupbMD (1.39) (0.40)
vii ngqufbs t;s{nK ^ g{zihrs, ;zpzXh T[gpzX tkg; fbnk - (0.06)

viii 318.96 15.93
ix ngqufbs t;s{nK^;zukbB s/ ;KG ;zGkb, ;zpzXh T[gpzX 

iKu nXhB jkBh ;pzXh T[gpzX$ eowukohnK$ ;gbkfJoK s'A PZeh t;{bh

- 3.82
x ftZsh bkrs 34,708.60 37,010.12

xi w[Zb^xkNk, okyt/AeoB ns/ ftrkV ^rcy 31,460.08 30,449.07
xii ivgwV nukswn dy vwDU aupbMD dI vwpsI -

           

66,162.22

       

(174.40) 65,697.74
ekoi^g{zih spdhbhnK s'A gfjbK ;zukbB bkG$(jkBh) 76,366.95

       

87,345.67
ekoi^g{zih spdhbhnK bJh ;wk:'iB

ftZu (tkXk)$xkNkL

i tgkoe eoIdko (12,495.34)

     

(10,528.81)
ii wkb^;{uh (fJBt?BNoh) (249.11)

          

228.63
iii j'o r?o^ukb{ ftZsh ;zgshnK (T[gpzXK s'A fJbktk) 184.52

            

(76.19)
iv j'o r?o^ukb{ ;zgshnK (125.50)

          

(128.80)
v Bedh ns/ Bedh ;wkB qoN ibnW bYNNk bkwieAw 1.58

                

(1.19)
vi j'o ukb{ ftZsh ;zgshnK (87.52)

            

534.22
vii j'o ukb{ ;zgshnK (277.64)

          

337.04
ftZu (tkXk)$xkNkL

viii r?o^ukb{ T[gpzX (smyq hor ivsiqRq Awmdn) 1,148.93

         
957.90

ix ukb{ T[gpzX 46.15
              

33.60
x j'o r?o^ukb{ d/DdkohnK 6,109.20          (13,353.58)

xi j'o ukb{ ftZsh d/DdkohnK (Arijq ivAwj Aqy eofInK qoN ibnW) 22,245.25

       
(133.36)

xii j'o ukb{ d/DdkohnK 96.58

             

             
             
             

 

 
 
 

215.14
fBo'b ekoi^g{zih spdhbh 16,597.12

       

(21,915.40)
;zukbB s'A Bedh T[sgkd 92,964.07

       

65,430.28
Awmdn kr (Adw kIqw)/tI.fI.AYs./irPMf (inrol) 3,652.90

         

764.86
;zukbB rshftXhnK s'A fBo'b Bed gqkgsh  96,616.97

       

66,195.14
(n) fBt/P rshftXhnK s'A Bedh gqtkj

i ftZu (tkXk)$xkNkL

T ghHghHJhH (inrol A~gy iljweI geI rkm+pUMjIikRq kIqy qoN ibnW mu~l-Gwtw) (26,115.96)

     

(38,858.58)
n n;E{b ;zgshnK (inrol A~gy iljweI geI rkm+irx-mukqI) (9.87)

              

(0.27)
J vycx leI r~KIAW sMpqIAW (inrol A~gy iljweI geI rkm+ivgwV -ivprIqqw) 263.57

            

(293.47)
; gqrsh nXhB g{zihrs ekoi ;w/s g{zihrs ;N'oI (aupbMDW qoN ibnW) (20,253.75)

     

501.37
nuZb ;zgshnK dh fteoh s'A nkwdB/hwnI 533.90

            

1,603.38
bYNk jmHW qy ivAwj 4.33 3.69

3,181.54 14,970.88

2,165.22 615.59

ii

iii

iv

v

vi 319.94 690.41
fBt/P rshftXhnK ftZu tosh fBo'b Bedh (39,911.09) (20,766.99)

(J) ftZsh rshftXhnK s'A Bedh gqtkj

i Arijq ivAwj dy smwXojn qoN bwAd ndk ehsh ftZsh bkrs (34,568.49) (39,048.05)
ii bzwh^fwnkd d/ eofInK qoN pRwpqIAW (smyq cwlU pirp~kqwvW) 63,138.66 35,453.87

iii bzwh^fwnkd d/ eofInK qoN muV-AdwiegIAW (smyq cwlU pirp~kqwvW) (87,552.53) (63,979.37)
iv QoVI^fwnkd d/ eofInK qoN pRwpqIAW 10,909.29 32,159.35
v QoVI^fwnkd d/ eofInK dIAW muV-AdwiegIAW (10,000.00) (9,999.81)

vi ptw dyxdwrIAW qoN pRwpqIAW 27.41 27.01
vii ptw dyxdwrIAW dIAW muV-AdwiegIAW (21.82) (15.43)

ftZsh rshftXhnK s'A fBo'b Bedh (58,067.47) (45,402.44)
(;) Bedh ns/ Bedh smwn ftZu fBo'b tkXk$(xkNk) (TOnOJ) (1,361.59) 25.70
(j) ;kb dh Pa[o{nks T[Zs/ Bedh ns/ Bedh smwn 1,835.87 1,810.17
(ਕ) ;kb d/ nzs T[Zs/ Bedh ns/ Bedh smwn (vyKo not nM: 12) 474.28 1,835.87

;kvh BZEh ehsh ;wfwsh dh fog'oN w[skfpe                                                    p'ov dh soc'Aa ns/ bJh

tkL e/Hn?;H d[nk n?Av ezgBh
ukoNov nekT{AN?AN; 
n?c nko n?B 017478n?B

;jh$^
(;h J/ ;toB f;zx fYZb'A)
fjZ;/dko
n?wH BzL 527610
;EkB L gfNnkbk
fwsh L 26H06H2023

;jh$^

(ftB'd e[wko pK;b)

vkfJo?eNo$ftZs s/ tDi

;jh$^

(J/ t/D{ gq;kd)

   u/now?B^ew^w?B/fizr vkfJo?eNo

;jh$^

(;[Xho e[wko)

w[Zy ftZs nca;o

;jh$^

(;kfjb gKv/)

ezgBh ;eZso

eqw

BzL t/ot/ 31 wkou 2023 B{z ysw j'J/ ;kb bJh 31 wkou 2022 B{z ysw j'J/ ;kb bJh

nuZb ;zgshnK pDkT[D bJh ygseko nzPdkB

gz{ihrs ;zgshnK dh bkrs bJh gqkgs j'Jh ;oekoh rqKN^ni/ tosh ikDh j?

gz{ihrs ;zgshnK dh bkrs bJh gqkgs ;oekoh rqKN^tosh rJh
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended March 31, 2023
A. Equity Share Capital

1 Current reporting period (Rupees in Lacs)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 60,588.35

Changes in equity share capital during the year -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 60,588.35

          

2 Previous reporting period (Rupees in Lacs)

Balance as at March 31, 2021 60,588.35

          

Changes in equity share capital during the year -

              

Balance as at March 31, 2022 60,588.35

          

B. Other Equity

1 Current reporting period (Rupees in Lacs)

General Reserve Capital Reserve
Retained Earnings 

(Surplus Account)

Balance at the end of reporting period March 31, 2022 200.05 1,86,210.78 58,064.65 2,44,475.48

Profit during the year -

                     

-

                       

10,204.73 10,204.73

Other comprehensive income -

                     

-

                       

(115.04)

                   

(115.04)

Total Comprehensive income 10,089.69

                

10,089.69

Balance at the end of reporting period March 31, 2023 200.05 1,86,210.78 68,154.34 2,54,565.17

(ii)

2 Previous reporting period (Rupees in Lacs)

General Reserve Capital Reserve
Retained Earnings 

(Surplus Account)

Balance at the end of reporting period March 31, 2021 200.05 1,86,210.78 36,878.21 2,23,289.04

Changes in profit/(loss) after Prior period adjustment 

made in Books 2021-22 relating to the period 2020-21. 

(Amount of terminal benefits & loss on stock relating to 

FY 2020-21) shown in 2021-22 as per Ind AS 8

- - (323.51) (323.51)

Balance at the end of reporting period March 31, 2021 200.05 1,86,210.78 36,554.70 2,22,965.54

Profit during the year - - 21,647.93 21,647.93

Other comprehensive income - - (137.98) (137.98)

Total Comprehensive income - - 21,509.94 21,509.94

Balance at the end of reporting period March 31, 2022 200.05 1,86,210.78 58,064.65 2,44,475.48

TotalParticulars

Reserves & Surplus

Capital Reserve includes amount of Rs. 1,84,582.08 lacs parked/received as opening balance through transfer scheme

notified by Punjab Government on 24.12.2012 and amount of Rs. 1628.71 lacs pertaining to the period 16.04.2010 to

31.03.2015 transferred in FY 2015-16 from "Reserve for Material cost variance".

Particulars

Reserves & Surplus

Total

Note: (i)  General Reserve will be utilized for distribution of dividend/meeting future losses (if any).

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board

For K. S.  Dua & Co.

Chartered Accountants
FRN 017478N Sd/- Sd/-

(Vinod Kumar Bansal) (A. Venu Prasad)
Sd/-

Director/F&C Chairman-cum-Managing
(CA Swarn Singh Dhillon)

Director
Partner

M.No. 527610 Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Patiala (Sudhir Kumar) (Sahil Panday)

Date: 26.06.2023 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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1  General Information

  • Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited (PSTCL) was incorporated on April 16, 2010 under the 

Companies Act, 1956. The Certificate of commencement of Business was received on the same date from 

Registrar of Companies, Chandigarh. 

 • The Government of Punjab restructured the Punjab State Electricity Board under the provisions of the 

Electricity Act, 2003. In exercise of Powers conferred by Section 131, 132 and 133 of the Act, the 

Government of Punjab made a Scheme called the Punjab Power Sector Reforms Transfer Scheme, 2010 

(Transfer Scheme) vide Notification dated April 16, 2010 which interalia provided for transfer of 

functions, undertakings assets, properties, rights, liabilities, obligations, proceedings and personnel of 

Punjab State Electricity Board. The Scheme was subsequently amended by State Government by making 

a Scheme called the Punjab Power Sector Reforms Transfer (First Amendment) Scheme, 2012 which was 

notified on December 24, 2012. 

 • In exercise of the powers conferred by sub clause 4 of clause 5 of the Transfer Scheme read with Section 

131, 132 & 133 of the Act,  the Government of Punjab transferred and vested the transmission undertaking 

with Punjab State Transmission Corporation Limited by way of Notifications No. 1/4/04-EB/PR/620 & 

632 dated December 24, 2012 by vesting  the transmission undertaking aggregate value of assets & 

liabilities of Rs. 4,114.28 crores as on April 16, 2010 and from the said date, Company is carrying on the 

business of transmission of electricity in the State of Punjab and discharging the functions of State Load 

Dispatch Centre. 

2  Significant Accounting Policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

 i) Statement of Compliance

 • The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as 

notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') (to the 

extent notified), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and the provisions of the Electricity 

Act, 2003 to the extent applicable. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 

of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

 • The Company has adopted Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 

101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. For all the periods up to and including 31 March 

2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting 

Principles (GAAP) in India, accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (to the extent notified and applicable) read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as 

amended), applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and the provisions of the Electricity Act, 

2003 to the extent applicable. The Company followed the provisions of Ind AS 101 in preparing its 

opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as of the date of transition, viz. 1 April 2015. 
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 • Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is 

initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting 

policy hitherto in use.

 ii) Basis of Measurement

 • The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting under Historical cost convention 

except specifically mentioned in relevant accounting policies.

 iii) Use of estimates and judgment 

 • The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with Ind AS which requires the management to 

make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, 

assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure/s, at the end of the reporting period. The estimates 

are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these 

assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. 

 iv) Functional and presentation currency 

 • These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, the national currency of India, which is the 

functional currency of the Company. 

2.2 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) 

 • The Company has adopted the cost model of recognition under Ind AS 16 to measure the Property, Plant 

and Equipment. Consequently, all Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at its cost less accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

 • The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties 

and non-refundable taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable 

expenditure to bring the Property, Plant and Equipment to the location and making it ready for its intended 

use. 

 • Property, Plant and Equipment acquired as replacement of the existing assets/ component are capitalized 

and its corresponding replaced assets/ component removed/ retired from active use are derecognized.

 • Spares parts procured along with the Plant & Machinery or subsequently which meets the recognition 

criteria of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized and added in the carrying amount of such item. 

The carrying amount of spare parts that are replaced is derecognized when no future economic benefits are 

expected from their use or upon disposal. Other machinery spares are treated as “stores & spares” forming 

part of the inventory.

 • Stand-by equipment are recognised in accordance with Ind AS 16 when they meet the definition of 

Property, Plant and Equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory.

 • Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is measured as the 

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the 

statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
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 • In case of Property, Plant and Equipment 100% funded by consumer contribution, amount equal to the 

annual depreciation on such Property, Plant and Equipment has been transferred from deferred income to 

depreciation.

 • In case of Property, Plant and Equipment part funded by consumer contribution, proportionate amount of 

the annual depreciation has been transferred from deferred income to depreciation and balance 

depreciation is transferred to Profit & Loss Account.

 • In respect of supply-cum-erection contracts, the value of supplies received at site and accepted is treated as 

Capital Work-in-progress.

 • Claims for price variation/exchange rate variation in case of contracts are accounted for on acceptance of 

claims.

2.3 Capital work in progress 

 • Projects under which the Property, Plant and Equipment are not yet ready for their intended use are carried 

at cost, comprising direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

 • All expenditure relating to Capital works of Transmission System Organization are allocated to the capital 

projects on pro rata basis.

2.4 Capital Stores

 • Materials purchased for capital projects are classified as Capital stores and these are valued at cost.

2.5 Depreciation and Amortization

 • In line with Part B of Schedule II to Companies Act 2013, with effect from April 01, 2020, depreciation is 

provided as per PSERC (Terms and Conditions for Determination of Generation, Transmission, Wheeling 

and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2019 as amended from time to time. In accordance with PSERC 

Regulations depreciation has been provided on the straight line method over the useful life of the asset at 

the rates of depreciation specified in Appendix I of the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms 

& Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2019 as amended from time to time.

 • The tangible Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated up to 90% of the original cost after taking 

10% as residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment.

  Provided that the remaining depreciable value as on 31st March of the year closing after a period of 12 

years from date of commercial operation/put in use of the asset shall be spread over the balance useful life 

of the assets as per PSERC Regulations 2014 as amended from time to time.

 • Temporary erections are depreciated fully (100%) in the year of acquisitions/capitalization by taking the 

written down value as INR 1/- for control purpose.

 • Intangible assets and other tangible assets for which useful life is not determined by CERC/PSERC, are 

amortised/depreciated on straight line method at rates specified in Appendix I of Central Electricity 

Regulatory Commission (Terms & Conditions of Tariff) Regulations, 2019 as amended from time to time 

till PSERC notifies the same.
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 • IT Equipment and Software shall be depreciated upto 100% by taking the written down value as INR 1/- 

for control purpose.

 • Depreciation on additions to/deductions from Property, Plant and Equipment during the year is charged on 

pro-rata basis from the month of such addition or as the case may be up to the month in which such 

Property, Plant and Equipment is sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed.

 • Property, Plant and Equipment costing up to Rs. 5,000/- each are fully depreciated in the year of 

acquisition except where specific classification has been prescribed for the purpose of depreciation under 

the classification Furniture & Fixtures and Office Equipment.

 • Leasehold assets (including “Right-of-use” (ROU) Assets) are depreciated/ amortized over the period of 

lease, including the optional period of lease, as per terms of lease agreements.

2.6 Government Grant / Assistance

 • The Company may receive government grants/subsidy that require compliance with certain conditions 

related to the Company’s operating activities or are provided to the Company by way of financial 

assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria.

 • Government grants/subsidy are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 

received and the Company will be able to comply with the conditions attached to them. These 

grants/subsidy are classified as grants relating to assets or revenue based on the nature of the grant. 

 • Government grants/subsidy with a condition to purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long term assets 

are initially recognised as deferred income. Once recognised as deferred income, such grants are 

recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset. Changes 

in estimates are recognised prospectively over the remaining life of the assets. 

 • Grant in the form of revenue grant/subsidy are deferred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

over the period that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

2.7 Impairment

 • If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 

amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An 

impairment loss is recognized immediately in statement of profit and loss, unless the relevant asset is 

carried at a revalue amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. 

 • Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal or value  in use. In assessing value in 

use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which 

the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

 • At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible, intangible 

assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If 

any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent 

of the impairment loss (if any). 
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2.8 Leases 

 • Lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards incidental to ownership.

As a lessee 

 • On the commencement of a Lease, the “Right-of-use” (ROU) Asset is recognized under Property, Plant & 

Equipment (PPE) and measured at cost. The corresponding lease liability is also recognized and measured 

at the present value of the lease payments/lease rental obligations that are not paid at that date. The lease 

payments shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily 

determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s incremental 

borrowing rate.

 • Subsequently, the “Right-of-use” Asset is carried at its cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization 

and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The lease liability is measured over the lease term by 

increasing the carrying amount to – reflect interest on lease liability and reducing the carrying amount to 

reflect the lease payments made during the period and is included in borrowings or other financial 

liabilities as appropriate.

 • The carrying amount of lease liability will be remeasured/reassessed on modifications in lease agreement 

or revision in-substance fixed lease payments of a lease (if any) along with the adjustment for the same in 

the “Right-of-use” Asset.

 • Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the 

profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining 

balance of the liability for each period.

 • “Right-of-use” Asset shall also be fully depreciated/amortized over the period of lease as per the lease 

agreement.

 • Lease payments, associated with short-term leases or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, 

are charged to the profit or loss as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a lessor 

 • Lease income from operating leases is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term of 

relevant lease. 

2.9 Borrowing costs 

 • Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the 

arrangement of borrowings. 

 • General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 

qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. 

 • A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended 

use or sale. 
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 • Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure 

on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 

 • To the extent that an entity borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of obtaining a 

qualifying asset, the entity shall determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation by 

applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The borrowing cost is capitalized on the 

basis of weighted average formula as under:-

  a)  Average of total opening and closing balance of CWIP

  b)  Weighted Average of loans utilized during the financial year for capital works

  c)  Interest paid and provided for the year on loans for capital works

  d)  Capitalization of borrowing cost = c x a / b

  Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.10 Inventories 

 • Inventories are valued at lower of cost determined on weighted average basis or net realizable value. 

 • The cost of inventories comprise of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in 

bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 

 • The costs of purchase consist of the purchase price including duties and taxes (other than those 

subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from the taxing authorities), freight inwards and other 

expenditure directly attributable to the acquisition. 

 • The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable and surplus stores and spares is ascertained on 

review and provided for. 

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

 • Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances 

(with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments 

that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of 

changes in value.

2.12 Revenue recognition 

 • Transmission income is accounted for as and when accrued on the basis of tariff orders notified by Punjab 

State Electricity Regulatory Commission. 

 • Income from open access consumers is accounted for on the basis of Regulations read with the Tariff 

Orders notified by Punjab State Electricity Regulatory Commission. 

 • Income from natural interstate lines is accounted for on actual receipt basis. 

 • Other income is recognized on accrual basis except when ultimate realisation of such income is uncertain. 

 • Late/Delayed Payment Surcharges (DPS) on Transmission Charges is accounted for on accrual basis, 

where clause for levy of such type of surcharges (DPS) exists in Transmission/other agreements.
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 • Other Late payment surcharges, liquidated damages/warranty claims and Interest on advances to 

suppliers are accounted for on actual receipt basis. 

 • Value of waste and scrap is accounted for as and when sold. 

 • Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 

Interest Income 

 • Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and the 

rate applicable, using the effective interest rate method (EIR).

 • Interest income accrued on staff loans and advances are provided on accrual basis. Interest is recovered 

after recovery of principal amount. 

2.13 Expense

 • All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis except leave travel concessions, medical reimbursements, 

TA/DA claims, dearness allowance and arrears of salary which are accounted for on payment basis in the 

year these are paid.

2.14 Employee Benefits 

 • Employees working in PSTCL on deputation / secondment from PSPCL either are covered under the 

Pension Scheme or NPS Scheme. 

 • Pursuant to the Punjab Power Sector Reforms Transfer (First Amendment) Scheme 2012, there shall be 

common Employee Benefit Trusts for Pension, Gratuity and Leave Encashment for both PSTCL and 

PSPCL which shall be progressively funded by PSPCL & PSTCL respectively, as decided by Punjab State 

Electricity Regulatory Commission, in the ratio of 88.64 : 11.36 over a period of 15 Financial Years 

commencing from 1st April, 2014.  The terminal benefits liability accruing during the period of 

progressive funding, and thereafter, shall be shared in the same ratio by the both corporations. The actual 

amount of pension, gratuity and leave encashment paid/to be paid on and with effect from 16th April, 2010 

to 31st March, 2014 shall be shared by the PSPCL and PSTCL, in the ratio of 88.64 : 11.36 on yearly basis.

 • Provisions towards Gratuity and Leave Encashment in respect of employees recruited by the company are 

made based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

 • Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, are recognised in the period in which they occur, 

directly in other comprehensive income. Remeasurement gains and losses are included in retained 

earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

 • Short term employee benefits obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses as the 

related services provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term 

employee benefits if the company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a 

result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

2.15 Income taxes 

 • Income tax expense for the year represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax. 

 • Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on the taxable income/ loss for the year calculated using 
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tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

 • Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purpose. 

 • Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 

 • Deferred tax assets are generally recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits 

will be available against which the assets can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 

reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the 

related tax benefit will be realized. 

 • Deferred tax recovery adjustment account is credited/ debited to the extent tax expenses is chargeable 

from the beneficiaries in future years on actual payment basis. 

 • Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are 

recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax 

are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

2.16 Earnings per Share 

 • The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s EPS comprises of the net profit / loss after tax. 

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing net profit / loss after tax by the weighted average 

number of equity shares outstanding during the year. 

 • Diluted earnings per equity share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and 

dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year. The number of equity shares and potentially 

dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

2.17 Provisions

 • A provision is recognized when the company has a present obligation (Legal or Constructive) as a result of 

past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect 

of which a reliable estimate can be made.

2.18 Contingent liabilities 

 • Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in Notes when the company has possible obligation 

due to past events and existence of the obligation depends upon occurrence or non-occurrence of future 

events not wholly within the control of the company. 

 • Contingent liabilities are assessed continuously to determine whether outflow of economic resources 

have become probable. If the outflow becomes probable then relative provision is recognized in the 

financial statements. 

2.19 Contingent Assets 

 • Contingent Assets are not recognized but disclosed in Notes which usually arise from unplanned or other 

unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits. 

 • Contingent assets are assessed continuously to determine whether inflow of economic benefits becomes 

virtually certain, then such assets and the relative income will be recognised in the financial statements.
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2.20 Segment Reporting 

 • Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 

operating decision maker. The Chairman cum Managing Director (CMD) of the Company has been 

identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS-108, “Operating 

Segments.” 

 • The Company is primarily engaged in single segment business of transmission of Power and State load 

distribution center functions. There is no reportable primary segment identification in accordance with the 

Ind AS-108. 

2.21 Prior Period 

 • Material Prior period(s) errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the 

prior periods to the extent practicable along with change in basic and diluted earnings per share. However, 

if the error relates to a period prior to the comparative period, opening balances of the assets, liabilities and 

equity of the comparative period presented are restated.

2.22 Insurance claims

 • Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the 

extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate 

collection.

2.23 Financial instruments 

  Financial assets:

  Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument and are initially recognised at fair value and directly attributable transaction costs towards 

acquisition or issue of the financial asset are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial recognition 

except for financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit and loss.

  Financial assets are classified as those measured at:

 • amortised cost, where the financial assets are held solely for collection of cash flows arising from 

payments of principal and/or interest

 • fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), where the financial assets are held not only for 

collection of cash flows arising from payments of principal and/or interest but also from the sale of such 

assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at FVOCI.

 • fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), where the financial assets are not classified either at amortised 

cost or FVTOCI. 

  Financial assets include trade receivables, advances, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents etc and 

are classified for measurement at amortised cost.   

  Management determines the classification of an asset at initial recognition depending on the purpose for 

which the assets were acquired.
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 • Impairment:

  The Company at each reporting date tests a financial asset or a group of financial assets (other than 

financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss) for impairment based on evidence or information 

that is available without undue cost or effort. Expected credit losses are assessed and impairment loss 

recognised if the credit risk of the financial asset is significantly increased.  

  The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

  • Derecognition:

  Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the financial 

assets expires, or transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

 • Financial liabilities:

  Borrowings, trade payables or other financial liabilities are initially recognised at the value of the 

respective contractual obligations. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest rate method.   

 • Derecognition:       

  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

 Offsetting financial instruments:

  Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is included in the Balance Sheet where there is 

a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis 

or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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1H   nkw ;{uBk  

 • gzikp ;N/N NoK;fwPB ekog'o/PB fbfwfNv, ezgBhI n?eN 1956 nXhB  ngq?b 16, 2010 B{z fBrws 

j'Jh. ofi;Noko nkc ezgBhI, uzvhrVQ e'b'A ezw dh P[o{nks ;zpzXh gqwkD gZso T[;/ fwsh B{z jh gqkgs 

eo fbnk frnk ;h.

 • gzikp ;oeko B/ fpibh n?eN, 2003 d/ T[gpzXK sfjs gzikp oki fpibh p'ov dk g[Bo rmB ehsk. 

n?eN dhnK XkoktK 131, 132, ns/ 133 d[nkok fdZs/ nfXekoK dh tos'A eofdnK gzikp ;oeko B/ fJe 

;ehw pDkJh fi; B{z gzikp T{oik y/so ;[Xko spdhbh ;ehw^2010 (spdhbh ;ehw) fejk frnk ns/ 

fJ; bJh fwsh ngq?b 16, 2010 B{z nfX;{uBk ikoh ehsh rJh. fi; ftZu gzikp oki fpibh p'ov d/ 

ekoiK, ;zgshnK dh I[zw/tkoh, ikfJdkdK, nfXekoK, d/DdkohnK, fJeokoBkw/, ekotkJhnK ns/ nwb/ dh 

spdhbh d/ ;zpzX ftZu T[gpzX ehsk frnk. pknd ftZu oki ;oeko B/ fJ; ;ehw ftZu ;'X ehsh fi; B{z 

gzikp T{oik y/so ;[Xko spdhbh (gfjbh ;'X) ;ehw, 2012 fejk frnk i' fe d;zpo 24, 2012 B{z 

nfX;{fus ehsh rJh.

 • spdhbh ;ehw dh Xkok 5 dh T[g^Xkok 4 Bkb gV/Q n?eN dhnK XkoktK 131, 132 ns/ 133 d[nkok fdZs/ 

nfXekoK dh tos'A eofdnK, gzikp ;oeko B/ gzikp ;N/N NoK;fwPB ekog'o/PB fbfwNv B{z nfX;{uBk 

BzL 1$4$04^Jhph$ghnko$620 ns/ 632 fwsh d;zpo 24, 2012 d[nkok ;zuko dk ndkok spdhb eoe/ 

;g[od ehsk ns/ fwsh ngq?b 16, 2010 B{z ;zgshnK ns/ d/DdkohnK e[Zb w[Zb 4,114H28 eo'V dk ;zuko 

ndkok ;g[od ehsk ns/ ezgBh T[; fwsh s'A gzikp oki ftZu fpibh d/ ;zuko dk tgko eo ojh j? ns/ 

;N/N b'v fv;g?u ;?ANo d/ ekoi fBGk ojh j?.

2  wjZstg{oB b/yk BhshnK

2H1  ftZsh ;koDhnK fsnko eoB dk nkXko 

 i)   gkbDk ;zpzXh fpnkB

 • ftZsh ;koDhnK, Gkosh b/yk fwnkoK (fJzv J/Hn?;H), i' fe Gkos ;oeko d/ ekog'o/N wkwfbnK d/ wzsokb/ 

tZb'A ezgBhI n?eN, 2013 (n?eN) (fi; y/so sZe x'fPs jB),  dhnK PosK, ezgBhI n?eN, 1956 

dhnK bkr{ PosK ns/ fJb?eNohf;Nh n?eN 2003 dhnK XkoktK fi; y/so sZe bkr{ jB nXhB nfX;{fus 

ehs/ rJ/ jB, w[skfpe fsnko ehshnK rJhnK jB. fJzv J/Hn?;H n?eN dh Xkok 133 Bkb gVQ/ ezgBh 

(Gkosh b/yk fwnkoK) o{bI, 2015 ns/ ezgBhI (Gkosh b/yk fwnkoK) ;zP'XB o{bI, 2016 nXhB 

fBofdPN jB.

 • ezgBh B/ fJzv J/Hn?;H fwnkoK Bz{ ngDkfJnk j? ns/ fJj ngDkT[Dk, fJzv J/Hn?;H 101 gfjbh tkoh Gkosh 

b/yk fwnkoK dh ngDkT[Dk, w[skfpe ehsk frnk j?. 31 wkou, 2016 ;w/s ns/ sZe d/ ;ko/ ;w/A bJh 

egzBh B/ nkgDhnK ftZsh ;koDhnK Gkos ftZu nkw s"o s/ gqtkfDs b/yk f;XKsK (ihHJ/HJ/HghH), ezgBhI 

n?eN 2013 (fi; y/so sZe x'fPs ns/ bkr{ jB) dh Xkok 133 Bkb gVQ/ ezgBhI (b/yk fwnkoK) o{bI, 

2006 (fit/A ;zP'fXs), ezgBhI n?eN, 1956 dhnK bkr{ PosK ns/ fJb?eNohf;Nh n?eN 2003 dhnK 

XkoktK fi; y/so sZe bkr{ jB j?, nXhB T[~fbys b/yk fwnkoK w[skfpe fsnko ehshnK jB. ezgBh B/ 
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gfotosB dh fwsh :kBh 01 ngo?b 2015 dh nkgDh nkozfGe fJzv J/Hn?;H p?b?A; PhN Bz{ pDkT[D bJh 

fJzv J/Hn?;H 101 dhnK PosK dh gkbDk ehsh j?.

 • b/yk BhshnK Bz{ fJe;kosk Bkb bkr{ ehsk frnk j? f;tkJ/ fiE/ fJe BtK ikoh b/yk fwnko gfjbh tkoh 

ngDkfJnk j't/ iK fJe w"i{dk b/yk fwnko eoe/ j[D sZe tosh rJh b/yk Bhsh ftZu spdhbh dh b'V 

j't/.

 ii) wkg dk nkXko 

 • ;zpzXs b/yk BhshnK ftZu \k; eoe/ tofDs ehs/ d/ f;tkJ/, ftZsh ;koDhnK, fJfsjk;e bkrs gqEk 

nXhB b/yKeD d/ ;zfus nkXko s/ fsnko ehshnK rJhnK jB.

 iii) nB[wkBK ns/ ftuko Pesh dh tos'A 

 • ftZsh ;koDhnK fJzv J/Hn?;H dh nB[;kosk w[skfpe fsnko ehshnK rJhnK jB fi; bJh gqpzXB Bz{ 

fog'ofNzr ;w/A d/ nzs s/ fBoD/ b?D, nB[wkBK ns/ XkoBktK b?DhnK g?AdhnK jB i' fe ;{fus wkbhJ/ dh 

oew, \ofunK, ;zgshnK ns/ d/DdkohnK ns/ ;fwfbs gqrNkn Bz{ gqGkfts eod/ j'D. nB[wkB gqpzXB 

dh ukb{ xNBktK ns/ ekoiK dh uzrh ikDekoh d/ nkXko s/ jB, fJjBK XkoBktK ns/ nB[wkBK pko/ 

nfBPfussk j''Dk, GftZyh ;w/A d"okB ;zgshnK ns/ d/DdkohnK dh nZr/ fbnKdh oew ftZu  wjZstg{oB 

;wk:'iB dh wzr eod/ jkbks T[sgzB eo ;ed/ jB.

 iv) fefonkPhb ns/ gqdoPB w[dok

 • fJj ftZsh ;koDhnK Gkosh o[gJ/ ftZu gqdoPs ehshnK rJhnK jB, Gkos dh okPNoh gqufbs w[dok, 

fijVh fe ezgBh dh fefonkPhb w[dok j?. 

2H2 ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB (ghHghHJhH)

 • ezgBh B/ fJzv J/Hn?;H 16 nXhB wkBsk d/D bJh bkrs wkvb ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB Bz{ wkgD 

bJh ngDkfJnk j?. BshI/ ti'A ;kohnK ikfJdkdK, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB Bz{ fJ;dh bkrs ftZu'A ;zfus 

w[Zb^xkNk ns/ ftrkV B[e;kB, i/eo e'Jh j't/ sK T[;Bz{ wB|h eoB T[gozs nZr/ fbikfJnk frnk j?.

 • ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB dh fJe wZd dh bkrs ftZu fJ;dk \ohd w[Zb, ;w/s nk:ks 

fvT{NhnK ns/ Bk^tkg;h:'r eo, tgkoe tZN/ ns/ S'NK s'A pknd, e'Jh gqsZy s"o s/ j'J/ \ou/ Pkwb jB 

i' ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB Bz{ ;EkB s/ fbnkT[D bJh ns/ fJ; Bz{ wzsth tos'A bJh :'r pDkT[D 

bJh ehs/ rJ/ jB.

 • ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB, i' w"i{dk ;zgshnK$fjZ;/ dh spdhbh eoe/ gqkgs ehs/ rJ/ jB, Bz{ 

g{zihfeqs ehsk frnk j? ns/ ;zpzXs spdhb ehshnK ;zgshnK$ekoiPhb tos'A s'A T[sko/$ftjb/ ehs/ rJ/ 

fjZf;nK Bz{ r?o^wkfBs eo fdZsk frnk j?.

 • gbKN ns/ wPhBoh Bkb \ohd/ rJ/ iK pknd ftZu ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB B{z wkBsk d/D 

;zpzXh e;"Nh Bz{ g{ok eod/ ;g/no gkoNI Bz{ g{zihfeqs ehsk frnk ns/ nfijh wZd dh nZr/ fbnkdhA oew 

ftZu iwQK ehsk frnk j?. fijV/ ;g/no gkoNI spdhb ehs/ rJ/ jB T[BQK dh tos'A iK fBgNko/ s'A GftZy 

ftZu e'Jh nkoEe bkG dh T[whd BjhA j[zdh T[d'A T[BQK d/ nZr/ fbnkd/A w[Zb Bz{ r?o^wkfBs ehsk frnk j?. 
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j'o wPhBoh ;g/noI Bz{ ‘‘;N'oI ns/ ;g/noI’’ wzfBnk frnk j? i' fe wkb^;{uh (fJBt?BNoh) dk fjZ;k 

pD oj/ jB.

 • pdb^ti'A oZy/ ;kI'^;wkB Bz{ fJzv J/Hn?;H 16 w[skfpe wkBsk fdZsh rJh j? id'A T[j ikfJdkd, wPhBoh 

ns/ ;kI'^;wkB dh gfoGkPk w[skfpe jz[d/ jB. BjhA sK, nfijhnK wZdK Bz{ wkb^;{uh ti'A torhfeqs ehsk 

frnk j?.

 • ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB dh fJZe wZd Bz{ r?o^wkfBs eoB eoe/ j' oj/ bkG iK B[e;kB Bz{ fBo'b 

fBgNko/ dh gqkgsh ns/ ;zgsh dh nZr/ fbnKdh oew ftZu nzso ti'A wkfgnk frnk j? ns/ bkG ns/ jkBh 

dh ;koDh ftZu do;kfJnk iKdk j? id'A fJZe ;zgsh Bz{ r?o^wkfBs ehsk iKdk j?.

 • i' ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB 100 ch;dh ygseko nzPdkB, roKN ns/ nB[dkB d[nkok pDhnK 

jB, sK nfijhnK ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB T[Zs/ ;kbkBk w[Zb^xkN/ d/ pokpo oew g{zihrs 

okytK ftZu'A w[Zb^xkN/ B{z spdhb ehsh rJh j?.

 • i' ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB nzPe o{g ftZu ygseko nzPdkB, roKNK ns/ nB[dkBK d[nkok 

pDhnK jB sK nfij/ wkwfbnK ftZu ;kbkBk w[Zb^xkN/ dh nB[gkse oew g{zihrs okyt/A ftZu'A w[Zb^xkN/ 

B{z spdhb ehsh rJh j? ns/ pekfJnk w[Zb^xkN/ B{z bkG ns/ jkBh b/y/ ftZu spdhb ehsk frnk j?.

 • ;gbkJh^sEk^fBowkD fJeokoBkfwnK d/ ;zpzX ftZu, ;EZb s/ gqkgs ns/ gqtkfDs ;gbkJh B{z gqrsh 

nXhB g{zihrs ekoi ti'A wzfBnk frnk j?.

 • m/fenK dh ;{os ftZu ehws spdhbh$tNKdok do spdhbh ;zpzXh dknftnK B{z gqtkBrh T[gozs jh b/fynK 

ftZu fbnk iKdk j?.

2H3  gqrsh nXhB g{zihrs ekoi

 • gqki?eN fiBQK nXhB ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB ni/ wzsth tos'A bJh fsnko Bjh jB bkrs s/, 

fi; ftZu gsq Zy bkrsK, ;pz Xz s fJs|kehnK \ou / ns / tvz :r'  ftnki Pkwb j,?  nZr / fbikfJnk frnk j.?  

 • ;zuko gqDkbh ;zrmB d/ g{zihrs ekoiK ;zpzXh ;ko/ \ou/ nB[gkse nkXko s/ g{zihrs gqki?eNK B{z tzv/ rJ/ 

jB.

2H4  g{zihrs ;N'oI

 • g{zihrs gqki?eNK bJh \ohd/ rJ/ wkb B{z gz{ihrs ;N'oI ti'A torhfeqs ehsk frnk j? ns/ fJjBK dk 

nKfenk w[Zb bkrs d/ pokpo j?.

2H5  w[Zb^xkNk ns/ foD^w[esh

 • ezgBhI n?eN 2013 dh nB[[;{uh 2 d/ Gkr ph dh nB[;kosk ftZu  ngo?b 01, 2020 s'A w[Zb^xkN/ dk 

T[gpzX, ghHn?;HJhHnkoH;hH (NowI n?Av ezvhPBI cko fvNowhB/PB nkc i?Bo/PB, NoK;fwPB, 

tjhfbzr n?Av foN/b ;gbkJh N?foc) o?r{b/PBI, 2019, ;w/A^;w/A s/ j[D sZe ;'X/ nB[;ko, w[skpe ehsk 

frnk j?. ghHn?;HJhHnkoH;hH o?r{b/PBI nB[;ko w[Zb^xkN/ dk b/yk, ;kbkBk f;ZXh bkJhB gqDkbh d/ 

nkXko s/ ;?ANob fJb?eNohf;Nh o?r{b/Noh efwPB (NowI n?Av ezvhPBI nkc N?foc) o?r{b/PBI, 
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2019, ;w/A^;w/A s/ j[D sZe ;'X/ nB[;ko, dh nB[bZr 2 ftZu dZ;hnK doK s/ ehsk frnk j?.

 • ;E{b ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB dk pkeh w[Zb 10# b?Ad/ j'J/ ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB 

dh n;b bkrs d/ 90# sZe w[Zb^xkNk ehsk frnk j?.

  n?go, ;zgsh Bz{ tgkoe tos'A$ezw ftZu fbnkT[D dh fwsh s''A 12 ;kb dk ;wK ;wkgs j'D s'A pknd 31 

wkou Bz{ pekfJnk w[Zb^xkNk eoB :'r w[Zb Bz{ ghHn?;HJhHnkoH;hH o?r{b/;aBI, 2014, ;w/A^;w/A s/ j[D 

sZe ;'X/ nB[;ko, ;zgsh dh pekfJnk tos'A :'r T[wo ftZu tzfvnk frnk j?.

 • nkoIh T[;kohnK dk fB:szoB d/ wzst bJh fbfys w[Zb nkJhHn?BHnkoH 1$^ wzBd/ j'J/ gqkgsh$g{ziheoB d/ 

;kb ftZu g{ok (100#) w[Zb xNkfJnk frnk j?.

 • n;E{b ;zgshnK ns/ j''o ;E{b ;zgshnK, fiBQK dh ;hHJhHnkoH;hH$ghHn?;HJhHnkoH;hH tb'A e'Jh tos'A 

:'r T[wo fBoXkos BjhA ehsh rJh j?, Bz{ ;kbkBk f;ZXh bkJhB gqDkbh d/ nkXko s/ ;?ANob fJb?eNohf;Nh 

o?r{b/Noh efwPB (NowI n?Av ezvhPBI nkc N?foc) o?r{b/PBI, 2019, ;w/A^;w/A s/ j[D sZe ;'X/ 

nB[;ko, dh nB[bZr 1 ftZu dZ;hnK doK, id sZe fe ghHn?;HJhHnkoH;hH tb'A T[jBK Bz{ ;{fus BjhA ehsk 

iKdk, s/ foD^w[esh$w[Zb^xkNk ehsk frnk j?. 

 • nkJhHNhH ;kia'^;wkB ns/ ;kcNt/no dk fB:zsoB d/ wzst bJh fbfys w[Zb nkJhHn?ZBHnko 1$^ wzBd/ 

j'J/ 100# sZe w[Zb xNkfJnk frnk j?.

 • ;kb d"okB ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB ftZu tkXk$eN"shnK dk w[Zb^xkNk T[; wjhB/ s'A, id'A s'A 

fJj tkXk j'fJnk j? iK e/; nB[;ko T[; wjhB/ sZe nB[gkse nkXko s/ fbnk frnk j? fi; ftZu nfijh 

ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB t/funk, po\k;s ehsk, Ykfjnk frnk iK BPN ehsk frnk j?.

 • 5000$^ o[gJ/ sZe dh bkrs dhnK ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB dk gqkgsh ;kb d"okB g{oB 

w[Zb^xkNk eo fdZsk iKdk j? f;tkJ/ fJ; d/ fiE/ fe coBhuo ns/ fce;uo ns/ dcasoh ;kI ;wkB d/ 

torheoB d/ sfjs w[Zb^xkN/ bJh ftP/P torheoB fBPfus ehsk frnk j't/.

 • gN/ s/ bJhnK ;zgshnK (;w/s ‘tos'A dk nfXeko’ (nkoHUH:{H) ;zgshnK) B{z gN/ d/ fJeokoBkfwnK 

dhnK PosK w[skpe gN/ ;w/A, ;w/s gN/ d/ fJyfsnkoh ;w/A, d"okB w[Zb^xkNk$foD w[es ehsk frnk j?.

2H6 ;oekoh ;jkfJsk$;fj:'r

 • ezgBh Bz{ ;oekoh ;jkfJsk$nB[dkB gqkgs j' ;ed/ jB fiBQK bJh ezgBh dh tDI^tgko ;orowhnK Bkb 

;zpzXs fBPfus PosK dh gkbDk eoBh g? ;edh j? iK fBPfus :'rsk wkg^dzv d/ nkXko s/ ezgBh Bz{ ftZsh 

;fj:'r d/ o{g ftZu fdZsh ik ;edh j?.

 • ;oekoh ;jkfJsk$nB[dkB Bz{ T[d'A wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j? id'A fJj tkIp :ehB j't/ fe ;jkfJsk gqkgs 

j't/rh ns/ ezgBh fJ;d/ Bkb bZrthnK PosK dh gkbDk eoB :'r j't/rh. fJj ;jkfJsk$nB[dkB Bz{ 

;jkfJsk dh gqfeosh d/ nkXko s/ ;zgsh iK wkbhJ/ Bkb ;zpzXs ;jkfJsk ti'A torhfeqs ehsk ikt/rk.

 • yohd, fBowkD iK j'o soQK bzwh^fwnkd dhnK ;zgshnK gqkgs eoB dh Pos Bkb gqkgs ;oekoh 

;jkfJsk$nB[dkB Bz{ ;Efrs nkwdB d/ s"o s/ nkozGe wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j?. fJe tkoh ;Efrs nkwdB 
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dh wkBsk d/D T[gozs, nfijhnK ;jkfJsktK Bz{ fJe ftt;fEs nkXko w[skfpe ;zgsh d/ tos'A:'r 

ihtBekb ftZu bkG ns/ jkBh dh ;koDh ftZu wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j?. nB[wkBK ftZu spdhbhnK Bz{ GftZy 

ftZu nZr/ s'A ;zgsh d/ pekfJnk ihtBekb d"okB wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j?.

 • wkbhnk ;jkfJsk$nB[dkB d/ o{g ftZu ;jkfJsk ;Efrs jB ns/ bkG ns/ jkBh dh ;koDh ftZu T[BQ/ ;w/A 

d"okB wkBsk fdZsh iKdh  j? fi; d"okB ;zpzXs bkrsK, fiBQK dh g{osh bJh fJj gqkgs j'JhnK jB, dk 

ygkU j' iKdk j?.  

2H7 ftrkV 

 • i/eo fe;/ fJe ;zgsh (iK Bedh^T[sgkde :{fBN) dh gqkgsh:'r oew fJ;dh nZr/ fbnkdhA oew s'A xZN 

j'D dk nB[wkB brkfJnk iKdk j?, sK ;zgsh (iK Bedh^T[sgkde :{fBN) dh nZr/ fbnAdh oew Bz{ fJ;dh 

gqkgsh:'r oew sZe xNk fbnk iKdk j?. fJe ftrkV B[e;kB Bz{ bkG ns/ jkBh dh ;koDh ftZu s[ozs 

do;kfJnk iKdk j?, f;tkJ/ ;zpzXs ;zgsh Bz{ g[Bo w[bKfes oew s/ nZr/ fbikfJnk frnk j't/ sK nfijh 

;fEsh ftZu ftrkV B[e;kB Bz{ g[Bo^w[bKeD xkNk wzfBnk frnk j't/.

 • gqkgsh:'r oew T[fus w[Zb ftZu'A wB|h fBgNko/ dh bkrs iK tos'A ftZu w[Zb s'A tX/o/ j[zdh j?. tos'A ftZu 

w[Zb dk nB[wkB brkT[Ad/ ;w/A nB[wkfBs nkrkwh Bedh gqtkj Bz{ eo s'A gfjbK tZNk do Bkb T[;dk 

toswkB w[Zb sZe tZNk ehsk iKdk j? i' fe, XB d/ ;wK w[Zb dh w"i{dk pIko d/ Gkn dk w[bKeD ns/ ;zgsh 

Bkb ;zpzXs ftP/P i'yw fi; tk;s/ nkrkwh Bedh gqtkj d/ nB[wkBK Bz{ ;wk:'fis BjhA ehsk frnk j?, Bz{ 

do;kT[Adk j?.

 • ezgBh jo/e fog'ofNzr ;w/A d/ nzs s/ fJj fBPfus eoB bJh, fe T[E/ e'Jh bZSD jB fe T[jBK ;zgshnK B/ 

fJe ftrkV B[e;kB T[mkfJnk j?, ezgBh nkgDh ;E{b, n;E{b ;zgshnK d/ nZr/ fbnkd/A w[Zb dk foftT{ 

eodh j?. i/eo e'Jh nfij/ bZSD w"i{d jB sK ftrkV B[e;kB (i/eo e'Jh j't/) dh ;hwk fBPfus eoB 

bJh ;zgsh dh gqkgsh:'r oew dk nB[wkB brkfJnk iKdk j?. 

2H8 gN/

 • gN/ Bz{ ftZsh gN/ ti'A torhfeqs ehsk iKdk j? i/eo fJj wbehns Bkb ;zi'rh ;ko/ I'yw ns/ gqfscb 

sksfte s"o s/ spdhb eo fdzdk j?. fJe gN/ Bz{ fJe Ugo/fNzr gN/ ti'A torhfeqs ehsk iKdk j? i/eo fJj 

wbehns Bkb ;zi'rh ;ko/ I'yw ns/ gqfscb sksfte s"o s/ spdhb BjhA eodk j?.

fJe gZN/dko ti'A

 • gN/ dh P[o{nks s/ ‘‘tos'A dk nfXeko’’ (nkoHUH:{H) ;zgsh B{z ikfJdkd, wPhBoh ns/ ;kI'^;wkB 

(ghHghHJhH) nXhB wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j? ns/ bkrs s/ wkfgnk iKdk j?. fJ;d/ pokpo gNk d/Ddkoh B{z th 

wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j? ns/ fJ;B{z T[; fwsh B{z ndk Bk ehshnK rJhnK gNk ndkfJrhnK$gNk feokfJnk 

I[zw/tkohnK d/ toswkB w[Zb s/ wkfgnk iKdk j?. gNk ndkfJrhnK B{z, gN/ ftZu fBPfus ftnki do B{z 

tosd/ j'J/ tZNk ehsk ikt/rk, i/eo T[j do fJZedw fBPfus ehsh ik ;edh j't/. i/eo T[j do fJZedw 

fBPfus Bk ehsh ik ;edh j't/ gZN/dko dh tkXk T[Xko do dh tos'A eo/rk.
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 • pknd ftZu ‘‘tos'A dk nfXeko’’ ;zgsh, T[;dh bkrs ftZu'A ;zfus w[Zb^xkNk$foD^w[esh ns/ ;zfus 

ftrkV B[e;kB, i/eo e'Jh j't/, xNkT[D s'A pknd nZr/ fbikJh iKdh j?. gN/ d/ ;w/A d"okB gNk d/Ddkoh 

dh nZr/ fbnKdh oew tXk e/, gNk d/Ddkoh s/ ftnki B{z fdykT[D bJh ns/ ;w/A d"okB ndk ehshnK gNk 

ndkfJrhnK B{z fdykT[D bJh nZr/ fbnKdh oew B{z xNk e/ wkgh iKdh j? ns/ eoI/ iK j'o ftZsh 

d/DdkohnK fit/A T[fus j't/ ftZu Pkwb ehsh iKdh j?.

 • gNk fJeokoBkw/ ftZu ;'X j'D s/ iK gN/ dhnK fBfPfus gNk ndkfJrhnK dh ftP/^t;s{ ftZu ;[XkJh j'D 

(i/eo e'Jh j?) s/ gNk d/Ddkoh dh nZr/ fbnKdh oew ns/ ‘‘tos'A dk nfXeko’’ ;zgsh ftZu T[jh 

;wkXkB eoB d/ Bkb^Bkb d[pkok wkgh$w[bzfes ehsh ikt/rh.

 • jo/e gNk ndkfJrh d/Ddkoh ns/ ftZsh bkrs ftueko tzvh iKdh j?. ftZsh bkrs, gN/ ;w/A d"okB bkG iK 

jkBh B{z ukoi ehsh iKdh j? sK fe jo/e ;w/A bJh d/Ddkoh d/ pekJ/ s/ fJZe ;fEo nktosh ftnki do 

T[sgzB j't/.

 • ‘‘tos'A dk nfXeko’’ ;zgsh B{z gN/ d/ fJeokoBkw/ w[skpe gN/ d/ ;w/A d"okB g{oh soK w[Zb^xkNk$foD 

w[es ehsk ikt/rk.

 • E'V/ ;w/A d/ gN/ iK nfij/ gN/ fizBQK nXhB ;zgsh xZN w[Zb dh j?, Bkb ;zpzXs gNk G[rskBK B{z, bkG s/ jkBh 

B{z \ou/ ti'A f;ZXh bkJhB gqDkbh nkXko s/ gN/ ;w/A d"okB ukoi ehsk ikt/rk.

gNk wkbe ti'A

 • Ugo/fNzr gN/ s'A nkwdB Bz{ ;zpzXs gN/ dh fwnkd d"okB f;ZXh^o/yk nkXko s/ nkwdB ftZu do;kfJnk 

iKdk j?.

2H9   T[Xko bkrsK 

 • T[Xko bkrsK ftZu ftnki ns/ eofInK d/ gqpzX bJh j'JhnK ;jkfJe bkrsK dh foD^w[esh Pkwb j?. 

 • nkw ns/ ftP/P T[Xkoh bkrsK, fijVhnK :'r ;zgsh gqkgs eoB, fBowkD eoB iK T[sgkdB eoB bJh 

f;ZX/ s"o Bkb ;zpzXs jB, Bz{ ;zpzXs ;zgsh dh bkrs dk fjZ;k wzBd/ j'J/ T[;dk g{ziheoB ehsk frnk j?.

 • fJe :'r ;zgsh fJe ;zgsh j? fi;Bz{ wzsthA tos'A bJh fsnko eoB bJh fJe wjZstg{oB ;wK^ntXh 

bkIwh s"o s/ bZrdh j?.

 • ftP/P T[Xkoh, fi;dk :'r ;zgsh bJh \ou ni/ pkeh j?, d/ nkoIh fBt/P s'A gqkgs j'Jh fBt/P nkwdB Bz{ 

g{ziheoB bJh :'r T[Xkoh bkrsK ftZu' wB|h ehsk frnk j?.  

 • fi; ;hwk sZe fJe ndkok nkw s"o s/ oew T[Xkoh b?Adk j? ns/ T[;dh tos'A :'r ;zgsh gqkgs eoB d/ 

T[d/P Bkb eodk j?, sK ndkok T[; ;zgsh T[Zgo j'J/ \ou s/ g{ziheoB do brk e/ g{ziheoB bJh :'r 

T[Xkoh bkrsK dh oew fBPfus eo/rk. T[Xko bkrsK dk g{ziheoB j/mK do;kJ/ nB[;ko Gkfos n";s 

|kow{b/  d/ nkXko s/ ehsk iKdk j?.

 (T) ;hHvpfbT{HnkJhHghH d/ e[Zb nkozGe ns/ nzfsw pekfJnk dh n";s.

 (n) g{zihrs ekoiK bJh ftZsh ;kb d"okB tos/ rJ/ eofInK dh n";s Gko.

 (J) g{zihrs ekoiK bJh eofInK T[Zgo ;kb d"okB ndk ehsk ns/ T[ZgpzX eotkfJnk ftnki.
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 (;) T[Xkoh bkrsK dk g{ziheoB & J % T$n.

 j'o T[Xkoh bkrsK Bz{ T[;/ ;w/A d"okB ygkU ehsk iKdk j? fi; d"okB fJj j[zdhnK jB.

2H10  wkb^;{uh (fJBt?ANoh)

 • wkb^;{uh ftubhnK t;sK w[bKeD Gkfos n";s nkXko s/ iK fBo'b t;{bh:'r ehws i' th xZN j't/, s/ 

ehsk frnk j?.

 • wkb^;{uh t;sK dh bkrs ftZu \ohd dhnK ;kohnK bkrsK, spdhbh bkrsK ns/ wkb^;{uh t;sK B{z T[BQK 

d/ w"i{dk ;EkB ns/ gq;fEsh ftZu fbnkT[D bJh j'J/ j'o \ou/ Pkwb jB. 

 • \ohd bkrs ftZu \ohd ehws ;w/s fvT{Nh ns/ eo, (T[BQK s'A fpBQK fijV/ fe pknd ftZu T[dZw d[nkok 

eo bkT[D tkbhnK nEkoNhI s'A t;{bh:'r j[zd/ jB), GkVk nzdotko ns/ j'o \ouk fijVk fe f;ZX/ o{g 

ftZu t;s{ dh gqkgsh Bkb ;zpzXs j[zdk j?, Pkwb ehsk iKdk j?.

 • g[okDhnK, Bk^w[ozws:'r ns/ tkX{ ;N'oI ns/ ;g/noI dk ntw[ZbD BIo;kBh T[gozs fBoXkos ehsk 

frnk j? ns/ T[gpzX ehsk j?.

2H11  Bedh ns/ Bedh ;wkB

 • Bedh ftZu jZE Bedh ns/ p?AeK e'b gJh wzr iwQK oew Pkfwb j?. Bedh ;wkB, xZN^fwnkd d/ 

pekfJnk (fiBQK dh n;b gfogZesk gqkgsh dh fwsh s'A 3 wjhB/ iK xZN ;w/A dh j?), pj[s fInkdk sob 

fBt/P fijVk fe fBPfus oew ftZu s[ozs pdbD:'r j't/ ns/ fi; ftZu w[Zb spdhbh dk wjZstjhD 

i'yw j't/, j?.

2H12  wkbhnk wkBsk

 • ;zuko nkwdB gzikp ;N/N fJb?eNohf;Nh o?r{b/Noh efwPB tZb'A N?foc j[ewK, Bz{ nfX;{fus eoB s'A 

pknd, d/ nkXko s/ id'A th ;zfus j't/ b/fys ehsh iKdh j?. 

 • f;ZXh gj[zu tkb/ ygsekoK s'A j'Jh nkwdB, ftfB:wK, i' fe gzikp ;N/N fJb?eNohf;Nh o?r{b/Noh efwPB 

tZb'A nfX;{fus N?foc j[ewK Bkb gVB:'r jB, d/ nkXko s/ b/fys ehsh iKdh j?.

 • ;[Gkfte nzsookIh bkJhBK s'A nkwdB tk;sfte gqkgshnK d/ nkXko s/ b/fys ehsh iKdh j?.

 • j'o nkwdB ;zfus nkXko s/ wzBh iKdh j?, f;tkJ/ id'A nfijh nkwdB dh nzfsw t;{bh nfBPfus j't/.

 • ;zukoB ukoiI s/ d/oh$;Efrs ndkfJrh ;oukoi (vhHghHn?;H) ;zfus nkXko s/ b/fys ehsk iKdk j?, 

fiZE/ ;zukoB$j'o fJeokoBkfwnK ftZu fJ; fe;w d/ ;oukoiK (vhHghHn?;H) dh t;{bh bJh d|k w"i{d 

j't/.

 • j'o d/oh eoe/ ndkfJrh ;oukoi, fBoXkos joikB/$tkozNh dknt/ ns/ g{osheosktK B{z g/PrhnK s/ 

ftnki, tk;sfte gqkgshnK d/ nkXko s/ b/fys ehs/ iKd/ jB.

 • oZdh wkb ns/ epkV dh fteoh B{z T[d'A b/fys ehsk iKdk j?, id'A fJ; B{z t/funk iKdk j?.

 • wkbhJ/ B{z gqkgs ehs/ iK gqkgsh:'r fJtIkB/ d/ tkIp w[Zb s/ wkfgnk frnk j?.

ftnki nkwdB

 • ftnki nkwdB Bz{ ;wK nB[gks nkXko Bz{ pekfJnk w{b oew ns/ bkr{ do d/ w/b nB[;ko gqGkth ftnki 
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do ftXh dh tos'A eoe/ wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j?.

 • nwbk eofInK ns/ g/PrhnK s'A ;zfus ftnki dh nkwdB B{z ;zfus nkXko s/ T[gpzfXs ehsk frnk j?. 

ftnki dh t;{bh w{bXB dh t;{bh s'A pknd ehsh iKdh j?.

2H13  \ou/

 • ;ko/ \ou/ ;zfus nkXko s/ b/fys ehs/ iKd/ jB f;tkJ/ S[ZNh :ksok fonkfJsK, vkeNoh gqshg{oshnK, 

NhHJ/H$vhHJ/H dknt/, wfjzrkJh GZs/ ns/ sB\kj d/ pekJ/, i' fe T[;/ ;kb ftZu b/fys ehs/ rJ/ jB fi; 

;kb ftZu fJjBK dh ndkfJrh ehsh rJh j?.

2H14  eowukohnK d/ bkG

 • ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?ZbH ftZu ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH s'A v?g{N/PB$;?fezvw?AN s/ ekoi eo oj/ eowukoh g?BPB 

;ehw iK n?BHghHn?;H ;ehw d/ nzsors nkT[Ad/ jB.

 • gzikp T[oIk y/so ;[Xko ns/ spdhbh ;ehw (gfjbk ;zP'XB) 2012 d/ nB[;oB ftZu ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH 

ns/ ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH d'tK bJh g?BPB, rq?u{Nh ns/ SZ[Nh BedheoB bJh ;kAMk eowukoh bkG NoZ;N 

j't/rk. fi; dh gqrshtkdh czfvzr 01 ngo?b 2014 s'A P[o{ j'D tkb/ 15 ftZsh ;kbK ftZu gzikp ;N/N 

fJb?eNohf;Nh o?r{b/Noh efwPB tZb'A fBoXkos nB[gks 88H64 L 11H36 ftZu ehsh ikt/rh. gqrshtkdh 

czfvzr d"okB ns/ T[; s'A pknd T[sgzB j'D tkbhnK nzfsw bkG d/DdkohnK d'B'A ekog'o/PBK tb'A T[;/ 

nB[gks ftZu tzvhnK ikDrhnK. g?BPB, rq?u{Nh ns/ SZ[Nh BedheoB dh 16 ngo?b 2010 s'A 31 wkou 

2014 d"okB n;b ndk ehsh$ndk eoB :'r oew ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH ns/ ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH ftZu 

88H64 L 11H36 nB[gks ftZu tkofPe nkXko s/ tzvh ikt/rh.

 • ezgBh d[nkok Gosh ehs/ eowukohnK d/ ;zpzX ftZu rq?u{Nh ns/ ewkJh S[ZNh pkps T[gpzX n?eu[noh tb'A 

gq'i?efNv :{fBN eo?fvN ftXh Bkb ehs/ w[bKeD d/ nkXko s/ ehsk frnk j?.

 • g[Bo^wkg, fi; ftZu n?eu[nohnb bkG ns/ jkBh Pkwb jB, Bz{ f;ZX/ jh j'o ft;fsqs nkwdB ftZu T[;h 

ntXh d"okB do;kfJnk iKdk j? fi; d"okB T[j gkJhnK iKdhnK jB. g[Bo^wkg bkG ns/ jkBhnK Bz{ 

fJe[nNh ftZu spdhbh dh ;koDh ns/ p?b?A; PhN ftZu oZyh nkwdB ftZu Pkwb ehsk iKdk j?.

 • S'Nh fwnkd eowukoh bkG fIzw/tkohnK Bz{ fJe r?o^eN"sh nkXko s/ wkfgnk iKdk j? ns/ \ou/ jB feT[A 

i' ;zpzXs gqdkB ehshnK ;/tktK jB. fJe d/Ddkoh Bz{ xZN^fwnkdh eowukoh bkG nXhB G[rskBeoB 

:'r oew dh fJe d/Ddkoh Bz{ wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j?. i/eo ezgBh e'b eowukohnK tb'A fgZSbhnK gqdkB 

ehshnK ;/tktK d/ Bshi/ ti'A fJ; oew dk G[rskB eoB dh toswkB eB{zBh iK nB[wkfBs fIzw/tkoh j? ns/ 

fIzw/tkohnK Bz{ Go';/ Bkb nB[wkfBs ehsk ik ;edk j?. 

2H15 nkwdB eo

 • ;kb dk nkwdB eo \ouk ukb{ eo ns/ ;Efrs eo d/ i'V Bz{ do;kT[Adk j?.

 • ukb{ eo ;zGkfts d/D:'r$gqkgsh:'r eo j? i' fe ;kb dh ;zGkfts nkwdB$B[e;kB T[Zs/ bkr{ eo doK iK 

fog'ofNzr ;wK d/ nzs sZe tk;sfte bkr{{ eo doK dh tos'A eod/ j'J/ fwfDnk frnk j?.

 • ftZsh ;koDhnK ftZu ;zgshnK ns/ d/DdkohnK dk nZr/ fbnkdK w[Zb ns/ eokXkB T[d/P bJh ;zpzfXs 
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oewK d/ ftZu nkoIh |oe w"i{d j'D eoe/ fJ; ;zpzXh ;Efrs eo Bz{ wkBsk fdZsh rJh j?.

 • ;w{j eo:'r nkoIh |oe eoe/ ;Efrs eo d/DdkohnK dh nkws"o s/ wkBsk fdZsh rJh j?.

 • ;Efrs eo ;zgshnK dh nkws"o s/ wkBsk T[;/ ;hwk sZe jh fdZsh rJh j? fi; ;hwk sZe fJj ;zGkfts 

eo:'r bkG bJh T[gbpX j'Dr/ fizBQK fto[ZX fJ; ;zgsh dh tos'A ehsh ik ;e/rh.jo/e fog'ofNzr ;w/A d/ 

nzs s/ ;Efrs eo dh nZr/ fbnkdhA oew dk g[Bontb'eB ehsk iKdk j? ns/ fJ; Bz{ T[; ;hwk sZe 

xNkfJnk iKdk j? fiE'A sZe fJj ;zGkth BjhA bZrdk fe ;zpzXs eo bkG gqkgs eo bJ/ ikDr/.

 • ;Efrs eo t;{bh ;wkXkB \ksk T[;/ ;hwk sZe jh eo?fvN$v?fpN ehsk iKdk j? fi; ;hwk sZe nkT[D tkb/ 

;kbK ftZu n;b ndk ehs/ d/ nkXko s/ bkG gqkgs eoB tkfbnK s'A nko'gD:'r j'Dr/.

 • ukb{ ns/ ;Efrs eo Bz{ bkG ns/ jkBh \ks/ ftZu do;kfJnk iKdk j? f;tkJ/ T[d'A id'A T[j T[BQK wZdK d/ 

;zpzX ftZu j't/ fiBQK Bz{ j'o ft;fsqs nkwdB iK f;ZXk jh P/noK ftZu do;kfJnk frnk j't/ sK nfij/ e/; 

ftZu ukb{ ns/ ;Efrs eo Bz{ eqwtko j'o ft;fsqs nkwdB iK f;ZXk jh P/noK ftZu do;kfJnk iKdk j?.

2H16  gqsh P/no ewkJh

 • ezgBh dh JhHghHn?; fBoXkfos eoB bJh ewkJh ftZu eo s'A pknd fBo'b bkG$jkBh Bz{ fbnk frnk j?. 

w{b ewkJh gqsh P/no dh rDBk eo s'A pknd fBo'b bkG$jkBh Bz{ ;kb d"okB pekfJnk Gkfos n";s 

fJe[nNh P/noK dh frDsh Bkb se;hw eoe/ ehsh rJh j?.

 • sob ewkJh gqsh P/no dh rDBk ;kb d"okB Gkfos n";s P/noK dh frDsh ns/ pekfJnk ;zGkth sob 

fJe[nNh P/noK dh tos'A eoe/ ehsh rJh j?. fJe[nNh P/noK dh frDsh ns/ ;zGkth sob fJe[nNh 

P/noK Bz{ P/no ftGkiB$ wB;{y P/no ftGkiB ns/ p'B; P/no, i' w[Bkf;p j?, Bkb ;wk:'iB ehsk frnk 

j?.

2H17  ftt;EktK

 • fJe ftt;Ek Bz{ T[d'A wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j? id'A fgZSbhnK xNBk d/ Bshi/ ti'A ezgBh s/ gqsy fIzw/tkoh 

(eBz{Bh iK nB[wkfBs) j? ns/ fJ; fIzw/tkoh dk fBgNkok eoB bJh fJj ;zGktBk j't/ fe ;kXBK d/ 

pkjo^gqtkj dh Io{os j't/rh fi; d/ ;zpzX ftZu fJe Go';/:'r nB[wkB brkfJnk ik ;edk j?.

2H18  fJs|kehnk d/DdkohnK

 • fJs|kehnk d/DdkohnK Bz{ wkBsk BjhA fdZsh iKdh gozs{ B'N; ftZu fJ;dk gqrNkn ehsk iKdk j? id'A 

fgZSbhnK xNBk d/ ekoB ezgBh s/ fIzw/tkoh ;zGkfts j? ns/ fIzw/tkoh dh j'Ad ;zGkth xNBktK d/ tkgoB 

iK Bk^tkgoB s/ fBoGo j? i' g{oh soQK ezgBh d/ fB:zsoB ftZu BjhA jB.

 • fJs|kehnk d/DdkohnK dk w[bKeD nkofEe ;kXBK d/ pkjo^gqtkj dh ;zGktBk pDB dk gsk brkT[D 

bJh fBozso ehsk iKdk j?. i/eo fJj ;zGkfts j' ikt/ sK ftZsh ;koDhnK ftZu fJ; dh ftt;Ek ehsh 

iKdh j?. 

2H19  fJs|kehnk ;zgshnK

 • fJs|kehnk ;zgshnK Bz{z{ wkBsk BjhA fdZsh iKdh gozs{ B'N; ftZu fJ;dk gqrNkn ehsk iKdk j? i' fe 

nkws"o s/ :'iBk^ofjs iK nke;fwe xNBktK s'A T[sgzB j[zdhnK jB fi; ekoB nkofEe bkGK d/ 
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nzdo^gqtkj j'D dh ;zGktBk dh T[sgsh j[zdh j?. 

 • nkofEe bkGK dk n;bh s"o s/ j'Dk fBPfus eoB bJh fJs|kehnk ;zgshnK dk w[bKeD fBozso ehsk 

iKdk j? ns/ i/eo fJj fBPfus j' iKdk j? sK ;zpzXs nkwdB Bz{ ftZsh ;koDhnK ftZu do;kfJnk iKdk j?.

2H20  yzv fog'ofNzr

 • yzv ;orowhnK dh fog'oN nfij/ Yzr Bkb ehsh iKdh j? i' w[Zy ;orow fBoDkfJe Bz{ ehsh iKdh 

nzdo{Bh fog'ofNzr d/ sohe/ Bkb w/b yKdh j't/. fit/A fJzv J/Hn?;H^108, (nkgo/fNzr ;?rw?AN;) ezgBh  

ftZu gfoGkfPs ehsk frnk j? fe ezgBh dk u/now?B^ew^w?B/fizr vkfJo?eNo Bz{ w[Zy ;orow 

fBoDkfJe ti'A ikfDnk iKdk j?.

 • ezgBh w[Zy o{g ftZu fJejo/ tgko yzv, fpibh d/ ftsoD ns/ ;N/N b'v fv;NhqfpT[PB ;?ANo d/ ezw ftZu 

i[ZNh j'Jh j?. fJzv J/Hn?;H^108 nB[;ko T[E/ e'Jh fog'oN eoB:'r w[Zy yzv PBkys BjhA j?.  

2H21  fgZSbk ;wK

 • nfjw fgZSb/ ;w/A (;wK) dhnK rZbshnK Bz{ g{ot^gqGkth ;w/A s'A mhe eod/ j'J/ fiE'A sZe ;zGt j' ;e/ 

fgZSb/ ;w/A dhnK s[bBkswe oewK ;w/s w{b ns/ sob ewkJh gqsh P/no Bz{ w[V^efEs ehsk iKdk j?. 

fco th, i/ }bsh s[bBkswe ;w/A s'A th gfjbK d/ ;w/A Bkb ;zpzX oZydh j? sK ;zgshnK, d/DdkohnK ns/ 

fJe[nNh d/ s[bBkswe ;w/A d/ do;kJ/ rJ/ w[Yb/ pekfJnK Bz{ w[V^efEs ehsk iKdk j?.

2H22  phw/ d/ dknt/

 • phw/ d/ dknftnK Bz{ dk\b dknt/$ ;zGkth dk\b j'D tkb/ dknftnK d/ nkXko s/ b/fys ehsk iKdk j? ns/ 

fiE'A sZe j' ;e/ gqkgsh:'r oew Bz{ Go';/:'r sohe/ Bkb wkfgnk frnk j? ns/ fJ;dh nzsw t;{bh dh 

T[vhe tkIp j?.

2H23  ftZsh d;skt/I

  ftZsh ;zgshnKL

  ftZsh ;zgshnK Bz{ T[d'A wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j? id'A d;skt/I dhnK fJeoko Bkw/ dhnK PosK nB[;ko ezgBh 

fJe fXo pDdh j? ns/ fJ;Bz{ nkozG ftu T[fus wZ[b s/ wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j? ns/ ftZsh ;zgsh Bz{ gqkgs 

eoB iK ikoh eoB bJh j'JhnK gqsZy bkrsK Bz{ fJ; d/ nkozGe wkBsk d/D ;w/A d/ T[fus w[Zb ftZu iwQK 

iK xNkfJnk iKdk j? f;tkJ/ T[BQK ftZsh ;zgshnK d/ fiBQK d/ T[fus w[Zb dh wkBsk bkG ns/ jkBh okjhA 

fdZsh iKdh j?.

  ftZsh ;zgshnK Bz{ torhfeqs ehsk frnk j? fit/A T[jBK Bz{ wkfgnk frnk L

 • foD^w[esh bkrs s/, id'A ftZsh ;zgshnK w{bXB ns/$iK ftnki dh ndkfJrh d/ ekoB j'D tkb/ f;oc 

Bedh gqtkj d/ fJZesoheoB d/ T[d/P bJh oZyhnK iKdhnK jB.

 • T[fus w[Zb j'o ft;fsqs nkwdB okjhA (n?cHthHNhHUH;hHnkJhH) s/, fiE/ ftZsh ;zgshnK Bk f;oc w{bXB 

ns/$iK ftnki dh ndkfJrh d/ ekoB ;r'A fJBQK dh t/u s'A th j'D tkb/ Bedh gqtkj d/ fJZesoheoB d/ 

T[d/P bJh oZyhnK iKdhnK jB.

 • T[fus w[Zb bkG ns/ jkBh okjhA (n?cHthHNhHghHn?bH), fiE/ ftZsh ;zgshnK Bz{ Bk sK foD^w[esh bkrs s/ 
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ns/ Bk jh n?cHthHNhHUH;hHnkJhH okjhA torhfeqs ehsk frnk j?.

  ftZsh ;zgshnK ftZu tgkoe b?D:'r, g/PrhnK, IwkBsh iwQK, Bedh ns/ Bedh ;wkB nkfd Pkwb jB 

ns/ foD^w[esh bkrs s/ wkgD bJh torhfeqs ehsk frnk j?.

  gpq Xz B nkoGz e wkBsk d / ;wA/ fJBKQ  ;gz shnK B {z gkq gs eoB d / Td[ P/  d / nkXko s / fJBKQ  B {z torhfesq  eodk j.?

•  ftrkV L

  ezgBh jo/e fog'ofNzr fwsh s/ ftZsh ;zgsh iK ftZsh ;zgshnK d/ fJe ;w{j Bz{ (bkG iK jkBh d[nkok T[fus 

w[Zb s/ oZyhnK ftZsh ;zgshnK s'A fJbktk), fpBK fe;/ nB[fus bkrs iK :sB d/ T[gbpX ;p{s iK ;{uBk 

d/ nkXko s/, ftrkV bJh go\ eodh j?. ;zGfts iwQK B[e;kB dk nB[wkB brkfJnk iKdk j? ns/ i/eo 

ftZsh ;zgsh d/ iwQK I'yw ftbZyD o{g ftZu tZX rJ/ jB sK ftrkV B[e;kB Bz{ do;kfJnk iKdk j?.

  ftrkV B[e;kB ns/ ftgohssk Bz{ bkG ns/ jkBh dh ;koDh ftu do;kfJnk iKdk j?.

•  r?o^wkBsk L

  ftZsh ;zgshnK Bz{ r?o^wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j? id'A ftZsh ;zgshnK s'A Bedh gqtkj gqkgs eoB dk nfXeko 

fJeokfos PosK w[skpe \sw j' iKdk j?, iK ;zgsh s'A Bedh gqtkj d/ fJeokfos nfXeko Bz{ spdhb eo 

fdZsk iKdk j?.

  ftZsh d/DdkohnK L

  eofInK, eko'pkoh d/D:'r iK j'o ftZsh d/DdkohnK dh, ;zpzXs fJeokfos fIzw/tkoh d/ w[Zb s/ nkozGe 

wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j?. pknd ftZu fJBQK Bz{ gqGkth ftnki do ftXh dh tos'A eod/ j'J/ foD^w[esh bkrs 

s/ wkfgnk iKdk j?. 

•  r?o^wkBsk L

  fJe ftZsh d/Ddkoh B{z T[d'A r?o^wkBsk fdZsh iKdh j? id'A fJeokoBkw/ ftZu fBPfus fIzw/tkoh T[sko 

fdZsh iKdh j? iK oZd j' iKdh j? iK T[;dh fwnkd gZ[r iKdh j?. id'A fJe w"i{dk ftZsh d/Ddkoh Bz{ T[;/ 

foDdksk s'A Gog{o o{g ftZu tZyohnK PosK s/ d/Ddkoh Bkb pdbk fbnk iKdk j?, iK fJe w"i{dk d/Ddkoh 

dhnK PosK Bz{ Gog{o o{g ftZu ;zP'Xs ehsk iKdk j?, sK nfijk tNKdok iK ;zP'XB w{b d/Ddkoh Bz{ 

r?o^wkfBs eo fdzdk j? ns/ BthA d/Ddkoh Bz{ wkBsk d/ fdZsh iKdh j?. ;zpzXs nZr/ fbnKd/ w[Zb ftZu |oe 

Bz{ bkG ns/ jkBh dh ;koDh ftZu do;kfJnk iKdk j?.

  ftZsh d;skt/IK dk gqfs;zs[bB eoBkL

  ftZsh ;zgshnK ns/ d/DdkohnK dk gqfs;zs[bB ehsk iKdk j? ns/ fBo'b oew Bz{ p?b?A; PhN ftZu Pkwb 

ehsk iKdk j? fi~E/ fe~E/ wkfBs oewK Bz{ gqfs;zs[bB eoB dk eBz{Bh bkr{ eoB :'r nfXeko j? ns/ T[~E/ 

fBo'b nkXko s/ fBp/VB iK ;zgsh dh gqkgsh ns/ d/Ddkoh dk fBp/Vk fJe' ;w/A s/ eoB dh Bhns j't/.

gzikp ;N/N NoK;fwPB ekog'o/PB fbfwfNv
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Note 6 : Capital Work in Progress (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account Code As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 

2022

1 Capital works in progress 14 28,814.05 20,128.26

2 Capital works in progress - 400KV & above 15.1 16,411.28 5,208.43

Total 45,225.32 25,336.69

Note 6.1 : Details of capital work in progress (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 

2022

25,336.69 30,285.03

Add
45,074.14 32,140.20

Less

i)     from Contributory Works 3,181.54

ii)    from Government Grant under PSDF Scheme 319.94

iii)   from Others - PPE 21,674.17

iv)   from Others - Intangible Assets 9.87 25,185.51 37,059.95

Less b) Amt written off - 28.59

45,225.32 25,336.69

*

Note 6.2 : Detail of CWIP (Contribution works, Government Grants under PSDF Scheme and Others) (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Opening balance 

of WIP

Addition Total Transfer to PPE & 

Intangible Assets

Closing balance 

of WIP

1 Contributory Works 2,661.49 2,701.53 5,363.03 3,181.54 2,181.48

2 Government Grant under PSDF Scheme 310.73 5,410.60 5,721.33 319.94 5,401.39

3 Others 22,364.47 36,962.01 59,326.48 21,684.03 37,642.45

Total 25,336.69 45,074.14 70,410.84 25,185.51 45,225.32

Note 6.3 :

Note 6.4 : CWIP ageing Schedule (Rupees in Lacs)

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Total as on 

31.03.2023

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

i Projects in progress

Contributory works 1,405.15

                

735.81

                          

39.36 1.16 2,181.48

Government Grant under PSDF Scheme 5,084.36

                

297.77

                          

                             -      19.26 5,401.39

Others 25,496.31

              

6,533.10

                      

2,008.73 3,604.31 37,642.45

ii Projects temporarily suspended

Contributory works                           -                                      -                                   -                                   -                                   -      

Government Grant under PSDF Scheme                           -                                      -                                   -                                   -                                   -      

Others                           -                                      -                                   -                                   -                                   -      

Total          31,985.82                 7,566.69              2,048.09              3,624.73            45,225.32 

(Rupees in Lacs)

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

1 2 3 4 5 6 

i Contributory works                              -                                      -                                   -                                   -   

ii Government Grant under PSDF Scheme                              -                                      -                                   -                                   -   

iii Others                              -                                      -                                   -                                   -   

Total                       -                              -                           -                            -   

Note 6.6: Detail of projects where activity has been suspended (Rupees in Lacs)

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

1 2 3 4 5 6 

i Contributory works                        -                               -                            -                            -   
ii Government Grant under PSDF Scheme                        -                               -                            -                            -   

iii Others                        -                               -                            -                            -   
Total                     -                              -                           -                            -      

Sr. 

No.

Sr. 

No.

Sr. 

No.

To be completed in

To be completed in

The amount of Rs.37642.45 lac closing balance of CWIP is hypothecated as security to the Financial Institutions.

Note 6.5: Completion schedule for capital work in progress, whose Completion is Overdue or has Exceeded 
its Cost compared to its Original Plan

Particulars

The addition in Capital work in progress and Contract in progress includes capitalisation of interest of Rs. 1916.66 lac on

amount borrowed and utilised for construction of the transmission projects), establishment cost of Rs. 3380.21 lac, R&M

expenses of Rs. 85.46 lac, A&G expenses of Rs. 403.87 lac and Depreciation of Rs. 131.52 lac during FY 2022-23.

Opening Capital work in progress

Additions during the year including capitalization of interest, employee cost

& other expenses *
a) Transferred to Fixed Assets during the year

Closing capital work in progress

CWIP

Amount in CWIP for a period of

CWIP

CWIP



120

th13  Annual Report 2022-23PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED

(Rupees in Lacs)

Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years

1 2 3 4 5 6 

i                        -                               -                            -                            -   

ii                        -                               -                            -                            -   

Total                       -                              -                           -                            -   

(Rupees in Lacs)

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 

years

1 2 3 4 5 6 

i                        -                               -                            -                            -   

ii                        -                               -                            -                            -   

Total                       -                              -                           -                            -   

Note 7 : Capital Stores (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account code As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 

2022

1 Stores & Spares

i Materials at stores 22.601 to 22.619 10,359.80

                    

9,453.54

ii Materials at site 22.640 363.63 904.77

Total Stores  (A) 10,723.44

                    

10,358.32

2 Less: Provisions for

i Obsolete items 22.905 (297.32)

                       

(0.95)

Total Provisions (B) (297.32)

                        

(0.95)

Net Stores   (A-B) 10,426.12 10,357.37

Note 7.1 :

Note 7.2 :

(Rupees in Lacs)

Gross Amount of Capital work in progress & Capital stores (Note 6+7) 55,651.44 35,694.06

The above amount of Capital Stores is hypothecated to State Bank of India against cash credit facility as a security.

Physical verication of the Stores have been carried through out the whole year on regular basis at the unit level and no

provision has been made for shortage during the year and no discrepancies has been noticed.

Sr. 

No.

To be completed in

Note 6.9: Detail of projects where activity has been suspended

To be completed in

Note 6.8: Completion schedule for Intangible assets under Development, whose Completion is Overdue or 
has Exceeded its Cost compared to its Original Plan

Sr. 

No.
Intangible Assets under Development

Intangible Assets under Development

Note 6.7: Intangible Assets under Development ageing schedule (Rupees in Lacs)

Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years Total

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
i Projects in progress                        -                               -                            -                            -                            -   

ii Projects temporarily suspended                        -                               -                            -                            -                            -   

Total                     -                              -                           -                            -                            -      

Sr. 

No.

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Intangible Assets under Development
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Note 8 : Other Non Current Financial Assets (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account code

As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

1 Amount recoverable from staff 28.360 

2 Other Receivables 28.868 302.98194.38

- 0.40

3 Amount under investigation for losses 28.870 19.3321.90

4 Material stock excess pending investigation 22.810 (13.76)(13.75)

                                        

5 Material stock shortage pending investigation 22.830 166.4188.30

Total    A 475.36290.84

6 Less : Provision for losses under investigation & Stock 

shortage(Net of Excess/shortage)                                   B

28.951 (171.98)(132.77)

                                    

Net (A-B) 303.38158.07

Note 9 : Other Non Current Assets (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account code

As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

Unsecured considered Good

1 Materials/Advance issued to Suppliers/Contractors 25 98.93 121.76

2 Securities 28.914 0.56 0.71

3

4

Deposits - against works, in courts etc.

Less : Provision for amount deposited in courts, etc.      

28.919 

28.951

176.27

(140.34)

27.79

-

Total    A

Net (A-B)

275.76

135.41

150.26

150.26

Note 10 : Inventories (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account code

As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

Stores & Spares (O&M)

1 Materials at stores 22.621 to 22.639 1,256.77 1,093.39

2 Materials at site 22.650 307.31 221.59

Total Stock & Spares (A) 1,564.08 1,314.97

3 Less: Provisions for

 

152.65

i Obsolete items 22.902 (0.00) (3.94)

                                            

Total Provisions (B) (0.00) (3.94)

                                            

Net Stores & Spares (A-B) 1,564.08 1,311.04

Note 10.1 :

Note 10.2 :

Physical verification of the Stores have been carried through out the whole year at the unit level and no discrepancy 

has been reported.

The above amount of Inventory is hypothecated to State Bank of India against cash credit facility as a security.
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Note 11 : Trade Receivables (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account Code

1 Sundry debtors

Unsecured and considered Good

i Exceeding Six months 2,451.53 2,452.92

ii Others 49,351.86 36,855.13

Total    A 51,803.39 39,308.05

Less : Provision for doubtful dues from

consumers                                                        B
23.9 (2.53) (3.92)

Net (A-B) 51,800.86 39,304.13

Note 11.1 :  In the opinion of Company, trade receivables as stated in the accounts will be realized in the ordinary course of Business. 

Note 11.2 : Sundry debtors are hypothecated to State Bank of India against cash credit facility as a security (rst charge).

Note 11.3 : The age wise breakup of trade receivables as at March 31, 2023 are as under: (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account Code Others Total

i PSPCL - Transmission charges 23.831 - 48,622.96 48,622.96

ii PSPCL - SLDC charges 23.832 - 693.20 693.20

iii Open Access Customers 23.801 2.53 35.70 38.23

iv Government of Punjab (GOP)* 23.833 2,449.00 2,449.00

Total 2,451.53 49,351.86 51,803.39

Note 11.4 : The detailed breakup of trade receivables as at March 31, 2023 are as under: (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account Code

Considered 

Good - Secured
Considered Good

Credit 

Impaired
Total

1 2 3 4 5 7 8 

i PSPCL - Transmission charges 23.831                        -                48,622.96                        -            48,622.96 

ii PSPCL - SLDC charges 23.832                        -                     693.20                        -                 693.20 

iii Open Access Customers 23.801                        -                       35.70                    2.53                 38.23 

iv Government of Punjab (GOP)* 23.833                        -                  2,449.00                        -              2,449.00 

Total                        -                51,800.86                    2.53 51,803.39

Note 11.5 : Trade Receivables ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2023 (Rupees in Lacs)

Less than 6 

months

6 months-1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 

years
Total

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

i Undisputed Trade receivables- considered 

good

a) PSPCL- Transmission charges            48,622.96                     -                              -                           -                             -               48,622.96 

b)     PSPCL - SLDC charges                 693.20                     -                              -                           -                             -                    693.20 

c)     Northern Railways- Transmission             

         charges

                  34.96                     -                              -                           -                             -                       34.96 

d)     Northern Railways--SLDC charges                     0.67                     -                              -                           -                             -                         0.67 

e)     Winsome Yarns Ltd.                     0.07                     -                              -                           -                             -                         0.07 

ii Undisputed Trade receivables- considered 

doubtful
                      -                          -                              -                           -                             -                          -      

a) GRS Ind Ltd.                       -                          -                              -                           -                           1.13                    1.13 

b)    Arihant Threads Ltd.                       -                          -                              -                           -                           0.94                    0.94 

c)     Sudershan Concast Pvt. Ltd.                       -                          -                              -                           -                           0.46                    0.46 

iii Disputed Trade receivables- considered 

good
                      -                          -                              -                           -                             -                          -      

a)    Government of Punjab                       -                          -                              -                           -                    2,449.00            2,449.00 

iv Disputed Trade receivables- considered 

doubtful 
                      -                          -                              -                           -                             -                          -      

Total            49,351.86                     -                              -                           -                    2,451.53          51,803.39 

Note 11.6 : Unbilled dues- Nil

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

                                                        -   

                                                        -   

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

23.8

Exceeding 6 Months

                                                        -   

Particulars
Sr. 

No.

Trade Receivable which have 

signicant increase in credit risk

                                                        -   

6 

                                                        -   

                    

                    



123

th13  Annual Report 2022-23 PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED

Note 11.7 : Trade Receivables ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2023

Less than 6 

months

6 months-1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 

years
Total

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

i Undisputed Trade receivables- considered 
good

a) PSPCL- Transmission charges            48,622.96                     -                              -                           -                             -               48,622.96 

b)     PSPCL - SLDC charges                 693.20                     -                              -                           -                             -                    693.20 

c)     Northern Railways- Transmission             
         charges

                  34.96                     -                              -                           -                             -                       34.96 

d)     Northern Railways--SLDC charges                     0.67                     -                              -                           -                             -                         0.67 

e)     Winsome Yarns Ltd.                     0.07                     -                              -                           -                             -                         0.07 

Total            49,351.86                     -                              -                           -                             -               49,351.86 

ii Undisputed Trade receivables- which have 

signicant increase in credit risk
                      -                          -                              -                           -                             -                          -      

iii Undisputed Trade receivables- credit 

impaired
a) GRS Ind Ltd.                       -                          -                              -                           -                           1.13                    1.13 

b)    Arihant Threads Ltd.                       -                          -                              -                           -                           0.94                    0.94 

c)     Sudershan Concast Pvt. Ltd.                       -                          -                              -                           -                           0.46                    0.46 

Total                       -                          -                              -                           -                           2.53                    2.53 

iv Disputed Trade receivables- considered good

a)    Government of Punjab *                       -                          -                              -                           -                    2,449.00            2,449.00 

Total                       -                          -                              -                           -                    2,449.00            2,449.00 

v Disputed Trade receivables- which have 

signicant increase in credit risk                       -                          -                              -                           -                             -                          -      

vi Disputed Trade receivables- credit impaired                       -                          -                              -                           -                             -                          -      

Grand Total            49,351.86 -                         -                           -                    2,451.53          51,803.39 

* The amount recoverable from GOP is on account of carrying cost as decided by PSERC in different tariff orders.

Note 12 : Cash & Cash equivalents (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account code

1 Cash in hand/at Bank 24.110, 130 & 

24.401
473.88 1,835.49

2 Postage stamps in hand 24.120 0.40 0.38

Total 474.28 1,835.87

Note 12.1 : Disclosure in respect of Changes in nancial liabilities arising from cash and non-cash changes are as under: (Rupees in Lacs)

Cash Non Cash Total Cash Non Cash Total

1 Borrowings including current maturities (Refer 

Note No. 19 & 25)
4,01,429.97 62,966.52 172.14 63,138.66 87,552.53 - 87,552.53 3,77,016.10

2 Borrowings - CC Limit & short term (Refer Note 

No. 24)
35,639.05 10,909.29 - 10,909.29 10,000.00 - 10,000.00 36,548.35

3 Lease Liability (Refer Note No. 20 & 26) 791.76 - 27.41 27.41 21.82 - 21.82 797.35

4 Deferred income/liability - PSPCL Loan (Refer 

Note No. 23)
305.60 - (172.14) (172.14) - 49.22 49.22 84.24

Total 4,38,166.39 73,875.82 27.41 73,903.23 97,574.34 49.22 97,623.57 4,14,446.05

Note 13 : Bank balance other than Cash & Cash equivalents (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account code

Fixed Deposit 20 82.68 84.26

Total 82.68 84.26

Note 13.1 : Fixed Deposit has been kept with the SBI against the letter of credit issued by the Bank in favour of PGCIL.

As at March 31, 2022As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at March 31, 2023

 (Rupees in Lacs) 

As on 

31.03.2023

Sr. 

No.
Particulars As on 31.03.2022

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Received Repayment
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Note 14 : Other Current Financial Assets (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account code

1 Advances to Suppliers/ Contractors (O&M) 26.1 to 26.8 0.03 0.03

2 Interest accrued on fixed deposits 28.320 0.85 1.05

3 Sundry Debtor - for other income 28.1 135.25 48.91

4 Income accrued and due - Interest on refund 

of Income Tax, Meter Security

28.2
- 0.01

5 Amount recoverable from Employees 28.4 88.83 89.23

6 Amount recoverable from Suppliers 28.810 97.91 96.12

Total A 322.87 235.35

7 Less : Provision for doubtful Recovery from 

employees/Suppliers                              B

28.951
(139.58)

 

-

Net (A-B) 183.29 235.35

As at March 31, 2022As at March 31, 2023

Note 15 :  Current Tax Assets (Net) (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. No. Particulars
Account 

Code

As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

1 Advance Income tax/Tax deducted at source 27.4 391.78 4,044.68

Total 391.78 4,044.68

Note 16 : Other Current Assets (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. No. Particulars
Account 

Code

As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

1 Prepaid expenses 28.820 4.16 7.27

2 Travelling Advance 27.202 4.05 1.78

3 GST Deposited on Advance 27.6 698.38 419.90

Total 706.58 428.95

Note 16.1 : GST deposited on advance received against contribution/deposit works.
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Note 17 : Equity share capital (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Account 

 Code

(a) Authorised

3,00,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

Total

(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

60,58,83,465 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 

fully paid up
54.5

Total

Number Rupees Number Rupees

1 Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 60,58,83,465 60,588.35 60,58,83,465 60,588.35

2 Shares issued during the year - - - -

3 Shares bought back during the year -

                    

-

                   

- -

4 Shares outstanding at the end of the year 60,58,83,465 60,588.35 60,58,83,465 60,588.35

Note 17.2 : Share holders holding more than 5% equity shares of the company

No. of 

Shares
Percentage

No. of 

Shares
Percentage

1 Governor of Punjab Equity 60,58,33,465 99.99 60,58,33,465 99.99

Total 60,58,33,465 99.99 60,58,33,465 99.99

Note 17.3 : Details of other Share holdings

1 Sh. A. Venu Prasad, IAS, CMD, PSTCL

2 Sh. Vijay Kumar Janjua, IAS

3 Sh. Ajoy Kumar Sinha, IAS

4 Sh. Tejveer Singh, IAS

5 Sh. K A P Sinha, IAS

6 Sh. Rajat Aggarwal, IAS

7 Sh. Nilkanth S. Avhad, IAS

8 Sh. Vijay Namdeorao Zade, IAS

9 Sh. Ravinder Kumar Kaushik, IAS

10 Sh. Varun Roozam, IAS

11 Sh. Kamal Kishor Yadav, IAS

12 Sh. Vijay Namdeorao Zade, IAS

13 Sh. Bhupinder Singh, IAS

14 Smt. Sakshi Sawhney, IAS

15 Sh. Aaditya Uppal, IAS

16 Sh. Arun Sekhri, IAS

17 Sh. Chander Gaind, IAS

18 Sh. Anirudh Tewari, IAS

19 Sh. Dilip Kumar, IAS

20 Sh. Sandeep Hans, IAS

21 Sh. Keshav Hingonia, IAS

22 Sh. Baldev Singh Saran, CMD, PSPCL

23 Sh. Vinod Kumar Bansal, Director/F&C, PSTCL

24 Sh. Surinder Kumar Beri, Director/Finance, PSPCL

25 Sh. Jatinder Kumar Goyal, Director/Finance, PSPCL

Total

Note 17.4 : Promoters shareholding is Nil as PSTCL is a Govt. company.

60,588.35

60,588.35

3,00,000.00

60,588.35

60,588.35

3,00,000.00

As at March 31, 2023

3,00,000.00

As at March 31, 2022

3,00,000.00

5,000-

-

5,000

5,000

Note 17.1 : The company has only one class of shares i.e. equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- each per share. 

Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

2,500

2,500

2,500

5,0005,000

5,000

-

5,000

All the above share holders are nominees of Punjab Government.

50,000

-

- 5,000

50,000

2,500

5,000

2,500

5,000

2,500-

2,500

2,500

2,500

-

1,250

1,250

-

-

-

- 2,500

-

-

5,000

1,250

1,250

5,000

-

-

5,000

5,000

-

-

-

-

Sr. 

No.

As at March 31, 2022

No. of Shares

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2023

Sr. 

No.

Sr. 

No.
Name of Shareholder

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022
Particulars

Class 

of Share

Name of Shareholder

As at March 31, 2022

No. of Shares
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Note 18 : Other Equity (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.

Account 

 Code

As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

1 General Reserve

Opening Balance 56.1 200.05 200.05

Add : Addition during the year

Less : Utilized/transferred during the year -                    -

Closing balance A 200.05 200.05

2 Capital Reserve

Opening Balance 56.2 1,86,210.78

           

1,86,210.78

Add : Addition during the year - -

Less : Utilized/transferred during the year - -

Closing balance B 1,86,210.78 1,86,210.78

3 Prot & Loss Account ( Surplus Account)

Opening Balance as per Prot & Loss Account 58,064.65 36,554.70

Add : Prot/(Loss) after tax for the current year 10,204.73 21,647.93

Add: Other Comprehensive Income directly recognised in 

surplus balance- Remeasurement of Actuarial

(115.04) (137.98)

Closing balance of Prot & Loss Account C 68,154.34 58,064.65

Total (A+B+C) 2,54,565.17 2,44,475.48

Note: 

(i)

(ii)

Particulars

General Reserve  will be utilized for distribution of dividend/meeting future losses (if any).

Capital Reserve includes amount of Rs. 1,84,582.08 lacs parked/received as opening balance through transfer

scheme notied by Punjab Government on 24.12.2012 and amount of Rs. 1628.71 lacs pertaining to the period

16.04.2010 to 31.03.2015 transferred in FY 2015-16 from "Reserve for Material cost variance".
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Note 19 : Borrowings (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.

Particulars Date of 

Availment 

of Loan

Date of 

Maturity of 

Loan

Account 

Code

Non Current 

Liabilities as at 

31st March, 2023

Non Current 

Liabilities as at 

31st March, 2022

A Secured

1 Term Loans from Rural Electrication Corporation

i 8.21% to 10.96% p.a. secured against Hypothecation of 

future assets & Default Escrow

07.09.2010 

to 

31.03.2023

3+15 Years 53.301 1,92,374.12 1,98,131.46

ii 9.50% to 9.75% p.a. secured against Hypothecation of 

assets & Default Escrow

15.09.2022 2+3 Years 53.301 19,000.00

         

-

iii 8.25% to 9.01% p.a. secured against Hypothecation of 

future assets & Default Escrow (SLDC)

20.02.2013 

to 

31.03.2023

3+15 Years 53.301 1,497.71

           

1,066.96

Total 2,12,871.84

       

1,99,198.42
2 Term Loans from State Bank of India

i 6 Months MCLR + 0.35% secured against Punjab Govt. 

Guarantee & Default Escrow

30.03.2019 

to 

31.03.2020

08/2024 53.501 2,917.68

           

10,458.60

Total 2,917.68

           

10,458.60
3 Term Loan from NABARD

i 9.10 % to 9.25% p.a. secured against Hypothecation of 

future assets & Default Escrow

11.02.2015 

to 

31.03.2020

3+12 Years 53.400 11,736.15

         
13,617.82

4 Term Loan from PFC

i 8.30% to 9.26% secured against Punjab Govt. 

Guarantee & Default Escrow

10.10.2016 2027-28 53.801 20,714.29

         

27,857.14

ii 8.30% to 9.26% p.a. secured against Mortgage of Assets 

& Default Escrow

28.03.2018 06/2026 53.801 22,300.65

         

32,212.05

iii 8.30% to 9.01% p.a. secured against Hypothecation of 

future assets & Default Escrow

12.06.2020 

to 

31.03.2023

4+28 Years 53.801 21,544.21

         

8,020.88

iv 8.30% to 9.01% p.a. secured against Mortgage of assets 

& Default Escrow

12.06.2020 

to 

31.03.2023

3+15 Years 53.801 945.00

              

945.00

Total 65,504.14

         

69,035.07
5 Term Loan from Bank of India

i 1 Year MCLR + 0.85% secured against Punjab Govt. 

Guarantee & Default Escrow

30.12.2015 12/2023 53.510 - 2,312.73

Total - 2,312.73

6 Term Loan from UCO Bank

i  3 Months MCLR, secured against Punjab Govt. 

Guarantee & Default Escrow

09.03.2021 03/2026 53.509 12,498.25 18,749.97

7 Term Loan from IREDA

i Repo rate + 330 BPS secured against Mortgage of 

Assets & Default Escrow

26.03.2021 02/2024 53.812 - 11,000.00

Total Secured borrowings (A) 3,05,528.07 3,24,372.62
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Note 19 : Borrowings - Contd… (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Date of 

Availment of 

Loan

Date of 

Maturity 

of Loan

Account 

Code

Non Current 

Liabilities as at 31st 

March, 2023

Non Current 

Liabilities as at 31st 

March, 2022

B Unsecured

1 Term Loan from PSPCL

i  Interest free (11KV VCB ) 31.03.2017 03/2027 53.811 200.49 74.04

Total 200.49 74.04

Total Unsecured borrowings (B) 200.49 74.04

Grand Total (A + B) 3,05,728.56 3,24,446.66
Note 19.1 : 

i Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs. 6023.49 crore at Sr. No. 1 loan availed upto 31.03.2023 is Rs. 4151.57 crore. (REC).

ii Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs. 300 crore at Sr. No. 2 loan availed upto 31.03.2023 is Rs. 300 crore. (SBI)

iii Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs.317.36 crore at Sr. No. 3 loan availed upto 31.03.2023 is Rs. 225.35 crore.(NABARD).

iv Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs. 2232.64 crore at Sr. No. 4 loan availed upto 31.03.2023 is Rs. 1220.46 crore.(PFC)

v Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs. 250 crore at Sr. No. 5 loan availed upto 31.03.2023 is Rs. 250 crore. (BOI)

vi Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs. 250 crore at Sr. No. 6 loan availed upto 31.03.2023 is Rs. 250 crore. (UCO Bank)

vii Against the sanctioned Loan amount of Rs. 300 crore at Sr. No. 7  loan availed upto 31.03.2023 is Rs. 300 crore. (IREDA)

Note 19.2 : Loan from PSPCL (11KV VCB)

Note 20 : Lease Liabilities against Leasehold Assets (Non-Current) (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.

Account 

Code

Non Current 

Liabilities as at 31st 

March, 2023

Non Current 

Liabilities as at 31st 

March, 2022

52.601 720.93 715.34

Total 720.93 715.34

Note 21 : Trade Payables (Non-Current) (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

1 - -

2 - -

- -

Note 22 : Provisions (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.

Account 

Code
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

1 44.161 2,075.52 1,595.44

2 44.162 3,285.89 2,502.00

Total 5,361.41 4,097.44

Note 23 : Other non current liabilities (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.

Account 

Code
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

1 47

i 47.305 4.30 51.98

ii 47.309 18,104.46 11,726.22

2 53.861 84.24 305.60

Total 18,193.01 12,083.81

Deferred income/liability -  PSPCL loan.

Particulars

Particulars

Provision for Gratuity

Provision for  Leave encashment

Note 22.1 : As per Ind AS-19 provision towards gratuity and leave encashment in respect of the employees directly recruited by the 

company has been made during the year as per the valuation report of Actuary. 

Deposits for :-

Contribution works

Particulars

Lease Liabilities - for Right-of-use (ROU) - Land 

Interest free loan received from PSPCL (11KV VCB) amounting to Rs. 759.29 lacs. This loan is shown at its fair value of Rs. 295.40

lacs less current maturity of Rs. 94.91 lacs (Note No. 25) and remaining amount of Rs. 84.24 lacs shown as Deferred Income/liability

under non current liabilities (Note no. 23).

Deposit works

Particulars

 Total outstanding dues of Small Enterprises and Micro enterprises 

 Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than small enterprises and micro enterprises 

Total
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Note 24 : Borrowings (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Date of 

Availment 

of Loan

Date of 

Maturity of 

Loan

Account 

 code

As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

Secured

Cash credits limit Rs. 275 crores

from SBI

1 6 Months MCLR + 0.50 % and WCL

165 Crore from SBI, 7.94% secured

against Stock & Default Escrow

08/2022 Renewable 

Annually

50.1 26,548.35 15,639.05

Unsecured

1 Unsecured Loan from REC against

Default Escrow @ 7.05%

09/2021 09/2022 53.301 - 10,000.00

2 Unsecured Loan PFC against

Default Escrow @ 7.75%

12/2022 12/2023 53.801 10,000.00 10,000.00

Total 36,548.35 35,639.05

Note 25: Current Maturity of Long term borrowings (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Date of 

Availment 

of Loan

Date of 

Maturity of 

Loan

Account 

 Code

Current 

Liabilities as at 

31st March, 2023

Current 

Liabilities as at 

31st March, 2022
A Secured

1
Term Loans from Rural 

Electrication Corporation
i 8.21% to 10.96% p.a. secured 

against Hypothecation of future 

assets & Default Escrow

07.09.2010 to 

31.03.2023

3+15 Years 53.301 25,415.34 24,995.79

ii 8.31 % p.a. secured against 

Hypothecation of future assets & 

Default Escrow

16.04.2010 15.06.2022 to 

15.08.2022

53.301 - 779.70

iii 8.25% to 9.01% p.a. secured against 

Hypothecation of future assets & 

Default Escrow (SLDC)

20.02.2013 to 

31.03.2023

3+15 Years 53.301 69.19 69.19

Total 25,484.52 25,844.67
2 Term Loans from State Bank of 

India

i 6 Months MCLR + 0.35% secured 

against Punjab Govt. Guarantee & 

Default Escrow

30.03.2019 to 

31.03.2020

08/2024 53.501 7,500.00 7,500.00

ii 1 Year MCLR, secured against 

Extension of charge on existing 

primary and or collateral security 

& Default Escrow

12.05.2020 04/2022 53.501 - 110.51

Total 7,500.00 7,610.51
3 Term Loan from NABARD

i 9.10 % to 9.25% p.a. secured 

against Hypothecation of future 

assets & Default Escrow

11.02.2015 to 

31.03.2020

3+12 Years 53.400 1,881.67 1,881.67

4 Term Loan from PFC

i 8.30% to 9.26% secured against 

Punjab Govt. Guarantee & Default 

Escrow

10.10.2016 2027-28 53.801 7,142.86 7,142.86

ii 8.30% to 9.26% p.a. secured against 

Mortgage of Assets & Default 

Escrow

28.03.2018 06/2026 53.801 9,911.40 9,911.40

Total 17,054.26 17,054.26
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5 Term Loan from Bank of India

i 1 Year MCLR + 0.85% secured 

against Punjab Govt. Guarantee & 

Default Escrow

30.12.2015 12/2023 53.510 2,022.18 3,125.00

ii MCLR + 0.85% secured against 

Punjab Govt. Guarantee & Default 

Escrow

30.12.2014 12/2022 53.510 - 926.80

Total 2,022.18 4,051.80
6 Term Loan from UCO Bank

i  3 Months MCLR, secured against 

Punjab Govt. Guarantee & Default 

Escrow

09.03.2021 03/2026 53.509 6,250.00 6,250.00

7 Term Loan from IREDA

i Repo rate + 330 BPS secured 

against  Mortgage of Assets & 

Default Escrow

26.03.2021 02/2024 53.812 11,000.00 12,000.00

Total Secured Borrowings (A) 71,192.64 74,692.92
B Unsecured

1 Term Loan from PSPCL

i  Interest free (11KV VCB ) 31.03.2017 03/2027 53.811 94.91 94.91

Total 94.91 94.91

2 Term Loan from GPF Trust 57.120 - 2,195.49

Total Unsecured Loans (B) 94.91 2,290.40

Total current maturity of long 

term borrowings (A + B)
71,287.55 76,983.31

Note 26 : Lease Liabilities against Leasehold Assets (Current) (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.

Account 

 code

Current 

Liabilities as at 

31st March, 2023

Current 

Liabilities as at 

31st March, 2022

52.601 76.42 76.42

76.42 76.42

Note 27 : Trade Payables (Current) (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.

As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

1 - -

2 - -

- -

 Total outstanding dues of Small Enterprises and Micro enterprises 

 Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than small enterprises and micro 

enterprises 

Total

Particulars

Lease Liabilities - for Right-of-use (ROU) - Land

Total

Current maturity of lease liabilities

Particulars

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Date of 

Availment 

of Loan

Date of 

Maturity of 

Loan

Account 

 Code

Current 

Liabilities as at 

31st March, 2023

Current 

Liabilities as at 

31st March, 2022
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(Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account Code

As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

A Others

1 Creditors for Capital supplies/works 42 3,738.10 2,417.52

2 Creditors for O&M supplies/works 43 72.03 184.56

3 Staff related liabilities - other than statutory dues 44.2 & 3 and 

balance heads of 

44.4
1,371.47 1,487.23

4 Deposit & retention money from suppliers & contractors* 46.1 2,177.20 2,210.27

5 Creditors for expenses 46.4, 46.5 3,039.52 3,112.82

6 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - REC, 

Comm. Banks, PFC etc.

Balance 46.7 and 

51.212
1,012.90 872.98

7 Interest accrued but not due on Lease Liabilities - Land 46.751 27.60 27.41

8 Payables to PSPCL 46.946 to 46.952, 

46.957 to 46.958
21,457.50 266.24

9 Miscellaneous Liabilities 46.910, 46.922 & 

46.926 
1,927.33 1,859.26

Total Others Current Financial Liabilities (A) 34,823.66 12,438.30
*

Note 29 : Other Current Liabilities (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account Code

As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

1 Liabilities for statutory dues - TDS, Cess, GST etc. 46.923, 46.924, 

46.953 & 46.986 

to 46.995

462.90 317.45

2 Liabilities towards payment of NPS:

i for employees on deputation/secondment from PSPCL. 57.160, 161, 165 & 

166
19.55 27.84

ii for employees recruited by PSTCL 57.170, 171, 175 & 

176
206.21 179.24

3 Liabilities towards GPF Trust 57.126 & 57.127 125.25 162.12

4 Amount payable against Statutory dues recovered from 

employees.

44.401, 403, 405, 

406, 407, 427 & 428 

103.51 134.19

Total 917.42 820.84

Note 30 : Provisions (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account Code

As at March 31, 

2023

As at March 31, 

2022

1 Provision for Gratuity 44.161 57.83 37.66

2 Provision for  Leave encashment 44.162 89.02 63.04

Total 146.85 100.70

Note 28 : Other Current Financial Liabilities

This includes permanent earnest money deposits of Rs.529 lac as at March 31, 2023 &  Rs. 581 lac as at March 31, 2022 

which is payable on demand.

Note 30.1 : As per Ind AS-19 provision towards gratuity and leave encashment in respect of the employees directly recruited

                     by the company has been made during the year as per the valuation report of Actuary. 
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Note 31 : Deferred Revenue (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Account Code
As at March 31, 

2023
As at March 31, 

2022

A Government grants received towards cost of capital 

assets - yet to be utilized

55.298

Opening Balance 1,914.18 1,298.59

Add : Received during the year 2,485.15 1,306.00

Less : Amount utilized for creation of xed assets 319.94 690.41

Closing balance                                                                  (A) 4,079.40 1,914.18

B.1 Net Capital asset against Government grants utilized 55.299

Opening Balance 2,063.49 1,468.75

Add : Amount transferred from Grant unutilized 319.94 690.41
Less : Depreciation on such assets adjusted during the 

year
115.64 95.68

Closing balance                                                               (B.1) 2,267.79 2,063.49

B.2 Net Capital assets against Consumer Contribution 55.199

Opening Balance 19,886.72 5,473.87

Added during the year 3,181.54 14,970.88

Less : Depreciation on such assets during the year 1,213.11 558.02

Closing balance                                                               (B.2) 21,855.15 19,886.72

Total (A+B.1+B.2) 28,202.33 23,864.39

Note 32 : Revenue from Operations (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Account 

 code

For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

For the year ended 

31st March, 2022

1 Transmission Charges from PSPCL 61.831 1,56,218.00 1,44,509.00

2 Transmission Charges from Open Access Customers 61.830

i)   long term open access customers    - Railways 419.49 362.36

ii)  short term open access customers  - Others 2.28 3.73

3 SLDC Charges from PSPCL 61.832 2,791.00 2,373.00

4 Operating charges from open access customers 62.810

i)   long term open access customers    - Railways 7.99 6.55

ii)  short term open access customers    - Others 3.77 2.90

Total 1,59,442.54 1,47,257.54

Note 32.1 :

During FY 2022-23, total revenue of Rs. 1590.09 crores has been recognised based on the review of FY 2022-

23 and true-up of FY 2021-22 as per tariff order issued by PSERC for FY 2023-24. This comprises of Rs.

1562.18 crores for transmission charges and Rs. 27.91 crores of SLDC charges from PSPCL.

Note 33 : Other Income
Note 33.1 : Other source of Revenue (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Account 

 code

For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

For the year ended 

31st March, 2022

1 Income from O&M of bays of PGCIL 62.974 367.28 354.88

Total 367.28 354.88
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Note 33.2 : Other income (except Other source of revenue) (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Account 

 code

For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

For the year ended 

31st March, 2022

1 Interest on Bank deposits 62.280 4.12 3.41
2 Income from sale of scrap 62.3 300.50 446.09
3 Gain on 

-sale of land - compensation 62.4 -

                   

3.04
-sale of other xed assets 62.4 533.90

                   

1,600.34

               

4 Income from staff welfare activities 62.6 1.72 0.89

5 Rental for staff quarters 62.901 64.61 45.11

6 Penalty imposed on suppliers/contractors 62.920 888.83

                   

347.82

                  

7 NOC charges from Open access customers 62.922 12.90 8.05

8 Credit balances written back :

          - Sundry creditors 62.912 8.27 37.28
          - Security deposits/EMD 62.930 5.63

9 Departmental charges on contribution/deposit works 62.908, 

62.909
419.17                   425.80                   

10 Oil Testing fees 62.930 49.89

                     
48.70

                    11 Salary deposit - short period notice of 

resignation/retirement/Surety bonds

62.930 35.24

                     

13.27

                    12 Lease Rental ber optic - PGCIL 62.930 34.81 22.51
13 Work appraisal fee 62.930 17.00

                     

12.25

                    

14 Sale of trees 62.930 -

                   

76.81

                    

15 Late/Delayed Payment Surcharge - PSPCL 62.932 310.31 190.98
16 Rebate on early payment to NRLDC 62.973 18.74 13.76
17 Miscellaneous Income * Bal 62 94.20

                     

56.29

                    

Total (A) 2,799.85

                

3,352.40

               

18 Interest received on refund of Income tax 62.211 244.12

                   

287.06
19 Provision withdrawn on unserviceable/obsolete 

items, losses under investigation & doubtful dues.

65.8 83.56

                     

0.84

20 Reversal of excess provision of impairment loss 62.4 -

                   

174.40

Total (B) 327.69 462.29

Total (A + B) 3,127.54 3,814.69
Grand Total Note 33 (Note 33.1 + Note 33.2 ) 3,494.82 4,169.57

* Miscellaneous Income includes Deposit Forfeited - 38.94 lac, Recovery from contractor for use of PSTCL

material 25.15 lac Guest Houses receipts - 1.22 lac, Fees received for deciding appeals - 8.24 lac, Usage of

ERS tower rent-12 lac, Lease Land - 6.77 lac, Handling/supervision charges @ 10 %- 2.80 lac, Recovery

made against the Audit Report from vendors- 1.20 lac, Recovery from contractor/supplier/employees-

1.63 lac, Departmental Exam fees- 1.36 lac, Refund of amount already considered as income- (-)10.28 lac

etc.
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Note 34 : Employee benets expense (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Account 

code

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2023

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2022

Salaries & Wages

1 Salaries 75.1 except 

75.190
17,152.82 10,327.97

2 Expenses for engagement of manpower through 

outsourcing agencies

75.190 2,995.02 2,868.68

3 Overtime 75.2 339.15 323.67

4 Dearness Allowance 75.3 4,313.04 7,552.29

5 Other Allowances 75.4 2,202.18 1,808.89

Total (A) 27,002.22 22,881.50

6 Medical expenses reimbursement 75.611,75.641-655 153.05 98.11

7 Leave Travel Assistance/Concession 75.612, 613 & 616 139.36 162.43

Contribution to Provident and other funds

8 Employee expenses towards:

i NPS, CPF, PF, LWF 75.810, 815, 820, 

830, 825, 832, 835,
1,490.79 957.26

ii Miscellaneous - P.F inspection fees, solatium, 

Memento etc.

75.850, 851, 870, 

871, 872
30.05 18.83

Total (B) 1,813.24 1,236.64

9 Staff Welfare Expenses

i Electricity concession to employees 75.761 91.30 110.01

ii Staff Welfare Expenses Bal. 75.7 17.85 17.94

Total (C) 109.15 127.95

10 Terminal Benets

i Share of Pension, Gratuity & Medical Bal. 75.8 49,018.67 31,559.92

ii Share of Leave Encashment 75.617 & 618 2,336.58 1,901.50

Total share @ 11.36% as per transfer scheme  (D) 51,355.25 33,461.42

11 Provision for gratuity and leave encashment for 

employees recruited by PSTCL

75.881 1,210.03 994.10

Total (E) 1,210.03 994.10

Grand Total (A+B+C+D+E) 81,489.89 58,701.62

12 Less: Employee costs relating to construction 

capitalized

Bal. 75.9 3,380.21 3,091.58

Total 75.9 3,380.21 3,091.58

Net Total 78,109.68 55,610.04

Note 34.1 : Details of provision for Gratuity and leave encashment (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Account 

code

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2023

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2022

1 Amount debited (as per Trial Balance) 75.881 1,325.06 1,132.09

2 Transferred to OCI as income (Note No. 42) (115.04) (137.98)

Balance at the end of the year 1,210.03 994.10
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Note 34.2 : Detail of Terminal benets-Gratuity (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 
No. Particulars

Account 
code

For the year ended 31st 
March, 2023

For the year ended 31st 
March, 2022

i Share of Pension, Gratuity, Medical @ 11.36% (as 

per Trial balance)

Bal 75.8, 

75.617 

75.618 & 83.5

49,018.67 31,558.19

ii Prior period adjustment of above share 83.5 - 1.73

Closing balance 49,018.67 31,559.92

Note 34.3 : Detail of Terminal benets-Leave encashment (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
Account 

code
For the year ended 31st 

March, 2023
For the year ended 31st 

March, 2022

i Share of Leave encashment @ 11.36% (as per 

Trial balance)

75.617,75.618 

 & 83.5

2,336.58 2,160.93

ii Prior period adjustment of above share 83.5 -

                                             

(259.43)

Closing balance 2,336.58

                               

1,901.50

Note 34.4 : Detail of Electricity concession  to employees (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
Account 

code
For the year ended 31st 

March, 2023
For the year ended 31st 

March, 2022

i Share of Electricity concession  to employees (as 

per Trial balance)

75.761 & 83.5 91.30

                                    

108.88

ii Prior period adjustment of above share 83.5 - 1.12

Closing balance 91.30                                    110.01

Note 34.5 : Employee benets expenses - Electricity Concession to PSTCL Employees working on deputation from PSPCL

Note 34.6 : Employee benets expenses - Terminal benets

The employees on deputation from PSPCL are entitled to electricity concession under the provisions of the Transfer

Scheme, 2010. As agreed with PSPCL, the total concession availed by the employees of both PSPCL and PSTCL have

been apportioned between the two companies in the ratio of average number of employees during the period under

report. This includes Rs. 0.13 lac difference of share of FY 2021-22 between accounted for and nal share intimated

by PSPCL after the nalization of accounts of PSTCL. The share of PSTCL of FY 2022-23 is Rs. 91.17 lac have been

accounted for on tentative basis as intimated by PSPCL due to non freezing of their accounts.

Pursuant to the Punjab Power Sector Reforms Transfer (First Amendment) Scheme 2012, the Terminal Benet Trust

in respect of pension, gratuity and leave encashment shall be progressively funded by Powercom and Transco

respectively, in the ratio of 88.64 : 11.36, over a period of 15 nancial years commencing from 1st April, 2014. PSERC 

is not allowing progressive funding to PSTCL on the ground that the tariff regulations of PSERC provides for

payment of terminal liabilities on the principle of "Pay as you go" basis. Therefore, the amount of Rs. 50254.68 lacs

(tentative) being 11.36% of total amount as intimated by PSPCL has been taken into account being the amount paid

during the year. It also includes Rs. 1100.57 lacs difference of share of FY 2021-22 between accounted for and nal

share intimated by PSPCL after the nalization of accounts of PSTCL. No provision has been made on account of

PSTCL share for progressive funding as per Punjab Power Sector Reforms Transfer (First Amendment) Scheme

2012.  The share of PSTCL based on Actuarial valuation is yet to be nalized by PSPCL.

Note 34.7 - Ind AS-19 is not applicable in respect of employees working in PSTCL on deputation/secondment from PSPCL.
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Note 35 : Finance Costs (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Account 

code

For the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2023

For the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2022

Interest on Loans from :

1 Rural Electrication Corporation 78.531 20,456.82 20,489.95

2 NABARD 78.541 1,350.73 1,560.05

3 IREDA 78.542 1,513.43 2,063.16

4 Commercial Banks 78.551 3,082.51 3,983.53

5 PFC 78.582 7,441.27 7,801.08

6 Short Term borrowings 78.700 2,573.06 1,777.43

7 GPF Trust 78.852 97.24 240.00

Total (A) 36,515.05 37,915.20

Other interest & nance charges:

8 Interest on Lease liabilities 78.859 82.21 81.45

9 Guarantee charges 78.884 - 170.00

10 Miscellaneous interest/nance charges Bal. 78 27.99 13.86

Total (B) 110.20 265.31

Total (A+B) 36,625.25 38,180.51

11
Less : Interest on borrowings against CAPEX 

capitalized
78.9 1,916.66 1,170.39

Net Total 34,708.60 37,010.12

Note 36 : Depreciation, Amortization & Impairment Expenses (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Account 

Code

For the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2023

For the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2022

Depreciation on :

1 Amortization/Depreciation of Right-of-use (ROU) 

Assets - Land

77.110 33.09 33.09

2 Buildings 77.120 727.58 701.22

3 Civil Works 77.140 40.62 29.81

4 Plant & Machinery 77.150 16,440.22 15,371.89

5 Lines & Cables 77.160 15,513.10 14,983.69

6 Vehicles 77.170 - 173 115.26 52.48

7 Furniture & Fixtures 77.180 25.03 24.79

8 Ofce Equipment 77.190 22.72 24.38

9 Amortization of intangible assets 79.710 2.72 2.23

Total 32,920.35 31,223.57

10 Less : (i)   Depreciation on assets used for construction 

                  capitalized

77.900 131.52 120.80

           (ii) Depreciation on xed assets created through

                  contribution work.

77.910 1,213.11 558.02

           (iii) Depreciation on xed assets created through

                  Govt. grant.

77.920 115.64 95.68

Net Total 31,460.08 30,449.07

Note 35.1: The Company is regular in making the payment of Principal and Interest thereon to the Banks,

Financial Institutions & other lenders and has not defaulted debt servicing during the year.



137

th13  Annual Report 2022-23 PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED

Note 37 : Repairs & Maintenance (Amount in Rupees)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars

Account 

code

For the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2023

For the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2022

1 Plant and Machinery

- On bays maintained by PGCIL 74.141 168.32 162.60

- Others Bal. 74.1 2,606.47 2,306.84

2 Buildings 74.2 346.51 383.48

3 Civil Works 74.3 98.63 103.53

4 Lines and Cable net works 74.5 400.95 377.40

5 Vehicles 74.6 32.16 32.01

6 Furniture and Fixtures 74.7 1.06 1.03

7 Ofce Equipment 74.8 4.24 3.21

Total 3,658.33 3,370.12
8 Less: R&M expenses for assets used in construction 

capitalized

74.9 85.46 191.51

Net Total 3,572.87 3,178.61

Note 38 : Administration & General Expenses (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account code

For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

For the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2022

1 Rent, Rates & Taxes 76.101 & 102 82.77 83.17

2 Insurance 76.104 4.39 3.65

3 Telephone & Postage 76.112 to 76.116 31.53 34.82

4 Legal Charges 76.121 34.95 9.65

5 Audit Fees 76.122 5.16 5.48

6 Consultancy/Technical Charges 76.123 & 76.124 5.09 9.76

7 Conveyance & Travel Charges 76.131-143 755.94 792.75

8 Fees & Subscription 76.129 & 76.151 57.05 51.85

9 Books & Periodicals 76.152 0.29 0.31

10 Printing & Stationery 76.153 31.06 20.76

11 Advertisement/Publicity expenses 76.155 & 76.183 1.99 8.39

12 Electricity/Water Charges 76.158 & 76.160 1,488.00 1,325.50

13 Expenses on Training 76.167 49.73 -

14 Hospitality 76.171, 181 & 189 11.74 10.22

15 Miscellaneous Expenses 76.190 195.97 212.74

16 Other expenses Bal. 76.1 26.81 27.80

17 Material related expenses 76.2 381.11 384.03

Total 3,163.58 2,980.89
18 Less: A&G expenses for assets used in 

construction capitalized

76.9 403.87 429.04

Net Total 2,759.71 2,551.85
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(Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.

For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

For the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2022

As an Auditor

i Tax Audit Fee 0.66 0.66

ii Statutory Audit Fees 3.50 3.50

Note 39 : ULDC Charges (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars Account Code

For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

For the year 

ended 31st 

March, 2022

1 ULDC Charges - SLDC own share 70.501 568.19 360.18

2 ULDC Charges - BBMB share 70.502 212.12 121.45

3 NRLDC fees and charges 70.504 471.98 406.40

Total 1,252.29 888.03

Particulars

Note 38.1 : Administration & General Expenses - Details of remuneration to Statutory Auditors (excluding 

G.S.T.)

Note 40 : Other Expenses/Debits (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.

Particulars Account 

Code

For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

For the year ended 

31st March, 2022

1 Bad debts written off 79.430 - 67.75

2 Provision for value of obsolete stores 79.471 296.37 4.54

3 Provision for doubtful dues from 

employees/suppliers

79.482 316.24 -

4 Provision for losses under investigation 79.483 2.72 15.93

5 Infructuous capital exp. written off 79.533 - 1.26

6 Sundry debits written off 79.571 122.93 1.99

Total 738.26 91.46

Note 41 : CSR activities (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.

Particulars Account 

code

For the year ended 

31st March, 2023

For the year ended 

31st March, 2022

1 Expenditure incurred for CSR activities 76.302 131.15 -

Total 131.15 -

Note 42: Other Comprehensive Income (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.

Particulars Account 

code

 For the year ended 

31st March, 2023 

 For the year ended 

31st March, 2022 

1 Items that will not be reclassied to Prot or Loss

-Remeasurement of Actuarial 75.881 (115.04) (137.98)
Total (115.04) (137.98)
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43 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets"
(a) Provisions

(Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Particulars GH

Opening 

balance as at 

April 1, 2022

Additions/ 

Transfers 

during the year

Utilization 

during the year

Written-back 

during the year

Closing 
balance as at 

March 31, 

2023

i Provision for Leave Encashment 44.162          2,565.04               810.36                    0.48                          -        3,374.91 

ii Provision for Gratuity 44.161          1,633.11               514.70                  14.46                          -        2,133.35 

iii Provision for obsolete items (O&M) 22.902                 3.94                         -                          -                    3.93               0.00 

iv Provision for obsolete items (Capital) 22.905                 0.95               296.37                          -                          -           297.32 

v Provision for losses under investigation & stock

shortage

28.951, 

 65.8
            171.98               318.96                  78.24           412.70 

vi Provision for doubtful dues from consumers 23.9                 3.92                         -                          -                    1.39               2.53 

Total          4,378.93            1,940.39                  14.94                  83.56        6,220.82 

(b)  Contingent Liabilities:
(Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

                   1.00                    1.00 

                                     - Others                  18.10                  22.21 

Arbitration cases *                133.47                115.59 

                    -                          -      

            3,816.93             3,816.93 

GST matters*** (Service Tax related contingent liability)                150.00                150.00 

Other Contingent Liabilities ****                320.32                161.12 

            4,439.82             4,266.86 

*

**

***

****

(c) i

ii

44 Capital Commitments

Particulars

Pending court cases - land acquisition for setting up transmission lines/Sub stations

Estimated amount of contracts  remaining to be executed on capital account is Rs. 538.92 Crores on March 31, 2023  and  Rs. 554.37 Crores on 

March 31, 2022.

Service Matter cases

Entry tax** /Sales tax

Total

Contingent Assets: Corporation is in possession of Bank Guarantee from supplier/contractors etc. for successful completion of the

contract/warranty period amounting to Rs. 5954.24 lacs as on 31.03.2023 and Rs. 6066.36 lacs as on 31.03.2022.

Corporation has claimed Rs. 52.96 lacs as rent (+ GST as per applicable rate) w.e.f. 20.05.2004 to 31.03.2023 from Punjab Police for occupation of

the premises of the company at Tarntaran sub station and Rs. 62.94 lacs as rent (+ GST as per applicable rate) w.e.f. 09/1997 to 03/2023 from

Punjab Police for occupation of the premises of the company at Verpal sub station for which correspondence is in process.

Bills received from PGCIL - an appeal against CERC order dated 21.11.2019 in petition no. 158/TT/2018 has been led by PSTCL before APTEL,

New Delhi. The appeal was disposed off vide APTEL order dated 15.09.2022 in favour of PSTCL setting aside the liability put on PSTCL to pay for

the transmission chargers. PGCIL led new appeal no. D.1948 of 2023 before supreme court. Case is under consideration by Supreme Court of

India.

An objection petition under section 34 of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 has been led on 30.05.2022 against the award dated 18.01.2022

passed by District Level MSEFC, Jalandhar to set aside the award.

Contingent liability of Entry tax/Sales tax is disputed tax liability levied by Govt. of Punjab, Department of Excise & Taxation and subsequently

exempted vide notication dated October 4, 2013. This amount of Entry tax which relates to period prior for exemption notication has not

deposited by corporation. The matter is pending with Punjab and Haryana High Court.

A show cause notice has been issued on 26.05.2020 by the ofce of Directorate General of GST Intelligence, Ludhiana for payment of service tax of

Rs. 1.50 crore on the guarantee fee paid in March 2017 on reverse charge basis and its related dues i.e. interest under section 75 @ 15% p.a. from

April 2017 to date and penalty under section 77(2) and 78(1) of Finance Act, 1995. Competent Authority has decided to contest the liability.
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45 Fair value of nancial assets and nancial liabilities measured at amortized cost (Rupees in Lacs)

Carrying Amount Fair value Carrying Amount Fair value

Financial Assets:

Non-current:

Amount recoverable

from staff *
                               -                                -   0.40 0.40

Other receivables *                        158.07                      158.07 302.98 302.98
Current :

Sundry debtors                   51,800.86                 51,800.86 39,304.13 39,304.13

Cash and cash

equivalents
                       474.28                      474.28 1,835.87 1,835.87

Bank Balance other

than cash & cash

equivalents

                         82.68                        82.68 84.26 84.26

Advances to Suppliers/

Contractors (O&M)
                           0.03                          0.03 0.03 0.03

Interest accrued on

xed deposits
                           0.85                          0.85 1.05 1.05

Amount recoverable

from employees
                         39.94                        39.94 89.23 89.23

Receivables from

PGCIL,PSPCL
                       135.25                      135.25 48.91 48.91

Income accrued and

due - Interest on refund

of Income Tax, Meter

Security

                               -                                -   0.01 0.01

Amount recoverable

from Suppliers
                           7.22                          7.22 96.12 96.12

Total Financial Assets                   52,699.17                 52,699.17               41,763.00               41,763.00 
Financial Liabilities:

Non-current:

Long term borrowings                 3,05,812.80               3,05,728.56             3,24,752.26             3,24,446.66 

Lease Liabilities - for

Right-of-use (ROU) -

Land

                       720.93                      720.93                    715.34                    715.34 

Current:

Borrowings                   36,548.35                 36,548.35               35,639.05               35,639.05 

Lease Liabilities - for

Right-of-use (ROU) -

Land

                         76.42                        76.42                      76.42                      76.42 

Creditors for Capital

supplies/works
                    3,738.10                   3,738.10                 2,417.52                 2,417.52 

Creditors for O&M

supplies/works
                         72.03                        72.03                    184.56                    184.56 

Deposit & retention

money from suppliers

& contractors

                    2,177.20                   2,177.20                 2,210.27                 2,210.27 

Creditors for expenses                     3,039.52                   3,039.52                 3,112.82                 3,112.82 

ICT- Payables to PSPCL                   21,457.50                 21,457.50                    266.24                    266.24 

Current maturity of

long term loans
                  71,287.55                 71,287.55               76,983.31               76,983.31 

Interest accrued but not

due on borrowings -

REC, Comm. Banks,

PFC etc.

                    1,012.90                   1,012.90                    872.98                    872.98 

Interest accrued but not

due on Lease Liabilities

- Land

                         27.60                        27.60                      27.41                      27.41 

Miscellaneous liabilities                     1,927.33                   1,927.33                 1,859.26                 1,859.26 

Staff related liabilities                     1,371.47                   1,371.47                 1,487.23                 1,487.23 

Total                 4,49,269.71               4,49,185.46             4,50,604.69             4,50,299.09 

45.1

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

*As no recovery period/ schedule is dened for these recoveries, So no discounting has been done in respect of

amount recoverable from staff and other receivables reected under non current nancial assets.

(i) The carrying amount of current nancial instruments such as trade receivables, other assets, cash and cash

equivalents and other liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature. 

(ii) The carrying amount of non-current nancial liabilities i.e. long term borrowings except loan from PSPCL (11KV-

VCB) which is interest free, are nanced at competitive interest rate. Hence carrying value are considered to be the

same as their fair values.

(iii) Please refer Note 19.2 for discounting of PSPCL (11KV - VCB) loan.
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46 Disclosures in respect of Ind AS 107 - Financial Instruments

Financial Instruments by Categories
(a) The carrying value and fair value of nancial instruments by categories for the year ended 31.03.2023.

Financial Assets:

Non-current:

Amount recoverable

from staff

- - - - -

Other receivables 158.07 - - 158.07 158.07

Current :

Sundry debtors 51,800.86 - - 51,800.86 51,800.86

Cash and cash

equivalents
474.28 - - 474.28 474.28

Bank Balance other
than cash & cash
equivalents

82.68 82.68 82.68

Advances to Suppliers/

Contractors (O&M)
0.03 - - 0.03 0.03

Interest accrued on

xed deposits
0.85 0.85

                     

0.85

Amount recoverable

from employees
39.94 -

                    

-

                  

39.94

                   

39.94

Receivables from

PGCIL,PSPCL
135.25 -

                    

-

                  

135.25

                 

135.25

Income accrued and

due - Interest on refund

of Income Tax, Meter

Security

- -

                    

-

                  

-

                 

-

Amount recoverable

from Suppliers
7.22 -

                    

-

                  

7.22

                     

7.22

Total 52,699.17 -                    -                  52,699.17 52,699.17

Financial Liabilities:

Non-current:

Long term borrowings 3,05,812.80 -

                    

-

                  

3,05,812.80 3,05,728.56
Lease Liabilities - for

Right-of-use (ROU) -

Land

720.93 -

                    

-

                  

720.93 720.93

Current:

Borrowings 36,548.35 -

                    

-

                  

36,548.35 36,548.35

Lease Liabilities - for

Right-of-use (ROU) -

Land

76.42 76.42 76.42

Creditors for Capital

supplies/works
3,738.10 - - 3,738.10 3,738.10

Creditors for O&M

supplies/works
72.03 - - 72.03 72.03

Deposit & retention

money from suppliers

& contractors

2,177.20 - - 2,177.20 2,177.20

Creditors for expenses 3,039.52 - - 3,039.52 3,039.52

ICT- Payables to PSPCL 21,457.50 - - 21,457.50 21,457.50

Current maturity of

long term loans
71,287.55 - - 71,287.55 71,287.55

Interest accrued but not

due on borrowings -

REC, Comm. Banks,

PFC etc.

1,012.90 - - 1,012.90 1,012.90

Interest accrued but not

due on Lease Liabilities

- Land

27.60 - - 27.60 27.60

Miscellaneous liabilities 1,927.33 - - 1,927.33 1,927.33

Staff related liabilities 1,371.47 - - 1,371.47 1,371.47

Total 4,49,269.71 - - 4,49,269.71 4,49,185.46

Financial assets/ 

liabilities at FVTPL

as at March 31, 2023

Financial assets/ 

liabilities at fair 

value through OCI

as at March 31, 2023

(Rupees in Lacs)

Amortized cost

as at March 31, 2023

Total fair value

as at March 31, 2023

Total carrying value as 

at March 31, 2023

Particulars
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(b) The carrying value and fair value of nancial instruments by categories for the year ended 31.03.2022 (Rupees in Lacs)

Financial Assets:

Non-current:

Amount recoverable

from staff 
0.40 - - 0.40 0.40

Other receivables 302.98 - - 302.98 302.98

Current :

Sundry debtors 39,304.13 - - 39,304.13 39,304.13

Cash and cash

equivalents
1,835.87 - - 1,835.87 1,835.87

Bank Balance other

than cash & cash

equivalents

84.26 84.26 84.26

Advances to Suppliers/

Contractors (O&M)
0.03 - - 0.03 0.03

Interest accrued on

xed deposits
1.05 - - 1.05 1.05

Amount recoverable

from employees
89.23 - - 89.23 89.23

Receivables from PGCIL 48.91 - - 48.91 48.91

Income accrued and

due - Interest on refund

of Income Tax, Meter

Security

0.01 - - 0.01 0.01

Amount recoverable

from Suppliers
96.12 - - 96.12 96.12

Total 41,763.00 - - 41,763.00 41,763.00

Financial Liabilities:

Non-current:

Long term borrowings 3,24,752.26 - - 3,24,752.26 3,24,446.66
Lease Liabilities - for

Right-of-use (ROU) -

Land

715.34 - - 715.34 715.34

Current:

Borrowings 35,639.05 - - 35,639.05 35,639.05
Lease Liabilities - for

Right-of-use (ROU) -

Land

76.42 - - 76.42 76.42

Creditors for Capital

supplies/works
2,417.52

                   

- - 2,417.52 2,417.52

Creditors for O&M

supplies/works
184.56

                      

- - 184.56 184.56

Deposit & retention

money from suppliers

& contractors

2,210.27

                   

- - 2,210.27 2,210.27

Creditors for expenses 3,112.82

                   

- - 3,112.82 3,112.82
ICT- Payables to PSPCL 266.24

                      

- - 266.24 266.24

Current maturity of

long term loans
76,983.31

                 

- - 76,983.31 76,983.31

Interest accrued but not

due on borrowings -

REC, Comm. Banks,

PFC etc.

872.98

                      

- - 872.98 872.98

Interest accrued but not

due on Lease liabilities -

 Land

27.41

                        

- - 27.41 27.41

Miscellaneous liabilities 1,859.26

                   

- - 1,859.26 1,859.26

Staff related liabilities 1,487.23

                   
- - 1,487.23 1,487.23

Total 4,50,604.69

               
- - 4,50,604.69 4,50,299.09

Amortized cost

as at March 31, 2022 

(Restated)

Total fair value

as at March 31, 2022 

(Restated)

Financial 

assets/liabilities at 

fair value through 

OCI

as at March 31, 2022

Particulars Financial assets/ 

liabilities at FVTPL

as at March 31, 2022

Total carrying value

as at March 31, 2022 

(Restated)
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47 Fair Value Hierarchy
●

●

●

The following table present fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value (Rupees in Lacs)

48 Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

Risk Measurement

Market risk- Interest 

rate

Sensitivity analysis 

Credit risk Ageing analysis 

Credit rating

Liquidity risk Rolling cash ow 

forecasts

a) Market Risk

Interest rate risk

(Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

3,73,102.88 1,51,921.50

13,617.82 1,87,420.99

3,86,720.70 3,39,342.49
Sensitivity

(Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

(1,890.01) (2,002.60)

1,890.01 2,002.60

Level 2 - Level 2 hierarchy includes nancial instruments measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes nancial instruments measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets.

Level 3 295.40

DCF
Total

-

-

295.40

168.95

Level 2

Level 1 -

-

Level 3 - Level 3 hierarchy includes nancial instruments measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs).

Financial Liabilities at fair Value : Loan from PSPCL (11KV_VCB)*

Particulars March 31, 2022March 31, 2023

Borrowings and other liabilities

Exposure arising from Remarks

Valuation Technique and key inputs

Long term borrowings at variable rate of 

interest 

The exposure of company's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of reporting period are as follows:

Maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalent

Fixed rate borrowings

168.95

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of nancial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is to foresee 

the unpredictability of nancial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its nancial performance. 

Signicant unobservable inputs

* Interest free loan received from PSPCL. Loan is shown at its fair value and remaining amount appeared in Deferred Income under non current liabilities using 

(DCF) Valuation technique and key inputs.

Interest rate of similar loan (i.e. 10.85%)

DCF

Interest rate of similar loan (i.e. 10.85%)

The Company has not taken any measure to avoid risk 

arising from interest rate. Since company is able to 

obtain nance at competitive interest rate

Majority of receivable are from Government 

undertaking. They are unsecured but considered good.

Cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, 

nancial instruments.

The company’s main interest rate risk arise from long term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the company to cash ow interest rate risk.

Company’s borrowings are denominated in INR currency during  March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Particulars

Variable rate borrowings

Total borrowings

Impact on prot after tax
Particulars

Interest rates- increase by 50 basis Pts.

Interest rates- decrease by 50 basis Pts.

Prot or loss is sensitive to higher/lower expense from borrowings as a result of change in interest rates. The table summarizes the impact of
increase/decrease in interest rates on Prot or loss.
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b) Credit Risk

i) Trade Receivables

Credit risk exposure

An analysis of age of trade receivables at each reporting date is summarized as follows: (Rupees in Lacs)

Gross Amount Impairment Gross Amount Impairment

Not due 49,316.16 - 36,824.76 -

Past due less than six months 35.70 - 30.38 -

Past due more than six months 2,451.53 - 2,452.92 -

Total 51,803.39 - 39,308.05 -

ii) Other nancial assets

c) Liquidity Risk

Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months to 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years

 Short Term Borrowing                          26,548.35                        10,000.00                               -                                    -                 36,548.35 

 Long Term Borrowing                          38,062.16                        33,225.39                   1,94,460.06                   1,11,352.74          3,77,100.35 

 Security Deposit                               398.81                          1,778.39                               -                                    -                   2,177.20 

 Other nancial liability                                    -                             32,646.46                               -                                    -                 32,646.46 

 Total                          65,009.31                        77,650.24                   1,94,460.06                   1,11,352.74          4,48,472.35 

 Short Term Borrowing                          10,000.00                        25,639.05                               -                                    -                 35,639.05 

 Long Term Borrowing                          39,605.86                        37,377.45                   2,10,027.56                   1,14,724.70          4,01,735.58 

 Security Deposit                               631.26                          1,579.01                               -                                    -                   2,210.27 

 Other nancial liability                                    -                             10,228.03                               -                                    -                 10,228.03 

 Total                          50,237.13                        74,823.54                   2,10,027.56                   1,14,724.70          4,49,812.93 

Particulars

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of Rs. 474.28 lac March 31, 2023 and Rs. 1835.87 lac March 31, 2022. The cash and cash equivalents are

held with public sector banks and high rated private sector banks and do not have any signicant credit risk.

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

The company does not hold any collateral or other enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its nancial assets.

Trade receivables are impaired when recoverability is considered doubtful based on the recovery analysis performed by the company for individual

trade receivables. The company considers that all the above nancial assets that are not impaired and past due for each reporting dates under review

are of good credit quality except Rs. 2.53 lac for which provision for doubtful dues from consumers has already been made during the FY 2020-21.

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a nancial loss. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at

the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables and unbilled revenue. Accordingly, credit risk from trade receivables has been separately

evaluated from all other nancial assets in the following paragraphs.

The company has outstanding trade receivables amounting to Rs. 51803.35 lac (March 31, 2023) and Rs. 39309.34 lac (March 31, 2022). Trade

receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of non-derivative nancial liabilities. The amount disclosed in the table is the 

contractual undiscounted cash ows. The table includes both principal & interest cash ows.

Company assess long term liquidity requirements on a periodical basis and manage them through internal accruals.

The company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from operations.

Company manages its liquidity needs by continuously monitoring cash inows and by maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents. Net cash

requirements are compared to available cash in order to determine any shortfalls.

As at March 31, 2023

Short term liquidity requirements consists mainly of sundry creditors, expense payable, other payable arising during the normal course of business

as at each reporting date. Company maintains a sufcient balance in cash and cash equivalents to meet its short term liquidity requirements.

*The above gures are shown at their original carrying amount excluding Ind AS Adjustment

Total

(Rupees in Lacs)

 As at March 31, 2022 

49 Capital Management

Risk Management:

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

1.  Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benets to other stakeholders, and

2.  Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the Industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of following ratio:

Net Debt (Total Borrowings) divided by 

Total 'Equity' as shown in the Balance Sheet
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 The debt –equity ratio of the Company is as follows :
(Rupees in Lacs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Long term debt 3,77,016.10 4,01,429.97

Equity (including Capital Reserve) 3,15,153.52 3,05,063.83

Debt-Equity Ratio 1.20 1.32

50

51

52 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS) 116 "Leases"

 As lessee

● Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
(Rupees in Lacs)

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2023

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2022

76.42 76.42 

328.62 320.98 

1,693.66 1,777.72 

Total 2,098.70 2,175.12 

● Total discounted lease liabilities (discount rate 10.75%) at 31st March 2022
(Rupees in Lacs)

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2023

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2022

76.42 76.42 

720.93 715.34 

Total 797.35 791.76 

53 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS)-108: "Operating Segments"

53.1 Entity-Wide Disclosures-

1. Information about major customers
(Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1,59,009.00 1,46,882.00

2. Geographical Information

(Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1,59,442.54 1,47,257.54 7,61,662.98 7,48,632.17

1,59,442.54 1,47,257.54 7,61,662.98 7,48,632.17

* Non-current assets for this purpose consists of Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible assets, Assets held for sale and Capital work in progress.

3. Revenue from major products

Revenue from external customers for each product and service are as follow:-
(Rupees in Lacs)

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Punjab State Power Corporation Limited 1,59,009.00 1,46,882.00

Total 1,59,009.00 1,46,882.00

Less than one year

Non-Current

Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-23 "Borrowing Costs"

One to ve years

More than ve years

Current

The company has assessed there is no impairment of Fixed Assets being classied under major heads such as Land, Building, Plant and Machinery, Lines & 

Cables. In case of Assets not in use - Damaged/Unrepairable impairment loss of Rs. NIL lacs and Rs. (-) 174.40 lacs has recognised in March 2023 and March 2022 

respectively.

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash 

ows

The amount capitalized with Property, Plant & Equipment's as borrowing cost is  Rs. 1916.66 lac  & Rs. 1170.39 lac  for the year ended March 31, 2023 & March 

31, 2022 respectively on the basis of Weighted Average method as capitalization rate 8.69% and 9.13 % respectively, as per policy of borrowing cost as mentioned 

in signicant accounting policies.

Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-36 "Impairment of assets"

Based on the "management approach" as dened in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the performance and allocates 

resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. 

Lease liabilities included in the statement of nancial 

position at 31st March 2022

There is only one customer which contribute more than 10% of entity revenue.

India (Punjab)

Segment 1

Total

Revenue from external customers Non current Assets*

Customer Name

Punjab State Power Corporation Limited

Particulars

Revenue from external customers by location of operations and information about its non current assets* by location of assets are as follows: 
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54 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-19 "Employee Benefits"

General description of various defined employee's benefits schemes are as under:

Employees recruited by PSTCL covered under the NPS scheme. 

Gratuity  and Leave Encashment
1 Summary of membership data

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Numbers of employees 1536 1019 1536 1019
Total Monthly Salary (in lacs) 779.25 551.68 779.25 551.68 
Total Monthly Salary for leave availment (in lacs) -

 

-

                                 

779.25 551.68 
Average Past Service (Years) 5.25 6.68 5.25 6.68 
Average Age (Years) 32.82 34.22 32.82 34.22 
Average remaining working life (Years) 25.32 24.00 25.32 24.00 
Leave balance considered on valuation date -

 

-

                                 

1,83,954

                     

1,55,245
Weighted average duration of PBO 19.54 18.96 19.54 18.96 
Average accumulated leave per employees (days) -

 

-

                                 

120

                            

152.00

2 Actuarial Assumptions
a) Economic Assumptions

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Discounting Rate 7.39% 7.18% 7.39% 7.18%

Future Salary Increase 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%

b) Demographic Assumptions

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Retirement Age (Years) Class IV - 60 Yrs.

Others - 58 Yrs.

Class IV - 60 Yrs.

Others - 58 Yrs.

Class IV - 60 Yrs.

Others - 58 Yrs.

Class IV - 60 Yrs.

Others - 58 Yrs.

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability
100% of IALM 

(2012-14)

100% of IALM 

(2012-14)

100% of IALM 

(2012-14)

100% of IALM 

(2012-14)

Attrition at Ages Withdrawal Rate (%) Withdrawal Rate (%) Withdrawal Rate (%) Withdrawal Rate (%)

           Less than 50 Years 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

           Above 50 Years 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

Leave                                     -                                        -                               183,954                          155,245 

          Leave availment Rate                                     -                                        -   2.50% 2.50%

          Leave lapse rate while in service                                     -                                        -    Nil  Nil 

          Leave lapse rate on exit                                     -                                        -    Nil  Nil 

          Leave encashment rate while in service                                     -                                        -    Nil  Nil 

3 Actuarial Method:

4 Scale of Benefits

Particulars

Salary for calculation of gratuity

Vesting period

Benefits on normal retirement

Benefit on early retirement/withdrawal/resignation

Benefits on death in service

Limit

Benefits

1.   Yearly accrual

2.   Maximum accumulation

3.   Total Leave Days

4.   Availment in service (compensated absence)

5.   Leave encashment in service

6.   Leave encashment on exit

7.   Month to be treated as

8.   Lapse

5 Plan Liability (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Present value of obligation as at the end of the period
2,133.35 1,633.11 3,374.91 2,565.04

Particulars
Gratuity Leave

                                                                               -   

 450 days 

                                                                               -   

Last drawn qualifying salary

NIL

Maximum upto 300 days or Actual 

accumulation whichever is less

Same as normal retirement benefit based 

on service upto the date of death & no 

vesting conditions apply.

183,954 

Same as normal retirement benefit

 Same as normal retirement benefit 

Yes (More than 450 Days)

                                                                              -   

Same as normal retirement benefit based 

on service upto the date of exit.

                                                                               -   No

                                                                               -   

30 days

Yes

                                                                               -   22.81 days

                                                                               -   

                                                                               -   

Yes

                                                                               -   

Particulars Leave encashment

20.00 lacs

Gratuity Leave

Gratuity Leave

Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Method

As per Gratuity rules applicable to State 

Government Employees (CSR Rules)

Last drawn qualifying salary

Particulars
Gratuity

Gratuity

Leave encashment

Particulars

5 years of service
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6 Service Cost (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current Service cost 282.41 223.30 452.00 351.70

Past Service cost including curtailment Gains/Losses - - - -

Gains or Losses on Non routine settlements - - - -

Total Service Cost 282.41 223.30 452.00 351.70

7 Net Interest Cost (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 117.26 80.53 184.17 126.91

Interest income on Plan Assets - - - -

Net Interest cost (Income) 117.26 80.53 184.17 126.91

8 Change in Benefit Obligation (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the 

period

1,633.11 1,191.29 2,565.04 1,877.37

Acquisition adjustment - - - -

Interest cost 117.26 80.53 184.17 126.91

Service cost 282.41 223.30 452.00 351.70

Past service cost including curtailment Gains/Losses - - - -

Benefits Paid (14.46)

                      

- (0.48)

                          

(2.60)

                       

Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation 115.04 137.98

                       

174.19 211.66

                     

Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 2,133.35 1,633.11 3,374.91 2,565.04

9 Bifurcation of Actuarial Gain/Loss on obligation (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from change in 

Demographic Assumption

-

                               

-

                                

-

                                

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from change in 

Financial Assumption
(70.81)

                      

(117.76)

                     

(123.06)

                     

(198.73)

                   

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on arising from Experience 

Adjustment
185.85 255.74 297.25 410.39

Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation 115.04 137.98

                       

174.19 211.66

                     

10 Actuarial Gain/Loss on Plan Asset (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Expected Interest Income - - - -

Actual Income on Plan Asset - - - -

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) for the year on Asset - - - -

11 Balance Sheet and related analysis (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Present value of the obligation at end 2,133.35 1,633.11 3,374.91 2,565.04

Fair value of Plan Assets - - - -

Unfunded (Liability)/Provision in Balance Sheet (2,133.35) (1,633.11) (3,374.91) (2,565.04)

12 The amounts recognized in the income statement (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Total service cost 282.41 223.30 452.00 351.70

Net interest cost 117.26 80.53 184.17 126.91

Net actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the period - - 174.19 211.66

Expenses recognized in the income statement 399.67 303.83 810.36 690.27

13 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) 

opening
- - - -

Actuarial gain/(loss) for the year on PBO (115.04) (137.98) - -

Actuarial gain/(loss) for the year on Asset - - - -

Unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) at the end of 
the year

(115.04) (137.98) - -

Particulars
Gratuity Leave

Particulars
Gratuity Leave

Gratuity

Particulars
Leave

Leave

LeaveGratuity

Particulars

Gratuity

Particulars

Particulars
Gratuity Leave

Particulars
Gratuity Leave

Particulars
Gratuity Leave
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14 Change in Plan Assets (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period
-

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

Actual return on plan assets -

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

Employer contribution -

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

Benefits paid -

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period -

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

15 Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets) (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Government of India Securities -

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

State Government Securities -

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

High Quality Corporate Bonds -

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

Equity Shares of Listed Companies -

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

Property -

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

Funds managed by Insurer -

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

Bank Balance -

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

Total -

                                  

-

                                   

-

                                  

-

16 Change in Net Defined Benefit Obligation (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the 

period

1,633.11 1,191.29 2,565.04 1,877.37

Acquisition adjustment -

                               

-

                                 

-

                                

-

Total Service cost 282.41 223.30 452.00 351.70

Net Interest cost (income) 117.26 80.53 184.17 126.91

Re - measurements 115.04 137.98

                       

174.19 211.66

Contribution paid to the Fund -

                               

-

                                 

-

                                

-

Benefit paid directly by the enterprise (14.46)

                      

-

                                 

(0.48)

                         

(2.60)

Net defined benefit liability at the end of the period 2,133.35 1,633.11 3,374.91 2,565.04

17 Bifurcation of PBO at the end of the year in current and non-current (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current liability (Amount due within one year) 57.83 37.66 89.02 63.04

Non current liability (Amount due over one year) 2,075.52 1,595.44 3,285.89 2,502.00

Total PBO at the end of the year 2,133.35 1,633.11 3,374.91 2,565.04

18 Expected contribution for the next Annual reporting period (Rupees in Lacs)

Particulars

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Service cost 330.53 248.41 517.19 378.26

Net interest cost 157.65 117.26 249.41 184.17
Expected expenses for the next annual reporting 

period
488.18 365.66 766.60 562.43

19 Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefits obligation (Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

a) Impact of the Change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the period 2,133.35 1,633.11 3,374.91 2,565.04

      (i)     Impact due to increase of 1% (319.94) (254.65) (650.35) (495.17)

      (ii)    Impact due to decrease of 1% 354.21 282.94 497.52 409.13

b) Impact of the Change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the period 2,133.35 1,633.11 3,374.91 2,565.04

      (i)     Impact due to increase of 1% 303.41 263.42 502.86 412.36

      (ii)    Impact due to decrease of 1% (300.16) (252.42) (659.55) (501.58)

Particulars
Gratuity Leave

Particulars
Gratuity Leave

Particulars
Gratuity

Leave

Gratuity

Leave

Gratuity

Leave

Particulars
Gratuity Leave

Particulars



55 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard 24 "Related Parties Disclosures"

a. List of CMD/Directors/key managerial personnel

Name

Sh. A. Venu Prasad, IAS 01.04.2022 31.03.2023

Sh. K A P Sinha, IAS 01.04.2022 05.07.2022

Sh. Ajoy Sharma, IAS 11.07.2022 18.07.2022

Sh. Ajoy Kumar Sinha, IAS 18.07.2022 31.03.2023

Sh. Dilip Kumar, IAS 01.04.2022 16.04.2022

Sh. Tejveer Singh, IAS 16.04.2022 31.03.2023

Smt. Raji Pramod Shrivastava, IAS 01.04.2022 03.11.2022

Ms. Isha, IAS 03.11.2022 31.03.2023

Sh. Vinod Kumar Bansal 01.04.2022 31.03.2023

Er. Yogesh Tandon 01.04.2022 03.01.2023

Er. Vardeep Singh Mander 01.02.2023 31.03.2023

Sh. Karanvir Singh Dhillon 01.04.2022 04.05.2022

Sh. Angad Kumar Aggarwal 01.04.2022 10.09.2022

Er. Anil Kaplush 01.04.2022 31.03.2023

Sh. Suresh Kumar Arora 06.10.2022 31.03.2023

Sh. Parveen Kumar Singla 01.04.2022 12.08.2022

Sh. Sudhir Kumar 25.08.2022 31.03.2023

Sh. Sahil Pandey 01.04.2022 31.03.2023

Designation Period

CMD, PSTCL

Director (Principal Secretary, Govt. 

of Punjab, Dept of Finance)

Director (Secretary, Govt. of Punjab, 

Dept. of Finance)

Director (Principal Secretary, Govt. 

of Punjab, Dept. of Power)

Woman Director

Director (Principal Secretary, Govt. 

of Punjab, Dept. of Finance)

Director (Principal Secretary, Govt. 

of Punjab, Dept. of Power)

Woman Director

Director/F&C

Director/Technical

Director/Technical

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Director/Administration

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Chief Financial Officer
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i) Basic EPS

(Rupees in Lacs)

For the year ended 
31st March, 2023

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

10,204.73 21,647.93 

10,204.73 21,647.93 

60,58,83,465               60,58,83,465 

1.68 3.57 

ii) Diluted EPS

(Rupees in Lacs)

For the year ended 
31st March, 2023

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022

10,204.73 21,647.93 

10,204.73 21,647.93 

10,204.728 21,647.930 

60,58,83,465               60,58,83,465 

               60,58,83,465                60,58,83,465 

1.68 3.57 

57 Assets hypothecated as security

The carrying amount of assets hypothecated as security and assets charged by way of Equitable mortgage 
for current & non current borrowings are:    (Rupees in Lacs)

For the year ended 
31st March, 2023

For the year ended 
31st March, 2022 

53,364.94 40,615.17 

- -

53,364.94 40,615.17 

3,08,944.54

84,921.00

2,81,180.89 

58,447.50

3,93,865.54 3,39,628.39

Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-33 "Earnings Per Share(EPS)"

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the 

entity by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Particulars

Profit (loss) for the year, attributable to the owners of the 
company

Earnings used in calculation of basic earnings per share    (A)

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of 

basic earnings per share                                                                (B)
Basic EPS (A/B) (`

`

)

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the entity (after 

adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity 

shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be 

issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

Particulars

Profit (loss) for the year, attributable to the owners of the 
company

Earnings used in calculation of basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to equity holders of the owner adjusted for 

the effect of dilution                                                                  (A)

Weighted average number of Equity shares for the purpose of 
basic earnings per share

Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect 

of dilution                                                                           (B)

Total Current assets 

Non Current

Hypothecation 

Charged by way of Equitable mortage

Total Non Current assets

Diluted EPS (A/B)(   )

Particulars

Current
Financial Assets

First Charge (Hypothecation)

Non-Financial Assets

Hypothecation 
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58

Sr. No. Numerator Denominator

For the year 

ended 

March 31, 

2023

For the year 

ended 

March 31, 

2022

Change 

(% age)
Reason for variance (if above 25%)

a Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 0.76 0.96 -20.92% N.A.

Total Current Assets as shown in 

Balance sheet

Total Current Liabilities as shown in 

Balance sheet and it excludes Current 

maturity of long term borrowings

Total of Note 10 to 16 Total of Note 24 to 30 exluding 25

b
Debt-Equity 

Ratio
Total Debt  Shareholder's Equity 1.20 1.32 -9.09% N.A.

Total borrowings + Current 

maturity of long term borrowings

Total Equity share capital & other 

equity as shown in Balance sheet

Note 19+25 Total Note 17+18

c
Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio

Earnings available for debt 

service
Debt service 0.58 0.79 -26.05%

PSERC through its tariff order for FY 2022-

23 has allowed Revenue Gap of FY 2020-21, 

carrying costs of earlier years & review of 

tariff of FY 2021-22. 

Earning for Debt Service = Net 

Prot before taxes + Non-cash 

operating expenses like depreciation 

and other amortizations + Interest + 

other adjustments like loss on sale of 

Fixed assets etc

Debt service = Interest & Lease 

Payments + Principal Repayments

Prot /loss for the period+ Note 

35+Note 36+Note No 40

Net cash from nancing activities in 

CFS minus Proceeds from Long term, 

Short term, lease liabilities as shown in 

CFS

d
Return on 

Equity Ratio
Net Prot After Taxes Average Shareholder's Equity 3.29% 7.36% -55.26%

PSERC through its tariff order for FY 2022-

23 has allowed Revenue Gap of FY 2020-21, 

carrying costs of earlier years & review of 

tariff of FY 2021-22. 

Prot/(Loss) for the period (C-D) as 

shown in P&L A/c

Average of opening & closing 

Shareholder's equity as shown in 

Balance sheet (Note 17+18)

e
Inventory 

turnover ratio
COGS or  Sales Average Inventory N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

f
Trade 

Receivables 
turnover ratio

Net credit sales Average accounts receivables 3.50 4.33 -19.09% N.A.

Revenue from Operations as 

shown in P&L A/c ( Note 32)

Average of opening & closing Trade 

Receivables as shown in BS (Note 

11)

g
Trade payables 

turnover ratio
Net credit Purchases Average trade Payables N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

h
Net capital 

turnover ratio
Net sales Average Working Capital (16.66) 37.31 -144.66%

PSERC through its tariff order for FY 2022-

23 has allowed Revenue Gap of FY 2020-21, 

carrying costs of earlier years & review of 

tariff of FY 2021-22. 

Revenue from Operations as shown 

in P&L A/c ( Note 32)

Average of opening & closing Working 

Capital.

Working Capital = Current Assets 

(Note 10 to 16)- Current Liabilities 

excluding Current Maturity of Long 

term borrowings (Note 24 to 30- Note 

25)

i Net prot ratio Net Prot Net Sales 6.40% 14.70% -56.46%

PSERC through its tariff order for FY 2022-

23 has allowed Revenue Gap of FY 2020-21, 

carrying costs of earlier years & review of 

tariff of FY 2021-22. 

Prot/(Loss) for the period (C-D) as 

shown in P&L A/c

Revenue from Operations as shown in 

P&L A/c ( Note 32)

j
Return on 

Capital 

employed

Earning before interest and 

taxes
Capital Employed 6.03% 7.85% -23.16% N.A.

Prot/(Loss) for the period (C-

D)+Finance costs (Note 35) as 

shown in P&L A/c

Capital Employed = Tangible Net 

Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax 

Liability

Total assets (A+B) as shown in BS- 

Current liability excluding current 

maturity of long term borrowings 

(Note 24 to 30-Note No. 25)

k
Return on 

Investment

Net Prot After Interest  And 

Taxes
Average Net Worth 8.25% 20.06% -58.88%

PSERC through its tariff order for FY 2022-

23 has allowed Revenue Gap of FY 2020-21, 

carrying costs of earlier years & review of 

tariff of FY 2021-22. 

Prot/(Loss) for the period (C-D) as 

shown in P&L A/c

Average of opening & closing of Equity 

share capital & Closing balance of 

Prot & Loss Account as shown in 

Balance sheet (Note 17+18)

Ratios:-

 Analytical Ratios



154

th13  Annual Report 2022-23 PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION LIMITED

59 Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses

The amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act (Rupees in Lacs)

For the year ended 

31st March, 2022

                                  -   

                                  -   

c)  Shortfall at the end of the year                                -                                     -   

d) Total of previous years shortfall                                -                                     -   

e) Reason for shortfall  Not applicable 

f) Nature of CSR activities  Not applicable 

2021-22 21,361.95 

2020-21 (restated) 1,540.83 

2019-20                    (3,230.26)

2018-19 (restated)                       (845.45)

Average of Prot/(Loss) for FY 2022-23                      6,557.51 

Average of Prot/(Loss) for FY 2021-22                       (844.96)

60

i Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:-
(Rupees in Lacs)

Principal Interest Principal Interest

i Micro                      -                                       -   - 7 3.22 -

ii Small 19 146.98 - 26 309.03 -

iii Medium 43 664.25 - 10 711.16 -

Total 62 811.23 - 43 1,023.41 -

ii

Principal Interest Principal Interest

i Micro, Medium -

                

-

                                   

- - - -

ii Small -

                                   

- - -

iii

Interest due Interest payable Interest due Interest payable

i Micro, Small, Medium -

                

-

                                   

- - - -

iv The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year:-

Interest Accrued Interest unpaid Interest Accrued Interest unpaid

i Micro, Small, Medium -

                

-

                                   

- - - -

v

Interest due Interest payable Interest due Interest payable

i Micro, Small, Medium -

                

-

                                   

- - - -

61

Sr. 

No.

Description of Item of 

Property

Gross 

carrying 

value

Title deeds held in the 

name of

Property held 

since which date

Reason for not 

being held in the 

name of the PSTCL 

( indicate disputed 

case also)

Sr. 

No.
Enterprise No. of items

Based on the information available with the company, outstanding balances of parties covered under Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as under:-

* PSTCL decided for promoting education to incur Rs. 1.31 crore by providing infrastructure (interactive at panels) in 91 government

school of 9 districts and Rs. 0.15 lac for providing dresses to needy school girls. The amount was paid to the concerned ofces before 31st

March 2023. Out of which utilization certicate of Rs. 0.15 lac has already been received and regarding Rs. 1.31 crore the work was in

progress as on 31-03-2023, hence utilization certicates is still to receive.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above

are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act,

2006:-

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day

during the year) but without adding the interest specied under MSMED Act, 2006:-

2021-222022-23

2021-22

2021-22

2021-22

No. of 

items

Enterprise No. of items

Enterprise

No. of 

items

No. of 

items

No. of 

items

2022-23

No. of items

Particulars

a) Amount required to be spent during the year @ 2% of Average of Prot/(Loss), as

per section 198 of the Act, of Last 3 years.

b) Amount of expenditure incurred *

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2023

                                         131.15 

                                         131.15 

Detail of Average of Prot/(Loss), as per Section 198 of the Act, of Last 3 Years:-

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

 Promoting education 

 Not applicable 

Whether title deed holder is 

a promoter, director or 

relative of a 

promoter*/director or 

employee of 

promoter/director

Detail of Immoveable Properties whose title deeds are not in the name of PSTCL as on 31.03.2023                         (Rupees in Lacs)

Sr. 

No.
Enterprise No. of rms

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount of the payment made to

the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year:-

2022-23 No. of 

rms

2021-22

Sr. 

No.

Sr. 

No.

Sr. 

No.

2022-23

No. of items
2022-23

Enterprise

The title deeds of immoveable properties procured before 16.04.2010 are not mutated in the name of PSTCL , but the ownership of such assets 

accrued to PSTCL by operation of law through Transfer scheme notied by Punjab Govt. on 24.12.2012. The corporation is in the process of 

obtaining the said title deeds available with PSPCL (as the Estate of erstwhile PSEB which is now functioning under PSPCL after unbundling

and is the custodian of such title deeds). The company has details/allotment letters/deeds in respect of land procured after 16.04.2010.



62   There are some unidentifiable receivables and payables which pertain to erstwhile PSEB period and are 
very old which are being examined in detail  and will be reconciled in due course of time for effecting the 
required corrections, adjustments and set offs  as the case may be.    

     
63   PSTCL has measured its borrowings initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost 

except in case of transaction cost incurred on account of Guarantee fees. The loans taken on Guarantee 
fees are drawn in multiple tranches and with variable rate of interest. 

  PSTCL has not measured the non-current borrowings at amortized cost using effective interest rate 
(EIR) method of Guarantee fees being immaterial in consideration to the size and turnover of the 
Company.

     
64   During the year a sum of Rs. 6.62 lacs appearing as negative balances in CWIP due to material returned 

to store adjusted vide various SRWs has been reduced from the respective assets. Due to this, 
depreciation of Rs. 0.09 lacs has been reduced during the year keeping in view the immateriality for 
showing in the previous years.    

     
65   PSTCL is recognizing the revenue on the basis of tariff orders issued by the Hon'ble Commission 

(PSERC). Some of the decisions of PSERC have been challenged in the APTEL/ Supreme Court. 
PSTCL will account for the amount on the basis of  outcome of the pending cases in APTEL/Supreme 
Court.    

     
66   Some of the assets as allocated to the Company, vide Notification dated 24.12.2012 by the Govt. of 

Punjab, are being utilized by Punjab State Power Corporation Ltd.  (PSPCL).  Similarly, the Company is 
also using some of the assets of PSPCL. The accounting of rentals payable/receivable to/from PSPCL 
has not been made in the accounts of Company in the absence of any agreement between the two 
Companies for use of such assets.    

     
67   As per Ind AS-12, the deferred tax assets (the deferred tax benefits) should be recognized only when 

there is a certainty for the income generation in future which can be utilized for setting off the said 
deferred tax assets. Considering the accumulated unabsorbed losses, it is not probable that the same can 
be set off with the future income within the allowable period specified in the Income Tax Act 1961. In 
view of the said uncertainty, it is considered prudent not to recognize the deferred tax asset in the current 
financial year 2022-23.    

     
68   The balances of trade receivables, advances to suppliers/contractors, loans & advances and other parties 

shown in the accounts are subject to confirmation.    
     
69   MAT Credit is not recognized in the books of accounts as the company has exercised the option of 

Section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, 1961 for FY 2020-21 (AY- 2021-22) onwards.     
     
70   The books of account of Civil Circle, Patiala include completed assets of Plant & Machinery which has 

not been transferred to the respective P&M Divisions. Pending transfer of completed assets which 
relates to erstwhile PSEB period, to the concerned P&M divisions, depreciation of Rs. 63.87 lacs has 
been charged during FY 2022-23 on all such completed assets  in respect of Civil Circle Patiala has been 
charged to P&L account.
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71   The previous year's figures have been reclassified/regrouped/merged/restated for the purpose of 
comparison with the current year's figures in the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss and Notes to 
accounts, wherever necessary.     

For and on behalf of the Board  As per our report of even date attached   
For K.S. Dua & Co.   
Chartered Accountants   
FRN 017478N          Sd/-

(Vinod Kumar Bansal) 
Director/F&C 

       Sd/-
(A. Venu Prasad)
Chairman-cum-Managing
Director

     Sd/-
(CA Swarn Singh Dhillon)   
Partner   
M.No. 527610 

     Sd/-
(Sudhir Kumar) 
Chief Financial Officer 

       Sd/-
(Sahil Panday)
Company Secretary
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Place: Patiala   
Date:    26-06-2023
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62H  e[M r?o^PBkysh:'r, gqkgsh:'r ns/ ndkfJrh:'r oewK jB i' g{opb/ ghHn?;HJhHphH ;w/A Bkb ;zpzXs jB ns/ 

pj[s g[okDhnK jB, fizBQK dh ft;sko ftZu iKu ehsh ik ojh j? ns/ nkT[Ad/ ;w/A d""okB b'V nB[;ko io{oh ;'XK, 

;wk:'iB ns/ fBgNkok eo e/ fwbkB eo fbnk ikt/rk.

63H ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH B/ P[o{nks ftZu nkgD/ eoI/ T[fus w[Zb s/ ns/ pknd ftZu foD^w[esh bkrs s/ wkg/ jB 

f;tkJ/ rkozNh ch; s/ ehs/ b?D^d/D dh bkrs d/ e/; ftZu. rkozNh ch; s/ bJ/ eoI/ eJh fePsK ftZu ns/ 

gfotosBPhb ftnki doK s/ bJ/ rJ/ jB.

 ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?bH B/ gqGkth ftnki do (JhHnkJhHnkoH) ftXh tosd/ j'J/ r?o^ukb{ eoI/ foD^w[esh bkrs s/ 

BjhA wkg/ jB feT[Afe ezgBh d/ nkeko ns/ fteoh B{z fXnkB ftZu oZyfdnK rkozNh ch; wkw{bh j?.

64H ;kb d"okB ;hHvpfbT{HnkJhHghH ftZu n?;HnkoHvpfbT{ dk ;wkXkB eoB eoe/ wkJhB; ftZu nk ojh oew  

6H62 bZy o[gJ/ B{z ;zpzXs ;zgshnK ftZu'A wBch ehsk frnk j?. fJ; eoe/ 0H09 bZy o[gJ/ w[Zb xkN/ dh s[ZS 

oew B{z fXnkB ftZu oZyd/ j'J/ fgSb/ ;kbK ftZu fdykT[D dh pikJ/ ;kb d"okB wBch ehsk frnk j?.

65H ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?b, wkD:'r efwPB (ghHn?;HJhHnkoH;hH) d[nkok ikoh N?foc nkovoK d/ nkXko s/ wkbhJ/ B{z 

wkBsk d/ fojk j?. ghHn?;HJhHnkoH;hH d/ e[M c?;fbnK B{z J/HghHNhHJhHn?b$;[gohw e'oN ftZu u[D'sh fdZsh j'Jh 

j?. ghHn?;HNhH;hHn?b, J/HghHNhHJhHn?b $;[gohw e'oN ftZu ftuko nXhB e/;K d/ c?;fbnK d/ nkXko s/ oew 

b/fys eo bt/rk.

66H gzikp ;oeko d[nkok fwsh 24H12H2012 dh nfX;{uBk d[nkok ezgBh dh fBoXkos ehshnK rJhnK e[M 

;zgshnK gzikp ;N/N gkto ekog'o/PB fbfwfNv (ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH) d[nkok toshnK ik ojhnK jB.fJ;/ 

soQK ezgBh ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH dhnK e[ZM ;zgshnK dh tos'A th eo ojh j?. nfijhnK ;zgshnK dh tos'A ;zpzXh 

d'tK ezgBhnK ftZu e'Jh fJeokoBkwk Bk j'D ekoB ghHn?;HghH;hHn?bH B{z$s'A ndkfJrh:'r$t;{bh:'r feokJ/ dk 

b/yk^I'yk ezgBh d/ b/fynK ftZu BjhA ehsk frnk j?.

67H fJzv J/Hn?;H^12 nB[;ko ftbzfps eo ;zgshnK (ftbzfps eo bkG) Bz{ T[d'A jh wkBsk d/Dh ukjhdh j? id'A GftZy 

ftZu nkwdB j'D dh fBPfussk j't/ fijVh fe T[es ftbzfps eo ;zgshnK Bz{ nvi;N eoB bJh tos'A ftZu 

fbnKdh ik ;e/. ;zfus Bk^iIp j'J/ B[e;kBK Bz{ ftukod/ j'J/, fJj ;zGt BjhA brdk fe fJjBK Bz{ GftZy ftZu 

j'D tkbh nkwdB Bkb nkwdB eo n?eN^1961 nXhB gqtkfBs ;w/A ftZu nvi;N ehsk ik ;e/. T[es fbfys 

nfBPussk Bz{ fXnkB ftZu oZyd/ j'J/ ukb{ ftZsh ;kb 2022^23 ftZu ftbzfps eo ;zgshnK Bz{ wkBsk Bk d/Dk 

T[fus brdk j?.

68H tgkoe d/DdkoK, g{osh eosktK$m/e/dkoK B{z g/PrhnK, eofInK ns/ g/PrhnK ns/ j'o gkoNhnK d/ b/fynK 

ftZu fdykJ/ rJ/ pekJ/ g[PNheoB nXhB jB.

69H ykfsnK dhnK feskpK ftZu n?wHJ/HNhH eq?fvN dh wkBsk BjhA fdZsh rJh j? feT[Afe ezgBh B/ ftZsh ;kb 

2020^21 (;kbkBk ;kb 2021^22) s'A pknd nkwdB eo n?eN, 1961 dh Xkok 115 phJ/J/ d/ ftebg dh tos'A 

ehsh j?.
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70H f;tb ;oeb gfNnkbk dhnK b/yk^g[;seK ftZu gbKN ns/ wPhBoh dhnK w[ezwb j'JhnK ;zgshnK Pkwb jB 

i' fe ;zpzXs gh s/ n?w wzvbK B{z spdhb BjhA ehshnK rJhnK jB. g{opb/ gzLokLfpLp'L d/ ;w/A Bkb ;zpzXs 

w[ezwb ;zgshnK fizBQK dh ;zpzXs gh s/ n?w wzvbK B{z spdhbh pekfJnk j?, f;tb ;oeb gfNnkbk dh nfijhnK 

;kohnK w[ezwb ;zgshnK s/ ftZsh ;kb 2022^23 d"okB o[gJ/ 63H87 bZy dk w[Zb^xkNk dk bkG ns/ jkBh yks/ 

Bz{ ukoi d/ o{g ftZu T[gpzX ehsk frnk j?.

71H p?b?A; PhN, bkG ns/ jkBh ;koDh ns/ b/fynK d/ B'N ftZu doI ukb{ ;kb d/ nzefVnK dh s[bBk d/ wzst Bkb, 

fiZE/ fes/ Io{oh ;h, fgSb/ ;kb d/ nzefVnK dk w[V torheoB$w[V^ro[Zg tzv$fJeZmkeoB ehsk frnk j?.

;kvh BZEh ehsh ;wfwsh dh   

fog'oN w[skfpe

p'ov dh so|'A ns/ bJh

 

tkL e/Hn?;H d[nk n?Av ezgBh

ukoNov nekT{AN?AN;   

n?c nko n?B 017478 n?B 

;jh$^

(;h J/ ;toB f;zx fYZb'A) 

fjZ;/dko

n?wH BzL 527610

;jh$^

(;kfjb gKv/)

e zgBh ;eZso

 

;jh$^

(;[Xho e[wko)

w [Zy ftZs n|;o

 

;jh$^   

(ftB'd kumwr pK;b)

vkfJo?eNo$iv~q qy vxj  

;jh$^

(J/Ht/D{ gq;kd)

u/now?B^ew^w?B/fizr fwierYktr

;EkBL pitAwlw

fwsh L 16H06H2023
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